@

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER CONFERENCE ROOM
MONDAY, MAY 4, 2015
5:00 TO 6:00 PM

1. Call to Order

2. Meet with Local Government Study Commission members — update on progress and discussion of
ideas

3. Public Comment

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER CONFERENCE ROOM
MONDAY, MAY 4, 2015
6:00 TO 7:00 PM

INTERVIEWS FOR BOARD AND COMMITTEE VACANCIES
6:05 Jim Limbaugh — Applicant for Park Board
6:15 Jason Forrest — Applicant for Park Board
6:25 Teresa Dunn — Applicant for Park Board
6:35 Jim DeHerrera — Applicant for Park Board
Not available for interviews — Doug Wise — Applicant for Park Board
6:45 Mary Vail — Applicant for Library Board of Trustees
4. Public Comment
5. Appointments
a. Park Board — 3 positions, 2-year terms. Mayoral Appointments with Council approval
b. Library Board of Trustees — 1 position, 5-year term. Mayoral Appointment, Council Approval

c. Whitefish Housing Authority — Robert FitzGerald, Resident applicant. Mayoral Appointment

6. Adjournment
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Whitefish Local Government Study Commission Survey
Montana is the only state in the nation that allows its cities and countries to review and update their
form of government. This occurs every 10 years through a Local Government Review Commission.

Whitefish has its own Charter which gives us self-governing powers. We have selected a mayor/council
form of government with a paid City Administration.

This insert requests your comments on what works for Whitefish and what needs improvement. Please
take a moment to fill this out. We'd like it back by June 30, 2015 to help us compile public comment.
1. Do you think our current form of government is appropriate for Whitefish? Yes_ No____

2. Inthe past we’ve had wards with councilors elected to represent specific parts of the City.
Should we reconsider this? Yes_ No____

3. What works for you with the form of government?

4. What does not work?

5. Do you have suggestion that we should consider?

Reponses can be mailed to : City of Whitefish, P.O. Box 158, Whitefish, MT 59937

E-mailed to vwoodbeck@cityofwhitefish.org

Faxed to 863-2419
Thank you for contributing to our public process.

Your local Government Review Study Commission
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PUBLIC NOTICE

THE CITY OF WHITEFISH
HAS POSITIONS OPEN
ON THE FOLLOWING

VOLUNTEER COMMITTEES

HOUSING AUTHORITY - One position to fill the remainder of a term expiring 12-31-19.
Open to city residents or residents within a 10-mile radius of the City of Whitefish.

PARK BOARD - Residency requirement: Applicants must have resided within the City Limits
for 2 years and within the State for 3 years, and must be at least 21 years old. 3 Positions, 2-year
terms.

POLICE COMMISSION - Open to City residents who have maintained residency within the
City for one year prior to appointment to the Commission. 1 Position, 3-year term.

ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMITTEE - open to residents of the City or the Zoning
Jurisdiction who are either employed by or is an owner of a business in the city of Whitefish,
or owner of property in the city of Whitefish, Montana licensed architects or a licensed design
professional. 2 Positions, 3-year terms.

RESORT TAX MONITORING COMMITTEE - applicants can be an owner, operator or
representative of any of a Bar/Restaurant, Lodging Business, or a Retail Business in the City
Limits of Whitefish, or an interested City resident as a Member at Large. The two (2) positions
expiring this year is a Member at Large, and the Restaurant/Bar representative. 3-year terms.

WHITEFISH CONVENTION AND VISITOR BUREAU COMMITTEE - Three (3)
Committee positions expire this year — 3-year terms. Open to residents of the City of Whitefish
and the Whitefish planning jurisdiction. Up to 2 positions may be residents in Flathead County
outside of the Whitefish Planning Jurisdiction if they are an owner or manager of a business
located and operating within the City of Whitefish zoning jurisdiction. Committee Membership
includes representatives of Whitefish Mountain Resort, Finance, Large and Small Lodging
properties, Restaurant and Bar Businesses, Retail Businesses, Transportation Businesses and
the Whitefish Lake Golf Course. Openings include preference for representatives of Restaurant/
Bar, Small Lodging Properties, and the Whitefish Lake Golf Course.

[ BOARD OF TRUSTEES - One (1) position open to residents who live inside the
City Limits 5-year term.

IMPACT FEE ADVISORY COMMITTEE - 2-Year terms — Three Positions — Openings are
for a person from the Development Community, a Certified Public Accountant, and a Member
at Large, all who either live or work within Whitefish zoning jurisdictions. The Committee
meets once a year.

Please submit a letter of interest to serve on any of the above committees to the Whitefish
City Clerk’s Office at 418 E. 2nd Street or mail to P.O. Box 158, Whitefish, MT 59937, by
Friday, April 24, 2015. Interviews will be scheduled for May and June as needed. Thereafter,
if vacancies still exist, letters of interest will be accepted until the positions are filled. If you
have any questions please call the City Clerk’s Office at 863-2400. These are also posted on the
City’s website: www.cityofwhitefish.org.

*kxkxkX*THANK YOU FOR YOUR INTEREST !*## %%k
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March 23, 2015

414 Columbia Avenue
Whitefish, MT 59937

Ms. Necile Lorang
Whitefish City Clerk
418 E. 2™ Street
Whitefish, MT 59937

Dear Ms. Lorang:

Please accept this letter as my application to be considered for one of the three vacancies on the Park
Board of the City of Whitefish.

A primary reason that | moved to Whitefish approximately three years ago was the extraordinary civic
pride exhibited by the community and its residents. Without exception, every individual | have met
speaks in glowing terms about Whitefish, its vibrant downtown, its year-round activities, and its scenic
beauty. Clearly, community residents understand that they live in a very special place, and | now count
myself among that group.

Therefore, | am submitting my name for consideration for the Park Board because | believe that public
parks are an integral part of the life and culture of our community, and | would like to give back to the
community that has welcomed me as a resident. | have witnessed, for example, the energy generated
at events held at Depot Park and at other locations throughout the city. | understand that policies
governing the maintenance, use, and management of these public spaces are important to the ongoing
economic and culture life of the city and that they must be considered with thoughtfulness and an eye
to the future. As a former member of multiple city commissions in other communities (e.g., a regional
zoning board and two historic district commissions), as well as leadership in higher education
administration (culminating with a college presidency), | believe that | have a background that could
serve the City of Whitefish.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,
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Jason Forrest

620 Park Avenue
Whitefish, MT 59937
406-214-0378

Whitefish City Clerks Office
418 E. 2™ St
Whitefish, MT 59937

| am contacting you today because | believe that my skills and background fit ideally with Park Boards needs for a
volunteer position.

I've been involved with youth recreational programs my whole life. | have a degree in Recreation Management, started a
surf school out of college, was a group leader at a YMCA in San Diego, lead a youth group and | currently sit on the board
of directors for the NC Foundation. , __, Since 2011 I've been a part of a team that has
transformed our annual snowboard event from a feel good snowboard event to a legitimate fundraiser that supports
youth mental health programs in the Flathead Valley. In 2011 the contest raised $400 for the foundation, last year we
raised over $7000! We did this by engaging our devoted community and specifically the devoted competitors.

| believe that | would bring incredible skill and a unique perspective to the Park Board. I've managed retail sales
accounts across the southeast and now manage Whitefish Mountain Resort group business from Alberta to Texas. |
know how to quickly establish and maintain important relationships. | currently work on a small sales and marketing
team that develops and manages all of our products internally. | understand the need for experienced and well-rounded
member of a community board and know how to meet goals. I've lived in Whitefish for 7 years and been a permanent
resident of Whitefish since 2011. I'm currently raising a growing family and own a home a few blocks from the high
school. I'm specifically interested in the depot park project and the reassessment of usage fees for park space.

| need and enjoy work that is worth doing. Studies show that people never regret family vacations or time spent with
friends. | currently sell quality time together for family and friends and love that part of my job and would love to use

these skills to enhance our park offerings in the City of Whitefish to help people spend quality time with their family and
friends.

I'm excited about opportunities within the Park Board and hope to explore contributions | can make. I'd love to set up a
time to talk on the phone in the next week or to arrange an interview. Please let me know when is best for you.

Thanks in advance!

Jason Forrest
406-214-0378
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Jason Forrest
620 Park Ave Whitefish, Montana 59937 (406) 214-0378
jason.forrest@yahoo.com

Education
East Carolina University, Greenville, North Carolina

Bachelor of Science in Recreation and Leisure Studies, Summer 2001
Concentration: Management of Recreation Facilities and Services
Grade Point Average: 3.1 (of 4.0)

Professional Experience
Western Region Sales Representative, Whitefish Mountain Resort, Montana

Dates Employed: 4/12/11 to Present
Awarded as a Top Ten Employee for 2012
Attend National and Regional Trades Shows and Symposiums
Primary focus on developing direct group business including but not limited to establishing relationships with
councils, clubs, colleges, shops and corporations.
Focused efforts on building summer tourism group segment.
Responsible for identifying and developing sales opportunities necessary to accomplish specified targets and goals.
Responsible for understanding and utilizing V12 lodging software, ticket POS software, Excel, Word, Outlook and
actively track business in ACT opportunity software.
Creating, invoicing and following through on contract proposals
Knowledgeable of all resort products and services, current industry trends, including the ability to communicate this
information effectively.
PR Assistant for snowboard related marketing, resort contact for the Burton Crazy Train and Riding on Insulin

Event Production Supervisor, Whitefish Mountain Resort, Montana

Dates Employed 12/1/10 1o 4/10/11 11/1/09 to 4/5/10
12/4/08 to 4/6/09
Coordinate the daily work and assigns duties, schedules and oversees the event staff and volunteers
Supervise the production of all winter special events and mountain activities, specifically, but not limited to, private
races, race leagues, snowboard events, special events for visiting groups, USSA/FIS and local races/competitions
and charity events.
Responsible for the proper use, storage and maintenance of equipment, vehicles, tools and facilities

Manager, Outer Banks Boarding Company, North Carolina

Dates Employed: 5/17/02 to0 11/10/10

Guide/Naturalist/Bike Patrol, Whitefish Mountain Resort, Montana

Dates Employed 5/27/08 to 9/27/08 8/15/09 to 9/30/09

Snowboard Instructor, Freestyle Coach, Whitefish Mountain Resort, Montana

Dates Employed 12/06/08 to 4/6/08

Southeast Sales Representative, NHS Inc

Dates employed: 12/15/05 to 10/12/07
Received “Overall Kickass Promotional Support™ award at International Sales Meeting
Management of over 100 accounts covering the southeast US states
Organization, planning and execution of surfboard and snowboard demos and clinics
Planning and execution of skateboard tours, contests and demos with professional skaters
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« Attend international sales meetings bi-annually discussing hard and soft goods product development, marketing, and

distribution
+ Scheduled and worked appointments at Surf Expo and ASR Trade Shows

Mid-Atlantic Sales Representative, Hoven Eyewear and West Wetsuits
Dates Employed: 8/1/05 to 10/01/07
+ Development of Account Base in Mid-Atlantic Region while introducing new products and brands

Owner, Partner, Found Nation Surf School, North Carolina
Dates Employed: 5/17/02 to 8/30/03
+ Conceptualize, plan, organize and execute Three and Five Day Camp
« Implemented environmental education program with NC Aquarium at Jennette’s Pier

Boatman, Surf Guide, Salani Surf Resort, Samoa
Dates Employed: 12/16/02 to 4/29/03 1/6/04 to 4/29/04
e Put guest on the best waves of their lives every day by boat or van
e Maintenance, cleaning and daily operation of all resort boats
e Island Tour Guide; waterfalls, town, cliff jumps, coastal hikes

Intern, Kayak Eco Tour Manager, Kitty Hawk Sports, North Carolina
Dates Employed: 5/18/01 to 11/20/02
« Hire, train, schedule, critique and supervise kayaking guides
« Prepare an end of season Marketing Report for the kayaking division
- Maintain tour vehicles, kayaks, trailers and gear
« Coordinate with the US Fish & Wildlife Service on kayak tour organization

Trip Leader, East Carolina University Adventure Center, North Carolina
Dates Employed: 8/26/00 to 5/4/01
+ Trip planning and organization (Surfing, backpacking, rock climbing, touring and white-water kayaking. Trips vary
in length from one to five days)
« Facilitation of Rock Climbing Wall and Kayak Roll Clinic Head Instructor

Day Camp Unit Leader, La Jolla YMCA, California
Dates Employed: 6/10/00 to 8/11/00
+ Overall management and supervision of a camp unit, staff and children
* Plan, supervise, and implement day camp program in accordance with YMCA goals

Guide, Kachemak Bay Wilderness Lodge, Alaska
Dates Employed: 6/10/95 to 8/30/95 6/10/96 to 8/30/96
6/10/97 to 8/30/97
+ The Kachemak Bay Wilderness Lodge was awarded “Hideaway of the Year” by Harper’s Hideaway Report for
1997, featured on the cover of Travel and Leisure Magazine as well as the Travel Channels recent show “1000
Places to See Before You Die” and known as “Alaska’s Best Wilderness Lodge”
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Non-Profit and Volunteer Experience:

Board Member, NC Foundation, Montana - 2011 to Present
« Responsible for multiple fundraising events surrounding the Nate Chute Snowboard event at Whitefish Mountain
Resort transforming the event from a long standing snowboard event to an innovative community fundraiser to
support local youth mental health programs
+ Engaged the competitors in a fundraising effort that resulted in over $7000 raised in 2014.
+ Currently involved in the creation of an Executive Director position

Member, Flathead Fat Tires, Montana

Youth Group Leader, Whitefish United Methodist Church - 2009 to 2011

Founding Core Leader, Whitefish Community Garden

Founding Core Leader, Outer Banks Chapter of Christian Surfers 2006 to 2007
President (2000) and Secretary (1999) Pi Kappa Phi Fraternity, East Carolina University
Member, The Nature Conservancy

Certifications:
NAUI Scuba Diver
American Red Cross Adult, Child and Infant First-Aid/CPR/AED
Wilderness First Aid
AASI Level 1 -2011

Accomplishments:

Raised over $1500 for First Descents in a paddleboard race, 26 miles on Flathead Lake
My two and a half year old is still alive and seems quite happy

Contributor to the Flathead Beacon’s “Inversions” — 2013

Ride my bike to work 6 miles and 1700ft twice weekly all summer

Manage a tight family budget that allows my wife to work part time for restorative youth justice
Featured writer for the Native Eyewear Locals Only project — 2012

Contributor to the Whitefish Mountain Resort Blog “Big Thoughts”

Photo featured in Thrasher Skateboard Magazine Photograffiti - 2008

Half Page Editorial Photo featured in Eastern Surf Magazine - 2005

Eastern Surf Magazine “Who Da Guy” - 2005

Writing and Photos Featured in Eastern Surf Magazine “Travel Journals™ - 2005
Image used in Surfer Magazine advertisement for Salani Surf Resort - 2006

Travels:
Canada Samoa
Costa Rica Alaska
Panama Baja, Mexico
Multiple Cross-Country Drives The entire East Coast
California El Salvador
Nova Scotia Oregon
Montana
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City of Whitefish, City Clerk’s Office
418 E. 2™ Street, PO Box 158
Whitefish, Mt 59937
406-863-2400
nlorang@cityofwhitefish.org

March 10, 2015

Your term on the

As a matter of course, the City will also be advertising this position along with
others also expiring at this time. The deadline to receive letters of application,
and to receive your letter of interest if you want to reapply to serve another term,
is Friday, April 24, 2015. Interviews with the Council will be scheduled for
meetings in May and June. | will call you to set up your specific interview time if
you are re-applying. If you wish, you can complete the blank lines below and
return this notice to me in place of a new letter of interest.

| have enclosed a copy of the ad we will be running.

If you are not planning to ‘re-up’ for your position again, please let me know that
as well.

Thank you, and thank you for your service to the community of Whitefish!
Necile Lorang, CMC

Whitefish City Clerk

To Whitefish City Council:
| am interested in serving another term on the fM(C ﬁOMﬂ

(s Ky ol Bba-4370

Signature Daytime Phone #
cell  370-T182.
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City of Whitefish, City Clerk’s Office
418 E. 2™ Street, PO Box 158
Whitefish, Mt 59937
406-863-2400
nlorang@cityofwhitefish.org

March 10, 2015

expires on

As a matter of course, the City will also be advertising this position along with
others also expiring at this time. The deadline to receive letters of application,
and to receive your letter of interest if you want to reapply to serve another term,
is Friday, April 24, 2015. Interviews with the Council will be scheduled for
meetings in May and June. | will call you to set up your specific interview time if
you are re-applying. If you wish, you can complete the blank lines below and
return this notice to me in place of a new letter of interest.

| have enclosed a copy of the ad we will be running.

If you are not planning to ‘re-up’ for your position again, please let me know that
as well.

Thank you, and thank you for your service to the community of Whitefish!

Necile Lorang, CMC
Whitefish City Clerk

To Whitefish City Council: pa}fé/ /@7 5 4 \{/Q

| am interested in serving another term on the

- )1 A~ A 7

Daytime Phone #
/Jf C/ l(/, \_
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City of Whitefish, City Clerk’s Office
418 E. 2™ Street, PO Box 158
Whitefish, Mt 59937
406-863-2400
nlorang@cityofwhitefish.org

March 10, 2015

Dear W_g —
Your term on the ] rg 0 M

|

As a matter of course, the City will also be advertising this position along with
others also expiring at this time. The deadline to receive letters of application,
and to receive your letter of interest if you want to reapply to serve another term,
is Friday, April 24, 2015. Interviews with the Council will be scheduled for
meetings in May and June. | will call you to set up your specific interview time if
you are re-applying. If you wish, you can complete the blank lines below and
return this notice to me in place of a new letter of interest.

| have enclosed a copy of the ad we will be running.

If you are not planning to ‘re-up’ for your position again, please let me know that
as well.

Thank you, and thank you for your service to the community of Whitefish!

MNew e B9 La oot
(Afypeen) Pl

.

Necile Lorang, CMC
Whitefish City Clerk

To Whitefish City Council: D \0_/5 é( ?,Q,QM _\’L :
| am interested in serving another term on the TG\ l \ : 'SR [ A V,YaN

Becund
m-ﬂm{)\\{/;o NOL-AOM-CRRY

Signature\ Daytime Phone #
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PARK BOARD - WCC 2-2-1 -2 YEAR TERMS - confirmed by Council (2* Tuesdays @ 7 pm)

TERM DATE
Councilor Frank Sweeney = PO Box 158 863-4848 (O) Mayor/Designee (Richard Hildner, Alternate)
Susan Schnee 1405 E. 2™ Street 863-9856 5/01/2016
Ron Brunk 130 E. 4% St 862-6466, 862-6858 5/01/2016
Ray Boksich 223 Columbia Ave 862-3430, 212-0261 5/01/2016
Doug Wise 1000 Birch Point Dr 862-1463, 407-0927 President
Terri Dunn 6211 D Shiloh Ave 862-8276, 250-7182
Jim DeHerrera 339 Fairway Drive 407-730-2424
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BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS

2-2-1: BOARD CREATED; MEMBERSHIP:

The board of park commissioners must be composed of the mayor, or the mayor's designee, and six (6)
other persons to be appointed by the mayor, with the approval of the city council. The seven (7) persons
to be so appointed shall have the same qualifications for the office of park commissioner as are required
by Montana code 7-4-4301 for the office of mayor.**

**Montana Code Annotated 2009:
7-4-4301. Qualifications for mayor. (1) A person is not eligible for the office of mayor unless the person:
(a) is at least 21 years old;
(b) has been a resident of the state for at least 3 years; and
(c) has been a resident for at least 2 years preceding the election to office of the city or town or an
area that has been annexed by the city or town.
(2) The office of mayor of a city or town is considered vacant if the individual elected as mayor ceases
to be a resident of the city or town.**

A. Term Of Office:

1. Except as provided in subsection A2 of this section, the term of office of each park commissioner shall
be two (2) years from and after May 1 of the year in which he is appointed and until his successor is
appointed and qualified.

2. Three (3) of the commissioners first appointed shall hold office for the period of one year from and after
May 1 and until their successors are appointed and qualified.

B. Vacancy: Any park commissioner who shall refuse or neglect to attend three (3) meetings of the board
between May 1 and April 30 of the following year shall be deemed to have vacated his office, and
thereupon his successor may be appointed.

C. Compensation: No park commissioner shall receive compensation for his service rendered under the
provisions of this chapter, but the actual and necessary expenses incurred by any member of the
board while acting under the orders of the board in the transaction of any business in its behalf may
be paid upon being allowed and audited by the board.

D. Oath Of Office: Before entering upon the discharge of his duties, each park commissioner shall take
and subscribe the oath provided by Montana code 2-16-211. The oath shall be filed in the office of the
city clerk. (Ord. 96-15, 2-18-1997)

2-2-2: ORGANIZATION OF BOARD:

A. On the second Tuesday in May in each year, the board of park commissioners shall meet and organize
by electing one of their number president and one of their number vice president, who shall hold their
offices, respectively, for the term of one year.

B. The city clerk or the city clerk's designee shall be ex officio clerk of the board of park commissioners.
(Ord. 96-15, 2-18-1997)
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2-2-3: CONDUCT OF PARK BOARD BUSINESS:

A. The board of park commissioners shall hold an annual meeting on the second Tuesday of May and a
meeting at least once in each month in each year at such times as the board shall by rule prescribe.
Special meetings may also be held at the call of the president or, in his absence, the vice president,
upon giving to each member of the board at least twenty four (24) hours' notice in writing of the time
and place of holding such meeting.

B. A majority of the entire board shall be necessary to constitute a quorum for the transaction of the
business of the board. (Ord. 96-15, 2-18-1997)

2-2-4: POWERS AND DUTIES:

A. Officers: Except as provided in Montana code 7-16-4228(2), the president, and in the president's

absence the vice president, shall preside at all meetings of the board. (Ord. 96-15, 2-18-1997; amd. 2003

Code)

B. Park Board Minutes: The minutes of the meeting contained in the record book, when approved by the
board, shall be prima facie evidence of the matters and things therein recited in any court of this
state.

C. Park Board Powers And Duties:

1. The board of park commissioners shall have the management and control of all parks belonging to the
city.

2. The board of park commissioners shall have the following powers and be charged with the following
duties:

a. To lay out, establish, improve and maintain parkways, drives and walks in the parks of the city; and to
determine when and what parks shall be opened to the public;

b. To plant, cultivate, maintain and improve all trees and other plants required to be planted, cultivated
and maintained in the parks belonging to the city;

c. If directed by the city council, to plant, cultivate, maintain and improve all trees and other plants
required to be planted, cultivated and maintained in the streets, avenues, boulevards and public places in
the city and for that purpose to establish and maintain nurseries for the growth of trees and plants;

d. Upon receiving approval from the city council, to purchase or otherwise acquire, and sell or otherwise
transfer, real property; to make plats thereof; and to file the same in the office of the city clerk;

e. To provide written comments and recommendations to the city council prior to any action by the city
council to acquire or transfer land used, or to be used, for a city park;

f. To pay all obligations authorized to be incurred by the provisions of this part;

g. To exercise all other powers incident to the duties enjoined by the provisions of this part. (Ord. 96-15,
2-18-1997)

2-2-5: CONTRACTS AND EMPLOYMENT:

A. The board of park commissioners has the following powers and duties:
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1. To employ and discharge workers, laborers, engineers, foresters and others, and to fix their
compensation; and

2. To make all contracts necessary or convenient for carrying out any and all of the powers conferred and
duties enjoined upon the board by this part; provided, however, that any contract having a term of more
than five (5) years must be approved by the city council.

B. All contracts made by the board must be in the name of the city and must be signed by the city clerk
and by the president of the board or, in the president's absence, by the vice president of the board;
provided, however, that any contract having a term of one year or less may be signed by the parks
and recreation director.

C. An order or resolution authorizing the making of any contract may not be passed or adopted except by
a yea and nay vote, which must be recorded in full in the minutes by the city clerk.

D. The board may elect to have all, or certain, personnel decisions made by the mayor, the city manager
or the parks and recreation director pursuant to the policies and regulations governing other city
personnel decisions. (Ord. 96-15, 2-18-1997)
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City of Whitefish, City Clerk's Office
418 E. 2" Street, PO Box 158
Whitefish, Mt 59937
406-863-2400
nlorang@cityofwhitefish.org

March 10, 2015

expires on 6 = = B

As a matter of course, the City will also be advertising this position along with
others also expiring at this time. The deadline to receive letters of application,
and to receive your letter of interest if you want to reapply to serve another term,
is Friday, April 24, 2015. Interviews with the Council will be scheduled for
meetings in May and June. | will call you to set up your specific interview time if
you are re-applying. If you wish, you can complete the blank lines below and
return this notice to me in place of a new letter of interest.

| have enclosed a copy of the ad we will be running.

If you are not planning to ‘re-up’ for your position again, please let me know that
as well.

Thank you, and thank you for your service to the community of Whitefish!

Necile Lorang, CMC
Whitefish City Clerk

To Whitefish City Council:
| am interested in serving another term on

& 7
Daytime Phone # '
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LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES — ORD 10-19, 5§ YEAR TERMS, (Second Wednesday of the Month —7:00 pm)
MAYORAL APPOINTMENTS

Roger Barber 1029 Park Ave 265-6594 6/30/2019

Vice Chair: Anne Shaw Moran PO Box 4472, WF 862-7342 6/30/2016

Secretary: Alison Pomerantz 342 Plantation Dr, Kalispell 314-4882, 617-803-9697 6/30/2018, In School District, out of City
Treasurer: Mary L. Vail PO Box 515, WF 862-3562 0 1

Marge Fisher 750 W. 2™ St, — Suite G, WF 862-1233 6/30/2017
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WHITEFISH COMMUNITY LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

2-14-1: BOARD OF TRUSTEES ESTABLISHED:

There is hereby established a board of trustees to be called the "Whitefish Community Library board
of trustees", hereinafter referred to as the board of trustees. (Ord. 10-19, 12-6-2010)

2-14-2: PURPOSE, POWERS, PROCESSES, AND DUTIES:

As provided by Montana law, the board of trustees shall have exclusive control of the expenditure of
the public library fund, construction or lease of library buildings, and the operation and care of the
library. The board of trustees shall have the powers and duties currently provided in Montana Code
Annotated, section 22-1-309, as amended:

A. Adopt bylaws and rules for its own transaction of business and for the government of the library,
not inconsistent with law;

B. Establish and locate a central public library and may establish branches thereof at such places as
are deemed necessary;

C. Have the power to contract, including the right to contract with regions, counties, cities, school
districts, educational institutions, the state library, and other libraries, to give and receive library
service, through the boards of such regions, counties, and cities and the district school boards,
and to pay out or receive funds to pay costs of such contracts;

D. Have the power to acquire, by purchase, devise, lease or otherwise, and to own and hold real and
personal property in the name of the city or county or both, as the case may be, for the use and
purposes of the library and to sell, exchange or otherwise dispose of property real or personal,
when no longer required by the library and to insure the real and personal property of the library;

E. Pay necessary expenses of trustees of the library staff when on business of the library;

F. Prepare an annual budget, indicating what support and maintenance of the public library will be
required from public funds, for submission to the appropriate agency of the governing body. A
separate budget request shall be submitted for new construction or for capital improvement of
existing library property;

G. Make an annual report to the governing body of the city or county on the condition and operation
of the library, including a financial statement. The trustees shall also provide for the keeping of
such records as shall be required by the Montana state library in its request for an annual report
from the public libraries and shall submit such an annual report to the state library;

H. Have the power to accept gifts, grants, donations, devises, or bequests of property, real or
personal, from whatever source and to expend or hold, work, and improve the same for the
specific purpose of the gift, grant, donation, devise, or bequest. These gifts, grants, donations,
devises, and bequests shall be kept separate from regular library funds and are not subject to
reversion at the end of the fiscal year; and

I. Exercise such other powers, not inconsistent with law, necessary for the effective use and
management of the library. (Ord. 10-19, 12-6-2010)
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2-14-3: MEMBERSHIP:

The board of trustees shall have five (5) trustees. Trustees shall be appointed by the mayor with the
advice and consent of the city council. Four (4) trustees shall reside within the boundaries of the city
of Whitefish and one trustee shall reside within the boundaries of the current school district 44 but
outside the boundaries of the city of Whitefish. Trustees shall receive no compensation. (Ord. 10-19,
12-6-2010)

2-14-4: TERMS OF TRUSTEES:

Trustee terms shall be for five (5) years, although initially the appointments must be made for one,
two (2), three (3), four (4), and five (5) year terms. Annually thereafter, trustees must be appointed
before July 1 of each year, in the same manner as the original appointments for a five (5) year term,
a trustee to take the place of the retiring trustee. Trustees may not serve more than two (2) full terms
in succession. (Ord. 10-19, 12-6-2010)

2-14-5: VACANCY:
Any vacancy on the board of trustees shall be filled for the unexpired term in the same manner as
the original appointment. (Ord. 10-19, 12-6-2010)

2-14-6: ORGANIZATION:

At its first meeting after the initial appointment of the board of trustees, and thereafter at its first
meeting after July 1 of each year, the trustees shall meet and elect a presiding officer and other
officers that they consider necessary for one year terms. (Ord. 10-19, 12-6-2010)
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Subject: Resident board seat

From: robert fitzgerald <rob9fitz@yahoo.com>

Date: 4/27/2015 11:44 AM

To: "nlorang@cityofwhitefish.org" <nlorang@cityofwhitefish.org>

Necile,
| am emailing you conceming the vacant Whitefish Housing Authority Board seat. | am a resident at Mountain View Manor, and Laurie the manager here
keeps insisting that | apply. So here | am. What do | do now?

Blessings,
Robert FitzGerald,
Theoretical Astrologer
Astrological Ages and the Great Astrological End-Time Cycle
Signs of the Times: the End of the World and the Coming Golden Age. 1st World Publishing Co.
" i 2 +Astrological Roots of Gender Roles
An Erotic Genesis. 1st World Publishing Co.
Feminine Masculine Sun: the Cosmic Dimensions of Gender Roles in our Lives and . 1st World Publishing Co.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY ~ MCA 7-15-4431 - City Resident or Within a 10 mile radius — 5 YEAR TERMS - MAYORAL

APPOINTMENTS
TERM EXPIRATION DATE
Ralph Ammondson Apt 222 —Mountain View Manor (Resident) 862-8160 12/31/2015 2 yr. Term
100 E. 4% Street
Vacancy 12/31/2014 2 yr. Term
Myrna Fleming 104 Railway Street 862-3568 12/31/2016 Chairwoman
John Middleton 6475 Hwy 93 S, Ste 17 406-862-7200 12/31/2015
Bill Mulcahy 2 Granite Springs Trail, WF 730-2701 12/31/2018
Vacancy 12/31/2019
Sandra McDonald PO Box 4722 862-9182 12/31/2017 Vice-Chair
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HOUSING AUTHORITY BOARD

MONTANA CODE ANNOTATED 2011

7-15-4431. Appointment of commissioners. (1) An authority consists of seven commissioners
appointed by the mayor. The mayor shall designate the first presiding officer. A commissioner may not
be a city official.

(2) Two of the commissioners must be directly assisted by the housing authority and are known as
resident commissioners. The staff of the housing authority may not involve itself in the nomination or
appointment of resident commissioners, except that the housing authority shall notify all of the
households directly assisted by the housing authority when a resident commissioner position is vacant.

(3) The mayor shall file with the city clerk a certificate of the appointment or reappointment of any
commissioner, and the certificate is conclusive evidence of the proper appointment of the
commissioner.

History: En. Sec. 5, Ch. 140, L. 1935; re-en. Sec. 5309.5, R.C.M. 1935; R.C.M. 1947, 35-105(part); amd. Sec. 2, Ch.
514, L. 1989; amd. Sec. 5, Ch. 472, L. 1997; amd. Sec. 1, Ch. 197, L. 2001.

7-15-4432. Term of office. (1) Subject to subsection (2), the commissioners who are first appointed must
be designated by the mayor to serve for terms of 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 years, respectively, from the date of
their appointment. After the initial appointments, the term of office is 5 years.

(2) The resident commissioners who are first appointed shall serve for terms of 1 and 2 years,
respectively, from the date of their appointment. After the initial appointments, the term of office is 2
years.

(3) A commissioner shall hold office until the commissioner's successor has been appointed and
qualified.

History: En. Sec. 5, Ch. 140, L. 1935; re-en. Sec. 5309.5, R.C.M. 1935; R.C.M. 1947, 35-105(part); amd. Sec. 3, Ch.
514, L. 1989; amd. Sec. 2, Ch. 197, L. 2001.

7-15-4433. Compensation of commissioners. A commissioner may not receive compensation for
services, but is entitled to the necessary expenses, including traveling expenses, incurred in the

discharge of authority duties.

History: En. Sec. 5, Ch. 140, L. 1935; re-en. Sec. 5309.5, R.C.M. 1935; R.C.M. 1947, 35-105(part); amd. Sec. 621,
Ch. 61, L. 2007.

7-15-4434. Vacancies. Vacancies shall be filled for the unexpired term.

History: En. Sec. 5, Ch. 140, L. 1935; re-en. Sec. 5309.5, R.C.M. 1935; R.C.M. 1947, 35-105(part).

City Council Packet May 4, 2015 page 23 of 692



(This page left blank intentionally to separate printed sections)

City Council Packet May 4, 2015 page 24 of 692



CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

The following is a summary of the items to come before the
City Council at its regular session to be held on Monday,
May 4, 2015, at 7:10 p.m. at City Hall, 402 East Second Street.

Ordinance numbers start with 15-06. Resolution numbers start with 15-08

1) CALL TO ORDER

2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3) PRESENTATION - FY14 Audit — Denning, Downey, and Associations (p. 46)

4) COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC — (This time is set aside for the public to comment on items that are

either on the agenda, but not a public hearing or on items not on the agenda. City officials do not respond during these comments, but may
respond or follow-up later on the agenda or at another time. The Mayor has the option of limiting such communications to three minutes
depending on the number of citizens who want to comment and the length of the meeting agenda)

5)

6)

7)

COMMUNICATIONS FROM VOLUNTEER BOARDS

CONSENT AGENDA (The consent agenda is a means of expediting routine matters that require the Council’s action. Debate
does not typically occur on consent agenda items. Any member of the Council may remove any item for debate. Such items will typically
be debated and acted upon prior to proceeding to the rest of the agenda. Ordinances require 4 votes for passage — Section 1-6-2 (E)(3)
WCC)

a)
b)

c)

d)

Minutes from the April 20, 2015 City Council executive and regular sessions (p. 107)
Consideration of approving application from Patti Beck on behalf of Lacy Lake Holdings
LP for Whitefish Lake Lakeshore Permit (#WLP-15-W10) at 1840 Lacy Lane to install a
shore station with no canopy subject to 10 conditions (p. 119)

Consideration of approving application from White Cloud Design on behalf of Walecka
1992 Living Trust for Whitefish Lake Lakeshore Permit (#WLP-15-W11) at 2432 Carver
Bay Road for placement of 9.38 cubic yards of beach gravel subject to 14 conditions (p.
131)

Consideration of approving application from White Cloud Design on behalf of Duncan
Family Trust for Whitefish Lake Lakeshore Permit (#WLP-15-W12) at 2434 Carver Bay
Road for placement of 9.38 cubic yards of beach gravel subject to 14 conditions (p. 140)
Consideration of approving application from Cory Izett on behalf of The 1998 Feeny
Family LLC for Whitefish Lake Lakeshore Permit (#WLP-15-W14) at 1674 West
Lakeshore Drive to move an adjacent ‘I’ dock to the subject property subject to 11
conditions (p. 149)

PUBLIC HEARINGS (Items will be considered for action after public hearings) (Resolution No. 07-33 establishes a 30 minute
time limit for applicant’s land use presentations. Ordinances require 4 votes for passage — Section 1-6-2 (E)(3) WCC))

a)

Consideration of a request from the Iron Horse Homeowners Association for a
modification to their subdivision to permit a reconfiguration of their guardhouse on the
side of Iron Horse Drive to a welcome center in a median in the center of the road (p.
163)
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8)

9)

b)

d)

Resolution No. 15-___; A Resolution of Intention of the City Council of the City of
Whitefish, Montana, indicating its intent to adopt the Whitefish Highway 93 West
Corridor Plan as an amendment to the 2007 Whitefish City-County Master Plan

(2007 Growth Policy) (p. 246)

Ordinance No. 15-_ ; An Ordinance amending Whitefish City Code Section 7-3-9, to
require vendor special permits to sell any goods, wares, merchandise, food or services
within the waters two hundred feet (200°) from Whitefish City Beach, City designated
swimming areas and City docks (First Reading) (p. 489)

Ordinance No. 15-___; An Ordinance amending Zoning Regulations in Whitefish City
Code Section 811-2L-1 WB-3 General Business District, Intent and Purpose, clarifying
the boundaries of the Old Town Central District and Old Town Railway District to make
them consistent with the Old Town Central District and Old Town Railway District
boundaries of the Architectural Review Standards (First Reading) (p. 494)

Resolution No. 15- ;A Resolution amending the 2009 Weed Management Plan and
approving the 2015 Whitefish Weed Management Plan, Invasive Species Guide and
Resource Manual (p. 506)

COMMUNICATIONS FROM PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

a)

Central Avenue Water Line Replacement Project (3" Street to 6™ Street) — design options
and authorization to bid (p. 555)

COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY MANAGER

a)
b)

c)

d)
€)

f)

Written report enclosed with the packet. Questions from Mayor or Council? (p. 563)
Other items arising between April 29" and May 4"

Ordinance No. 15-___; An Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 95-15 and Ordinance No.
11-13, the administrative ordinance governing the collection and reporting of Resort Tax
revenues, providing for an increase in the Resort Tax from 2% to 3% pursuant to voter
approval and revising the uses of the Resort Tax for the increased rate (First Reading) (p.
568)

Resolution No. 15-___; A Resolution establishing annual goals for the City (p. 585)
Consideration of approving a contract with AE2S Consulting Engineers for the Water and
Wastewater rate study (p. 588)

Quarterly Financial Report - 3 Quarter FY15 (p. 596)

10) COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR AND CITY COUNCILORS

a)
b)

Discussion and consideration of making comments on the Tongue River Railroad project
Draft Environmental Impact Statement (p. 609)

Appointments — consideration of any appointments not made during Special Session prior
to tonight’s Regular Meeting

11) ADJOURNMENT (Resolution 08-10 establishes 11:00 p.m. as end of meeting unless extended to 11:30 by majority)
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The following Principles for Civil Dialogue are adopted on 2/20/2007
for use by the City Council and by all boards, committees and
personnel of the City of Whitefish:

o We provide a safe environment where individual
perspectives  are respected, heard, and
acknowledged.

o We are responsible for respectful and courteous
dialogue and participation.

o We respect diverse opinions as a means to find
solutions based on common ground.

o We encourage and value broad community
participation.

o We encourage creative approaches to engage
public participation.

o We value informed decision-making and take
personal responsibility to educate and be educated.

o We believe that respectful public dialogue fosters
healthy community relationships, understanding,
and problem-solving.

o We acknowledge, consider and respect the natural
tensions created by collaboration, change and
transition.

. We follow the rules and guidelines established for
each meeting.

Adopted by Resolution 07-09

February 20, 2007
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April 29, 2015

The Honorable Mayor Muhlfeld and City Councilors
City of Whitefish
Whitefish, Montana

Mayor Muhlfeld and City Councilors:

Monday, May 4, 2015 City Council Agenda Report

There will be a work session on Tuesday at 5:00 p.m. for a meeting with the Local
Government Study Commission followed by interviews for appointments to vacancies on
Boards and Committees.  Food will be provided.

The regular Council meeting will begin at 7:10 p.m.

CONSENT AGENDA (The consent agenda is a means of expediting routine matters that require the Council’s action.
Debate does not typically occur on consent agenda items. Any member of the Council may remove any item for debate. Such items
will typically be debated and acted upon prior to proceeding to the rest of the agenda. Ordinances require 4 votes for passage —
Section 1-6-2 (E)(3) WCC)

a)
b)

c)

d)

Minutes from the April 20, 2015 City Council executive and regular sessions (p. 107)
Consideration of approving application from Patti Beck on behalf of Lacy Lake
Holdings LP for Whitefish Lake Lakeshore Permit (#WLP-15-W10) at 1840 Lacy
Lane to install a shore station with no canopy subject to 10 conditions (p. 119)
Consideration of approving application from White Cloud Design on behalf of
Walecka 1992 Living Trust for Whitefish Lake Lakeshore Permit (#WLP-15-W11) at
2432 Carver Bay Road for placement of 9.38 cubic yards of beach gravel subject to 14
conditions (p. 131)

Consideration of approving application from White Cloud Design on behalf of
Duncan Family Trust for Whitefish Lake Lakeshore Permit (#WLP-15-W12) at 2434
Carver Bay Road for placement of 9.38 cubic yards of beach gravel subject to 14
conditions (p. 140)

Consideration of approving application from Cory lzett on behalf of The 1998 Feeny
Family LLC for Whitefish Lake Lakeshore Permit (#WLP-15-W14) at 1674 West
Lakeshore Drive to move an adjacent ‘I’ dock to the subject property subject to 11
conditions (p. 149)
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RECOMMENDATION: Staff respectfully recommends the City Council approve the
Consent Agenda.

Item a is an administrative matter; items b-e are quasi-judicial matters.

PUBLIC HEARINGS (Items will be considered for action after public hearings) (Resolution No. 07-33 establishes a 30
minute time limit for applicant’s land use presentations. Ordinances require 4 votes for passage — Section 1-6-2 (E)(3) WCC))

a) Consideration of a request from the Iron Horse Homeowners Association for a
modification to their subdivision to permit a reconfiguration of their guardhouse on
the side of Iron Horse Drive to a welcome center in a median in the center of the road
(p. 163)

From Senior Planner Wendy Compton-Ring’s transmittal memo:

Summary of Requested Action (Updated Plan 4/22/15): The Iron Horse
Homeowners’ Association is proposing to remove the existing guard house and replace
it with a single story welcome center in a landscape median in the center of Iron Horse
Drive. The landscape median in the center of the road with this current design is
considerably larger than the previous proposal. This work will also include
consolidating two roads on the south side of Iron Horse Drive into one road to the east
of the welcome center, provide four parallel parking spaces within the landscape
median to the east of the welcome center (two spaces on each side of the road) and
provide a golf cart crossing with bulb-outs to the east of the welcome center. The
location of the project is within the Iron Horse Drive right-of-way, a private road open
to the public.

This packet includes updated information (narrative, letter from Traffic Engineer Bob
Abelin, Email from Fire Marshal Tom Kennelly, revised site plan, perspectives — uphill
and downhill and revised building elevations) and all the information from the previous
Council packet.

Background Information (December 2014 Plan):
Planning & Building Department Recommendation: Staff recommended to not
approve the reconfigured entrance and identified Findings of Fact to support the denial.

Public Hearing (Planning Board 1/15/15): The President of the HOA spoke at the
public hearing on January 15, 2015 in support of the request and three members of the
public also spoke in support of the request. One member of the public spoke not in
support of the request and felt it may be construed as not welcoming the public, which
was an important aspect of the project. The minutes for this item are attached as part
of this packet.

Planning Board Action: The Whitefish Planning Board met on January 15, 2015 to

conduct the public hearing. Following the hearing, the Planning Board recommended
to not approve the entrance modifications as recommended in the staff report and
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adopted the staff report as findings of fact (4-3, Stein, Laidlaw, Ellis voting in
opposition).

Public Hearing (City Council 2/17/15): The President of the HOA and his consultant
spoke at the Council’s public hearing on February 17, 2015 in support of the request
and eleven members of the public also spoke; nine members in support, one not in
support and one with questions. The minutes from the Council meeting are attached as
part of this packet.

City Council Action (2/17/15): The City Council met on February 17, 2015 to conduct
the public hearing. Following the hearing, the Council tabled the request until April 6,
2015 (4-2, Frandsen, Hildner voting in opposition). In making this request, the Council
asked the applicant to address a number of items including: intent of the project, is it
only a safety issue or are there other goals with the project, will the proposal accomplish
their goals, staffing of the information center, and concerns with bicyclists riding
shoulder to shoulder.

City Council Action (4/6/15): The City Council met on April 6, 2015 to continue the
public hearing. At the hearing, the applicant requested additional time to refine their
proposal and ensure their consultant team would be present for the Council meeting.
The Council tabled the request until May 4, 2015.

Updated Plan (dated 4/22/15):
The applicant has amended their proposal in response to Council questions and
concerns identified on February 17, 2015.

Parking for Users of the Welcome Center.
The Council was concerned with the location of the parking for the welcome center as
it was located on the opposite side of the travel lane from the welcome center.

HOA Response. While the building continues to be located in the center of the
landscaping island, the parking for the users of the building has been located in the
center landscape island. This will be safer for those wishing to stop to obtain
information. The previous proposal would have required pedestrians to cross the travel
lane.

Traffic Calming Measures Employed. Were they adequate? Would they have the effect
they were trying to achieve? How would this solve the concern with bicyclists traveling
shoulder to shoulder?

The Council was not convinced the project, as proposed, would provide traffic calming,
which was one of the described goals of the project.

HOA Response. The applicant hired a traffic engineer to review the traffic calming
measures to be used with the project. They are incorporating neckdown/curb bulbs,
narrowed travel lanes, mid-block median, chicanes and a substantially larger
landscaped median. The neckdown/curb bulbs are located at the golf cart path to the
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east of the median. The travel lanes have been reduced in width to 14-feet. The
previous proposal had each of the travel lanes at 20-feet wide plus additional width
adjacent to the welcome center for drivers to stop and vehicles to drive around. In the
packet are comments from the Fire Department with their comments to ensure the 14-
foot width will work for emergency services. Chicanes are designed into the landscape
median. These require the driver of a vehicle to reduce speed in order to make a slight
turn while driving. The view is not a straight lane which can cause drivers to increase
their speed.

Architectural Design of the Building.
The Council requested additional information about the design of the building.

HOA Response. The applicant included a revised building drawing. The new drawing
does not include a window for vehicles to pull up to, but a front porch.

Staff Analysis (Updated Plan — 4/22/15):

Staff appreciates the updated plan and the information from the Traffic Engineer. The
plan better represents the traffic calming needed in this busy area — especially with the
substantially larger landscape median and narrower travel lanes. As stated in the
January 8, 2015 staff report, staff is supportive of the safety measures to calm traffic,
but we continue to be concerned with the security building being located to the center
of the road. As staff stated in the January staff report and reiterated to the Council in
February, by placing a building in the center of the road, it gives the appearance that
the roads and subdivision are not open to the public.

Council will recall the Resolution adopted in October 2014 establishing a policy on
gated communities within the City limits. The policy states: “No subdivision or other
residential neighborhood shall gate its streets off from public access. No features
temporary or otherwise shall give the impression to the public of a gated
neighborhood.” (emphasis added) Staff is concerned the building in the center of the
road ‘gives the impression’ of a gated neighborhood. As such, staff is not in support
of the relocation of the building to the center of the road.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff respectfully recommends that the City Council, after
considering the public testimony, Planning Board recommendation, and staff
recommendation, not approve the changes to the Iron Horse entrance and adopt the
Findings of Fact in staff report WPP 97-01A, as recommended by the Whitefish
Planning Board.

If the Council disagrees, Planning staff has offered two suggested conditions of
approval and direction to amend Finding of Fact #6. This information can be found
within the January 8, 2015 staff report within the packet.

This item is a quasi-judicial matter.
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b) Resolution No. 15-___; A Resolution of Intention of the City Council of the City of
Whitefish, Montana, indicating its intent to adopt the Whitefish Highway 93 West
Corridor Plan as an amendment to the 2007 Whitefish City-County Master Plan
(2007 Growth Policy) (p. 246)

From Planning and Building Director Dave Taylor’s staff report:

Enclosed in your latest packet is a fresh copy of the Highway 93 West Corridor Plan
with the changes the council directed by the Council on April 20, To more clearly
show the focus of the requested changes, a mark-up draft of Appendix D is attached to
this memo in the packet. The council also had several questions, which I will address
in this memo. It should be noted that the draft zoning districts will need to come back
through the Planning Board and City Council for further refinement prior to them being
adopted in the zoning code.

With regard to the potential addition of the conditional use of ‘Grocery stores, not to
exceed 4,000 square feet’ to the WI-T proposed zoning district, staff researched the
footprints of both Markus Foods and Alpine Village Market. Wendy was able to
contact Duane Reisch, Markus Foods owner, and former owner of Alpine Village
Market. He provided this information:

Markus Foods: 12,000 sq. ft.
Alpine Village Market: 4,500 sqg. ft.

We believe 4,000 square feet would work for a small market, although if there is an
assisted living facility built on the Idaho Timber site, a small grocery store might also
include an accessory pharmacy, which might necessitate a larger number such as 6,000
square feet. Grocery Stores are not currently listed, so a motion would be need to be
made to add them to the list of conditional uses in the WI-T.

Another question that was asked was what are the typical building footprints in Area
B? Staff had proposed bulk and scale standards requiring a Conditional Use Permit for
buildings with footprints over 7,500 square feet, matching our downtown WB-3
requirement. The WB-2 requires CUP’s for buildings over 15,000 square feet. Staff
used State CAMA data to research footprint size — however these numbers do not
include attached car-ports, etc., just living space. A map showing many of footprint
dimensions in both Area B and Area A is attached.

In Area B, many of the existing older rental house residences in Area B are fairly small
— 700 to 900 square feet. Many of those old ‘dam house’ type buildings are being
removed and replaced by multi-family or mixed use. Newer mixed-use buildings along
Area B include the following:

Mike Jensen’s building (1200 sq ft)

Paul Wells (1200 sq ft)
Hurley’s apartment building (2400 sq ft)
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D.A. Davidson building by the bridge (1,800 sq ft)

Conversely, across the street in Area A, average buildings are typically larger, even
though the lots are much smaller. We have the following buildings:

Barnes Service Station (2546 sq ft, not including gas canopy)
Office building just north of service station (1250 sq ft)

Vet clinic (2058 sq ft)

Ryan Zinke’s house (2058 sq ft)

Apartments three lots south of Karrow (2760 sq ft)

There is also a five-plex in Area A at the corner of Good Avenue that exceeds 3000
square feet, but the exact footprint could not be obtained accurately.

For bulk and scale, a conditional use permit threshold should be set for buildings
predominantly larger than the existing, but not force the majority of projected
developments to have to go through cumbersome public hearings. The reason we might
want a higher threshold than the existing building footprints is to encourage the types
of uses envisioned by the corridor plan. With a new street, existing utilities, and
available police and fire protection, allowing a square footage threshold within the
acceptable parameters of the plan seems prudent. Therefore we recommend the
threshold be set in the range of 3,000 square feet to 5,000 square feet in WT-3 for when
a CUP would be required.

Finally, a question was raised with regard to lot coverage in the WT-3 district.
Currently the WR-3 zoning has a 40% lot coverage maximum. 70% was the number in
the draft plan, which we agree is too high. Increasing it slightly from 40% seems
warranted when you consider that outbuildings for material storage may be necessary
for artisan manufacturing uses. Therefore we are recommending a 50% lot coverage
standard for the WT-3.

There is one other item the council could discuss. The plan calls for future rezoning of
Area B and Idaho Timber to the draft transitional zones be initiated by property owners
on a case by case basis. If the council feels it would be more consistent with the plan
for the city to make a more comprehensive zoning change once the new zones are
adopted, the plan implementation chapter could be modified to include that as a staff
priority.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff respectfully recommends the City Council, after
considering the public testimony, Planning Board recommendation, and staff
recommendation, adopt A Resolution of Intention of the City Council of the City of
Whitefish, Montana, indicating its intent to adopt the Whitefish Highway 93 West
Corridor Plan as an amendment to the 2007 Whitefish City-County Master Plan
(2007 Growth Policy)

This item is a legislative matter.
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¢) Ordinance No. 15-__; An Ordinance amending Whitefish City Code Section 7-3-9,
to require vendor special permits to sell any goods, wares, merchandise, food or
services within the waters two hundred feet (200”) from Whitefish City Beach, City
designated swimming areas and City docks (First Reading) (p. 489)

From Parks and Recreation Director Maria Butts staff report:

The Whitefish City Council held work sessions on June 16, 2014 and November 3,
2014 regarding proposed regulations of commercial activities on Whitefish Lake.
Discussions during both work sessions identified concerns and potential solutions for
a multitude of issues, such as launching and permitting, congestion and safety,
commercial vending on water, commercial vending on and around City Beach, sign
permitting, educational signage, zoning, enforcement, and parking. As well, the
Parks and Recreation Director with Council representation held two work group
meetings with a group of members from both the community and city staff. On April
6, 2015 Council gave direction to staff to seek a recommendation from the Park
Board of Commissioners for the regulation of commercial activity on and within 200’
of City Beach. During the April 14, 2015 Park Board meeting, the Park Board of
Commissioners unanimously approved to amend 7-3-9 of the Whitefish City Code to
include no vending in the waters within 200" of Whitefish City Beach, and the roped
swimming areas and docks, to match language previously established in 7-3-5 C.4. of
the Whitefish City Code.

Currently, 7-3-9 of the City Code reads, “Vendors of any kind or nature are hereby
prohibited and it is declared unlawful for such vendors to hawk or sell or attempt to
sell any goods, wares, merchandise, food or services within the boundaries of any of
the City’s public parks except by permit authorized and obtained from the director of
the parks and recreation department, or in his or her absence, and individual
designated by the director.”

7-3-5 C.4. of the City Code reads, “The use or consumption of alcoholic beverages
and the possession of an open container of an alcoholic beverage shall be lawful and
permitted as follows: [...] 4. The consumption of alcoholic beverages in compliance
with state law on the surface waters of Whitefish Lake, excluding the public area
known as Whitefish city beach, the waters within two hundred feet (200°) of
Whitefish city beach, and the roped swimming areas and docks.”

RECOMMENDATION: Staff respectfully recommends the City Council, after
considering the public testimony and staff recommendation, approve An Ordinance
amending Whitefish City Code Section 7-3-9, to require vendor special permits to sell
any goods, wares, merchandise, food or services within the waters two hundred feet
(200’) from Whitefish City Beach, City designated swimming areas and City docks
(First Reading).

This item is a legislative matter.
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d) Ordinance No. 15-___; An Ordinance amending Zoning Regulations in Whitefish

City Code Section §11-2L -1 WB-3 General Business District, Intent and Purpose,
clarifying the boundaries of the Old Town Central District and Old Town Railway
District to make them consistent with the Old Town Central District and Old Town
Railway District boundaries of the Architectural Review Standards (First Reading) (p.
494)

From Planning and Building Director Dave Taylor’s staff report:

Summary of Requested Action: This application is a request by the city of Whitefish
for a zoning text amendment to amend §11-2L-1 WB-3 General Business District,
Intent and Purpose, clarifying the boundaries of the Old Town Central District and Old
Town Railway District to make them consistent with the Old Town Central District and
Old Town Railway District boundaries of the Architectural Review Standards.

Planning Board Recommendation: The Whitefish City-County Planning Board held
a public hearing on April 16, 2015. Following this hearing, the Planning Board
unanimously recommended approval of the amendments.

City Staff Recommendation: Staff recommended approval of the text amendment to
the Planning Board.

Public Hearing: At the public hearing, no one from the public commented on this
item.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff respectfully recommends the City Council, after
considering the public testimony, Planning Board recommendation, and staff
recommendation, adopt an Ordinance amending Zoning Regulations in Whitefish
City Code Section §11-2L-1 WB-3 General Business District, Intent and Purpose,
clarifying the boundaries of the Old Town Central District and Old Town Railway
District to make them consistent with the Old Town Central District and Old Town
Railway District boundaries of the Architectural Review Standards (First Reading).

This item is a legislative matter.

Resolution No. 15- ;A Resolution amending the 2009 Weed Management Plan
and approving the 2015 Whitefish Weed Management Plan, Invasive Species Guide
and Resource Manual (p. 506)

From Parks and Recreation Director Maria Butts staff report:

The City of Whitefish Parks and Recreation Department manages noxious weeds
within city parks and properties. Methods for weed management have been identified
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within the Weed Management Plan, adopted in 2009. During the 2014 July and
August Park Board meetings, the Park Board of Commissioners discussed the weed
management plan specific to challenges arising at Soroptimist Park. Both meetings
offered a public comment on the topic. During the July meeting there were no public
comments. During the August meeting there was public comment from Jan
Metzmaker. Mrs. Metzmaker had held a neighborhood potluck to discuss weed
concerns with the neighbors of Soroptimist Park. Mrs. Metzmaker stated that the
majority of neighbors desired the park to be spray-free and offered suggestions of
maintenance, such as more frequent mowing. During the August Park Board
meeting, the Park Board moved unanimously to repeal Resolution 09-06, allowing for
the Parks and Recreation Department to oversee weed management as needed. In
September of 2014, the Parks and Recreation Department brought the Park Board’s
recommendation to repeal the 2009 Resolution adopting the Weed Management Plan
to the Whitefish City Council. At that time, Council directed staff to revise the Weed
Management Plan, stating that there was value to the plan as a whole and that a
revision would be more effective than a repeal of the plan.

The Whitefish Weed Advisory Committee met in September to begin the initial
revisions of the Weed Management Plan and generated the final revisions in April
2015. Contextual revisions include allowing the document to become a living
document that may be evaluated and updated regularly by the Parks and Recreation
Department with approval by the Park Board of Commissioners; a statement of intent
to abide by safe practices established by the EPA and Department of Agriculture;
updated parkland acreage information; replacement of information considering a
competitive bid process with information identifying in-house practices; revisions
identifying the name change of the Weed Advisory Committee to the Weed
Educational Outreach Committee; the replacement of “Dead Eye Site” and
“Experimental Mowing” practices with practices identical to all other city parks; and
the addition of Whitefish City Code 4-3-1 regarding weed management within the
city. After all revisions had been reviewed by the Weed Advisory Committee, the
committee unanimously approved the revised plan. During the April 14, 2015 Park
Board meeting, the revisions to the plan were presented to the Park Board of
Commissioners and were unanimously approved. These revisions have been
provided in red-line format in your packet for your review.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff respectfully recommends the City Council, after
considering the public testimony and staff recommendation, adopt a Resolution
amending the 2009 Weed Management Plan and approving the 2015 Whitefish Weed
Management Plan, Invasive Species Guide and Resource Manual.

This item is a legislative matter.

COMMUNICATIONS FROM PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR
a) Central Avenue Water Line Replacement Project (3 Street to 6™ Street) — design
options and authorization to bid (p. 555)
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From Interim Public Works Director Karin Hilding’s staff report:

The Public Works Department and our engineering design consultant, WGM Group,
are wrapping up the design phase and requesting authorization to move forward with
construction bidding for the Central Avenue Water Project. This project includes the
replacement of water main from 3" Street to 6™ Street on Central Avenue. Drawings
showing the project overview are attached. Design of the Central Avenue Water
Project was started in August of 2014,

This project includes the replacement of an old cast iron water main with lead joints
that has had several leaks in the past few years. It can be difficult to access the water
main for repairs since this section of Central Avenue was constructed with a concrete
base, similar to the other downtown blocks. Over the past 10 years the City has been
called out to fix about 8 water main leaks. In addition, about seven of the old water
service lines had to be replaced due to leakage. At the south end of Central Avenue
the road is slumping towards the river. TD&H Engineering has been monitoring the
movement of the slump at the south end of Central Avenue over the past few years.
They have recommended that the City eventually dead end Central Avenue at 6™
Street. But this is a topic that we plan to discuss with the Council at another time.
With the Central Avenue Water Improvements we will dead end the water line at the
south end of Central Avenue to eliminate the risk of a future water break in the slump
area.

This project is considered a priority by our Construction and Maintenance Supervisor,
Jay Barranger, because of the history of water leakage and the presence of old lead
joints. The main was probably constructed in the 1920’s or 1930’s.

The public works department has postponed major repairs to the road surface until the
water main has been replaced. The poor condition of the block of Central between 3™
and 4™ Street contrasts with the adjacent reconstructed downtown blocks.
Construction is planned to take place in the fall shoulder season.

A complicating factor, that Rhonda Fitzgerald brought up at the last meeting, is that
reconstruction of the block of Central Avenue between 3" and 4" Street is a priority
of the 2015 Downtown Business District Master Plan Update. In fact, | brought up
the water project at meetings with Crandall and Arambula, and suggested that they
include this block as a priority project. The problem is that the engineers have not
designed a reconstruction of this block and the City has not yet allocated funds for
reconstruction. Therefore, in order to add reconstruction of the 3" to 4™ Street block
to the project, we would have to postpone the project a year and add approximately
$477,000 to the project budget (construction plus engineering).

The Council has a few options.
Option one would be to move forward with bidding the water project for construction

this fall. This would allow the trench a year to settle prior to reconstructing the road.
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We would then have the engineer move forward with design of a total reconstruction
of the 300 block of Central, including a tabled intersection at 4" Street. Completing
the water improvement project first would benefit and shorten the schedule for the
reconstruction of the 300 block during the shoulder season. However, splitting the
project would add some mobilization costs. Our design consultant believes the
additional mobilization costs would be minimal.

. Option 2 would be to construct the water improvement project, patch the trenches and
have our city crew pave over the driving lanes on the 3™ to 4" Street block (during
the 2015 shoulder season).

. Option 3 would be to postpone the water project, expand the engineering contract to
include a total reconstruction of the 300 block, and do the entire project next year
during the 2016 shoulder season.

The Public Works Department recommends that we move forward with the bidding
2015 Central Avenue Water Project. In addition to saving our crews the time and
expense of addressing water leaks, it would limit the liability of water damage to
commercial businesses on this block. We would recommend that the Council
consider reconstruction of the 300 block of Central Avenue during the following year.

Financial Requirement

Option 1. The engineer’s pre-bid construction cost estimate of $ 408,040 includes
water main replacement with trench patches on Central Avenue from 3" to 6" Street.
The remaining engineering and construction management costs of $8,000 will bring
the total project cost to about $416,000 (the design is 95% complete). The Public
Works Department would do most the water line construction inspection in-house.
The work is expected to occur in FY16. All costs will be paid out of the Water Fund,
as proposed in the FY16 budget. The $477,000 cost of the 300 Central block
reconstruction would then be budgeted for the following year.

Option 2. Paving over the driving lanes of the 300 block would add about $6,000 for
about 88 tons of asphalt. Therefore, the total cost of the improvements would be
$416,000 plus $6,000 or $422,000.

Option 3. A combined Central Avenue Water Project (3" to 6™ Street) plus
reconstruction of the 300 Block would cost about $416,000 (water) plus $477,000 for
a total of $893,000 (see the attached estimates). The $416,000 cost is budgeted to
come out of the water fund and $250,000 is budgeted in the FY16 street fund for
Central Avenue. Therefore, to fund the combined project the Council would need to
allocate an additional $227,000 from TIF towards the reconstruction.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff respectfully requests the City Council approve
moving forward with construction bidding for the Central Avenue Water Project.
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The department could then bring a proposed contract amendment to add engineering
design for the reconstruction of the 300 block of Central Avenue to a future meeting.

This item is a legislative matter.

COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY MANAGER

a) Written report enclosed with the packet. Questions from Mayor or Council? (p. 563)

b) Other items arising between April 29" and May 4"

¢) Ordinance No. 15-__ ; An Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 95-15 and Ordinance
No. 11-13, the administrative ordinance governing the collection and reporting of
Resort Tax revenues, providing for an increase in the Resort Tax from 2% to 3%
pursuant to voter approval and revising the uses of the Resort Tax for the increased
rate (First Reading) (p. 568)

At the February 17, 2015 meeting, the City Council approved Resolution No. 15-04
which called for an election on April 28, 2015 to increase the Resort Tax from 2% to
3% in order to protect and preserve water quality and quantity, including the source
drinking water supply for the municipal water system of the City of Whitefish,
through the acquisition of a conservation easement or other interests in and around
Haskill Basin.

We verified with the Flathead County Elections Office that the referendum to increase
the Resort Tax from 2% to 3% passed at the April 28" election by a margin of 1,718
(83.72%) in favor to 334 (16.28%) opposed.

The attached Ordinance will revise the City Code in order to implement the increase of
the Resort Tax from 2% to 3%.

One other aspect that | decided to try to put into the code is how we have allocated
the 2% Resort Tax in the past to the various uses, because vendors withhold 5% of
the 2% Resort Tax and will continue to withhold 5% of the 3% Resort

Tax. Therefore, we only receive as revenues, 95% of the 2% tax currently and will
receive only 95% of the future 3% tax. You can see in the ordinance how we used
to allocate the revenues as follows:

Property taxes — 25% of 2% equals 26.32% of 95% of 2% collected (i.e. divide .25
by .95)

Street — 65% of 2% equals 68.42% of 95% of 2% collected

Parks — 5% of 2% equals 5.26% of 95% of 2% collected

The percentages in the draft ordinance do add up to 100% for allocation of revenues
received.

Because the purpose of an SRF loan is for water quality and water supply, we can get
a SRF loan for the funding of the Haskill Basin Conservation Easement. . We will
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d)

have to pledge both the Resort Tax revenues and water revenues as security for the SRF
loan. If Resort Tax revenues are not enough, we will make up any deficits from water
revenues and possible rate increases, but the pro forma estimates that we did two
months ago show that, over the 10 year period, Resort Tax revenues should be
sufficient.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff respectfully recommends that the City Council
approve an Ordinance amending Ordinance no. 95-15 and Ordinance no. 11-13, the
administrative ordinance governing the collection and reporting of Resort Tax
revenues, providing for an increase in the Resort Tax from 2% to 3% pursuant to voter
approval and revising the uses of the Resort Tax for the increased rate.

This item is a legislative matter.

Resolution No. 15- ; A Resolution establishing annual goals for the City (p. 585)

Since 1999, the Mayor and City Council have met in annual retreats or work sessions
with the City Manager to discuss and establish short and long term goals. These
goals are important in order to prepare the annual budget and work plan for the
subsequent fiscal year.

Mayor Muhlfeld and City Council members, met in a work session on April 6, 2015
with the City Manager, Assistant City Manager/Finance Director, and some
Department Directors to review and set priorities among the choices for goals. In that
work session, the Mayor and City Council established ten short term goals, four long
term goals, eight on-going goals, and eight additional goals generated by and for the
city’s staff.

Until the budget is established, it is difficult to quantify the cost of resources for these
goals. Most of the initial costs incurred for the goals will be city staff time to research,
evaluate, and make recommendations on options for the Mayor and City Council.
Ultimately, many of these projects involve capital and operating budgets to implement.
As options are presented to the Mayor and City Council in the future, these options will
typically have cost estimates prepared at that time.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff respectfully recommends that the City Council
approve the resolution establishing short and long term goals.

This item is a legislative matter.
Consideration of approving a contract with AE2S Consulting Engineers for the Water
and Wastewater rate study (p. 588)

From Finance Director Dana Smith’s staff report:
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The City is anticipating new regulatory standards to be implemented by the Montana
Department of Environmental Quality, which cannot be met with the existing City
wastewater treatment plant. Therefore, a new treatment facility will be required under
a mandated compliance schedule in future years. The exact timing and extent of the
required improvements is unknown at this time, but are expected to provided later
this year. The water and wastewater financial plan and rate structure study was
identified as an important step to determine the future funding of this and other future
projects. The project also provides the City an opportunity to have the rate structure
reviewed to ensure the City is charging fair and equitable rates to all users of the
water and/or wastewater systems.

The City provided notice of this study to the public through a request for
qualifications with a deadline of December 22, 2014. Six firms submitted
qualifications by the deadline, which included:

Springsted Incorporated

FCS Group

Murtagh Engineering

HDR Engineering

AE2S

Carl Brown Consulting

The selection committee consisting of Councilor Jen Frandsen, John Wilson (later
replaced by Sherri Baccaro), Greg Acton, and | decided to interview the three top
firms including Carl Brown Consulting, HDR Engineering, and AE2S. All three
interviews took place on January 23, 2015. The selection committee was able to
discuss the submittals and interviews immediately following the last interview of the
day and came to a unanimous decision. The selection committee unanimously
decided to recommend that the City Council select AE2S as the consulting firm for
the Water and Wastewater Financial Plan and Rate Study.

A contract and scope of services (included in the packet) has been negotiated
between AE2S and City staff in an amount not to exceed $69,900 that would end on
January 31, 2016. The City Attorney, Mary VanBuskirk has reviewed the contract.
The cost of this project will be split evenly among the Water and Wastewater Funds,
which have adequate appropriations available in the current fiscal year and the
proposed FY16 budget.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff respectfully recommends that the City Council select
AE2S as the consulting firm for the Water and Wastewater Financial Plan and Rate
Study and authorize the City Manager to sign the contract in an amount not to exceed
$69,900 for these services.

This item is a legislative matter.

f) Quarterly Financial Report - 3 Quarter FY15 (p. 596)
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Finance Director Dana Smith has a comprehensive third quarter financial report in the
packet.

COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR AND CITY COUNCILORS

a) Discussion and consideration of making comments on the Tongue River Railroad
project Draft Environmental Impact Statement (p. 609)

b) Appointments — consideration of any appointments not made during Special Session
prior to tonight’s Regular Meeting

ADJOURNMENT

Sincerely,

Chuck Stearns, City Manager
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"Cheat Sheet" for Robert's Rules

M otion In Order Second Debatable? | Amendable? | Vote Required Can be
When Required? for Adoption | reconsidered?
Another has
the Floor?

Majority
Main Motion N Y Y Y unless other spec'd Y

by Bylaws
Adjournment N Y N Y Majority N
Recess (no question
before the body) N Y N Y Majority N
Recess (question
before the body) N Y Y Y Majority N
Accept Report N Y Y Y Majority Y
Amend Pending If motion to be
M otion N Y amended is Y Majority Y

debatable
Amend an
Amendment of N Y See above N Majority Y
Pending Motion
Change from
Agenda to Take a N Y N N Two-thirds N
Matter out of Order
Limit Debate Yes, but not if
Previous Question / N Y N Y Two-thirds vote taken on
; pending motion.
Question
Limit Debate or
extend limits for N Y Y Y Two-thirds Y
duration of meeting
Demand by a

Division of Y N N N single member N
Assembly (Roll Call) compels

division
Division of
Queg Motion N Y N Y Majority N
Point of Y N N N Vote is not N
I nformation taken
Point of Order /
Procedure Y N N N Vote is not N

taken
Lay on Table N Y N N Majority N
Takefrom Table N Y N N Majority N
Suspend the Rules
as applied to rules of N Y N N Two-thirds N
order or, take motion out
of order
Refer (Commit) N Y Y N Majority Neg. vote
only
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Chuck Stearns
Text Box
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CITY OF WHITEFISH
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

The discussion and analysis of the City of Whitefish’s financial performance provides an
overview of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. The City
encourages readers to consider the information presented in conjunction with the City’s financial
statements and accompanying notes.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e  The total assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources at June 30, 2014 by $79,577,473 as reported in the statement
of net position.

e  The total fiscal year end governmental fund balance was $14,026,287 as reported in the
balance sheet.

e  The unassigned general fund balance at fiscal year-end was $1,332,689.
EXPLANATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements, which are comprised of three components:

1. Government-wide financial statements
2. Fund Financial Statements
3. Notes to the Financial Statements

Other required supplementary information is also included at the end of the financial section.

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City’s finances using the accrual basis of accounting.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s (a) assets and deferred
outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and deferred inflows of resources with the difference
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases and decreases in net position may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the City’s financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information reflecting how the City’s net position has
changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. delinquent taxes and earned, but unused vacation leave).

2.
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The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees
and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general
government, public safety, social and economic services, public works, planning, culture and
recreation, housing and economic development, and debt service. The business-type activities of
the City include water, wastewater, and solid waste operations.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However,
unlike the government-wide statements, the fund financial statements are prepared on the
modified accrual basis. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized
when measurable and available and expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is
incurred, with the exception of long-term debt and similar long-term items which are recorded
when due. Therefore, the focus is on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources as
well as on the balance of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.

Since the focus of the governmental funds is on near-term resources, it is useful to compare the
information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide statements. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison.

Proprietary Funds - There are two types of proprietary funds: enterprise and internal service
funds. The City maintains only enterprise funds, which are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide statements. The City uses
enterprise funds to account for its water, sewer, and solid waste operations.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government and are not included in the government-wide financial statements
as the resources of these funds are not available to support the City’s own programs.

The Volunteer Fire pension trust fund is used as a clearing account for assets held by the City
until the funds are disbursed to the Fire Department Relief Association. Two administrative
agency funds for payroll and claims are also used as clearing accounts.

Notes to Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional narrative and information that is
essential to obtaining a complete understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and
fund financial statements.
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Other Required Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, certain required
supplementary information concerning the City’s budgetary control and schedule of funding
progress of other post-employment benefits is provided.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The
total net position for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 was $79,577,473, an increase of
$3,583,478.

The City’s largest portion of net position reflects investment in capital assets (land, buildings,
machinery and equipment, etc.) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. These assets are used to provide services to citizens. Although the City’s
investment in its capital assets are reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. Restricted net position represents
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The unrestricted net
position may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The following table presents consolidated information on the City’s net position as of June 30,

2014 and June 30, 2013.
City of Whitefish - Net Positon
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
Change Change

FYl4 FY13 Inc (Dec) FY14 FY13 Inc (Dec)

Current and other assets $17,191,182 $ 16,593,450 $ 597,732 $ 5,520,768 $ 4,269,000 $ 1,251,768

Capital assets 55,437,021 54,444,896 992,125 23,858,413 23,690,955 167,458

Total assets $ 72,628,203 $ 71,038,346 $ 1,589,857 $29,379,181 $ 27,959,955 $ 1,419,226
Long-term debt outstanding $ 14,606,766 $ 15,195,954 $ (589,188) $ 6,752,359 $ 6,799,618 $ (47,259
Other liabilities 527,108 431,848 95,260 251,177 576,886 (325,709)
Total liabilities $15,133,874 $ 15,627,802 $ (493,928) $ 7,003,536 7,376,504 (372,968)

Deferred inflows of resources $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 292,501 $ 0 $ 292,501

Invested in capital assets, net of debt 43,440,081 41,489,842 1,950,239 17,947,648 17,617,190 330,458
Restricted 15,378,532 14,879,442 499,000 1,493,365 2,056,985 (563,620)

Unrestricted (deficit) (1,324,284) (958,740) (365,544) 2,642,131 909,276 1,732,855

Total net position $ 57,494,329 $ 55,410,544 $ 2,083,785 $22,083,144 $ 20,583,451 $ 1,499,693

The City’s revenues totaled $22,951,798 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014. The total cost
of all programs and services for that same period was $19,474,483. Therefore, the increase in
net position was $3,477,315. The table below presents consolidated information on the City’s
change in net position for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2014 and June 30, 2013.
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Revenues

Program revenues (by major source):

Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General revenues (by major source):

Property taxes for general purposes

Licenses and permits
Franchise/Utility Fees
Miscellaneous
Interest/investment earnings
State entitlement
On behalf payments
Total revenues
Program expenses
General government
Public safety
Public works
Social and economic services

Culture and recreation

Housing and community development

Debt service - interest
Miscellaneous

Amortization of bond premium
Water

Sewer

Solid Waste

Total expenses
Increase (decrease) in net position

Restatements

Total Increase (decrease in net position)

Governmental activities

City of Whitefish — Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

Change Change

FYl14 FY13 Inc (Dec) FYl4 FY13 Inc (Dec)

$ 4,916,923 $ 4,401,363 $ 515,560 $ 6,329,476 $ 5,883,386 $ 446,090

393,682 428,565 (34,883) 28,000 (28,000)

47,822 495,387 (447,565) 100,000 372,750 (272,750)
9,100,677 8,664,032 436,645
319,735 (319,735)
334,539 334,539
183,208 77,066 106,142

50,242 36,369 13,873 14,235 10,704 (3,531)
889,678 902,680 (13,002)
591,316 606,149 (14,833)

$ 16,508,087 $ 15,931,346 $ 576,741 $ 6,443,711 $ 6,294,840 $ 148,871
$ 909,772 $ 1,002,334 $ (92,562)
6,415,354 5,574,407 840,947
2,610,014 2,089.494 520,520

1,500 1,500

2,151,051 2,035,725 115,326
1,824,897 2,167,449 (342,552)
520,020 614,469 (94,449)
51,730 37,770 13,960
22,524 22,524

$ 1,987,567 $ 2,910,091 $ 77476

2,240,867 2,262,366 (21,499)

739,187 709,352 29,835

$ 14,506,862 $ 13,523,148 $ 983,714 $ 4,967,621 $ 4,881,809 $ 85812

$ 2,001,225 $ 2,408,198 $ (406,973) $ 1,476,090 $ 1,413,031 $ 63,059

$ 82,560 $ 82560 $ 23,603 $ 23,603

$ 2,083,785 $ 2,408,198 $ 324413 $ 1,499,693 $ 1,413,031 $ 86,662

Revenues for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 from governmental activities were
$16,508,087 while expenses were $14,506,862. Thus, with the $82,560 in restatements, net
position increased $2,083,785. Total governmental revenues increased from the prior year by
$576,741. The increase in revenues was primarily due to increased property taxes and increased
charges for services. The increase in charges for services was the result of an increase in building
code and planning revenues. Overall expenditures increased as well which was due to an
increase in City staff wages and other anticipated costs.
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Business-type activities

Revenues for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 from business-type activities were $6,443,711,
Expenses were $4,967,621 and restatements totaled $23,603, which resulted in an increase in net
position of $1,499,693. Charges for services revenue increased by $446,090 from the previous
year due primarily to an increase in water consumption and a rate increase for all utilities fees.
Total expenses saw only a slight increase during fiscal year 2014.

Fund Balance — Governmental Funds Balance Sheet

The City’s governmental funds reported a total fund balance of $14,026,287 at June 30, 2014.
This is a $330,094 increase compared to the fund balance of governmental funds as of June 30,
2013. Of the fund balance at June 30, 2014, $1,332,689 is unassigned in the General. The
remaining fund balance is restricted based on the source of revenue or unassigned due to a
negative fund balance.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The City’s budget is prepared in accordance with Title 7, Chapter 6, Part 40, MCA (Local
Government Budget Act).

There were no significant variances between the final revenue and expenditure budget compared
to the actual amounts received and expended in fiscal year 2014.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
June 30, 2014 total $61,387,729 (net of related debt). The City’s capital assets include land,
buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, and construction in progress.
The depreciation of capital assets is reflected in the various governmental and business-type
expense activities. Total depreciation expense incurred for the governmental and business-type
activities during fiscal year 2014 totaled $2,413,319 and $1,053,658, respectively.

Major capital assets events during fiscal year 2014:

Purchased land from BNSF ($56,500)

Started construction of the Skye Park Bridge ($~800K est. total cost)

Began construction on the E. 2m Street/Hwy 93 W. Reconstruction and Pedestrian Trail
Continued working on the citywide wireless communications network
Completed construction of the 6™ & Geddes reconstruction project

Completed the construction of the Ice Den (ice rink) locker rooms (~$52K)
Purchased a new Ambulance (~$170K) and Case 521F Wheel Loader (~$93K)
Constructed the O’Shaughnessy restrooms (~$270K est. total cost)

Continued constructing improvements to the Whitefish Trail

Began design work for the Monegan Road project

Began design work for the new City Hall and parking structure

Long-term Debt
The City’s total long-term debt decreased by $636,446 compared to prior fiscal year. Below is a
summary of the outstanding long-term debt of the City as of June 30, 2014 compared to June 30,
2013.
-6-
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, _ Outstanding Long-term Debt R S
Purpose/Type June 30,2014 | June 30,2012
Revenue Bonds:

TIF ESC $ 10,715,000 $ 12,020,000

Water 3,272,000 3,741,000

Sewer 2,638,765 2,332,764
Special Assessment Bonds:

SID 166 795,000 865,000
Intercap Loans:

Ice Rink 110,634 62,697

Emergency Vehicle 153,780 0

Police Vehicle 16,339 0

Fire Engine 202,453 0
Capital Leases:

Sharp Copier 3,734 7.357
OPEB:

Governmental 1,626,165 1,304,250

Business-type 535,657 439,500
Compensated Absences:

Governmental 983,661 936,650

Business-type 305,937 286,353

TOTAL $21,359,125 $21,995,571

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET

Property tax supported funds of the City are anticipating an increase in the property tax revenue,
which is primarily due to the increase in taxable value. The total mills levied for fiscal year 2015
have increased by only 0.8 mills. The increase in levied mills was approved by the City Council
for the Library Fund. In the Fiscal Year 2015 Adopted Budget, the City anticipates a 10.6% cash
reserve in the property tax supported funds.

With construction activity on the increase in the City of Whitefish, the building license and
permit revenue is continuing to maintain a positive trend of increased revenues that started in
2012. The increase in construction also has had a positive impact on the City’s Impact Fee
collections.

The spending activity by consumers in the City continues to be strong as the Resort Tax
collections continue to track ahead of the previous year. At the end of the first quarter of fiscal
year 2015, Resort Tax collections were up 6.6% compared to the prior year’s first quarter.

Water and Wastewater charges are trending positively and expected to exceed the prior year due
to a rate increase of 3.6%.
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REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those
with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the
Finance Director, City of Whitefish, P.O. Box 158, Whitefish MT 59937.

-8-
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Denning, Downey & Associates, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1740 U.S. Hwy 93 South, P.O. Box 1957, Kalispell, MT 59903-1957

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Mayor and City Council
City of Whitefish
Flathead County
Whitefish, Montana

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of
Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related
notes to the financial statements which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Whitefish, Flathead
County, Montana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and schedule of
funding for other post employment benefits other than pensions on pages 2 through 8, 49 through
53, and 54 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 4,
2015, on our consideration of the City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana’s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit preformed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Whitefish, Flathead County,
Montana’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

M, &wuzwmwm Cens Pe.

May 4, 2015
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City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana
Statement of Net Position

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and nvestments
Taxes and assessments receivable, net
Special assessments receivable
Accounts receivable - net
Due from other governments
Other receivables
Unamortized bond premium and costs
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets

Restricted cash and investments

Special Assessment receivable deferred
Capital assets - land

Capital assets - construction in progress
Capital assets - depreciable, net

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued payables
Current portion of long-term capital liabilities
Current portion of compensated absences payablke
Contracts payable
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Deposits payable
Other credits
Noncurrent portion of OPEB
Noncurrent portion of long-term capital liabilities
Noncurrent portion of compensated absences
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for general government
Restricted for public safety
Restricted for public works
Restricted for culture and recreation

Restricted for housing and community development

Unrestricted
Total net position

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2014

Govemmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
11,085,789 2,569,682 13,655,471
1,605,380 - 1,605,380
72,392 584 72,976
180,301 503,366 683,667
23,081 - 23,081
6,000 - 6,000
110,369 - 110,369
13,083,312 3,073,632 16,156,944
3,147,855 2,426,607 5,574,462
960,015 20,529 980,544
8,409,629 602,783 9,012,412
1,829,484 2,284,440 4,113,924
45,197,908 20,971,190 66,169,098
59,544,891 26,305,549 85,850,440
72,628,203 29,379,181 102,007,384
56,697 - 56,697
155,487 39,950 195,437
1,500,664 322,000 1,822,664
768,567 190,021 958,588
314,924 - 314,924
2,796,339 551,971 3,348,310
- 211,023 211,023
- 204 204
1,626,165 535,657 2,161,822
10,496,276 5,588,765 16,085,041
215,094 115,916 331,010
12,337,535 6,451,565 18,789,100
15,133,874 7,003,536 22,137,410
- 292,501 292,501
43,440,081 17,947,648 61,387,729
4,356,916 1,493,365 5,850,281
2,252,750 - 2,252,750
529,277 - 529,277
5,101,595 - 5,101,595
203,027 - 203,027
2,934,967 - 2,934,967
(1,324,284) 2,642,131 1,317,847
57,494,329 22,083,144 79,577,473
-11-
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Functions/Programs
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Social and economic services
Culture and recreation
Housing and community development
Debt service - interest
Miscellaneous
Amortization of bond premium
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Water
Wastewater
Solid Waste
Total business-type activities

Total primary government

City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana

Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Changes in Net Position

Program Revenues Primary Government
Indirect Operating Capital Business-
Expense Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental type
Expenses Allocation Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
1,269,956 $ (180,092) $ 403,986 - 8 - (685,878) -3 (685,878)
6,232,436 91,459 2,469,860 98,416 17,234 (3,738,385) - (3,738,385)
2,570,998 19,508 1,349,384 146,598 8,088 (1,086,436) - (1,086,436)
1,500 - - - (1,500) - (1,500)
2,118,705 16,173 692,748 148,668 22,500 (1,270,962) - (1,270,962)
1,813,017 5,940 945 - - (1,818,012) - (1,818,012)
520,020 - - - (520,020) - (520,020)
51,730 - - - (51,730) - (51,730)
22,524 - - - (22,524) - (22,524)
14,600,886 $ (47,012) $ 4,916,923 393,682 $ 47,822 (9,195,447) - % (9,195,447)
1,940,589 $ 23,489 § 3,122,224 - 3 100,000 - 1,258,146 §$ 1,258,146
2,197,505 21,681 2,432,031 - - - 212,845 212,845
735,503 1,842 775,221 - - - 37,876 37,876
4,873,597 47012 $ 6,329,476 -3 100,000 - 1,508,867 $ 1,508,867
19,474,483 - $ 11246399 393,682 $ 147,822 (9,195,447) 1,508,867 $ (7,686,580)
General Revenues:
Property taxes for general purposes 9,100,677 - 3 9,100,677
Franchise/Utility Fees 334,539 - 334,539
Miscellaneous 183,208 - 183,208
Interest/investment earnings 50,242 14,235 64,477
State entitlement 889,678 - 889,678
On Behalf Payments 591,316 - 591,316
Total general revenues, special items and transfers 11,196,672 (32,777) $ 11,163,895
Change in net position 2,001,225 1,476,090 $ 3,477,315
Net position - beginning 55,410,544 20,583,451 $ 75,993,995
Restatements 82,560 23,603 106,163
Net position - beginning - restated 55,493,104 20,607,054 $ _ 76,100,158
Net position - end 57,494,329 22,083,144 $ 79,577,473

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments
Taxes and assessments receivable, net
Special assessments receivable
Accounts receivable - net
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Other receivables
Unamortized bond premium and costs
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments
Advances to other funds
Special Assessment receivable deferred
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payables
Due to other funds
Contracts payable
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Advances payable
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows of resources
Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES

Restricted

Unassigned fund balance
Total fund balance

L]

@ A

L]

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30,2014

Tax Increment Other Total
Tax Fire and Revenue Bond SID 166 Bond Governmental Governmental

General Resort Tax Increment Ambulance Debt Debt Funds Funds
928,712 $ 1,888,666 $ 2,325,842 § 299,865 $ -3 -3 5,642,704 § 11,085,789
385,146 - 877,651 106,271 - - 236,312 1,605,380
2,537 - 52,932 - - 16,923 - 72,392
- - - 180,301 - - - 180,301
85,139 - - - - - 15,785 100,924
12,916 - - - - - 10,165 23,081
6,000 - - - - - - 6,000
- - - - 110,369 - - 110,369
1,420,450 $ 1,888,666 $ 3,256,425 $ 586,437 $ 110,369 $ 16,923 $ 5,904,966 $ 13,184,236
-3 -3 - $ -3 3,147,855 § -3 -3 3,147,855
344,516 - - - - - 48,740 393,256
- - - - - 960,015 - 960,015
344,516 $ -3 -3 - 3 3,147855 $ 960,015 § 48,740 $ 4,501,126
1,764,966 $§ 1,888,666 $ 3,256,425 $ 586,437 $ 3258224 $ 976,938 $ 5,953,706 $ 17,685,362
-3 27,890 §$ 6,838 $ 2,000 $ - $ -3 19,969 $ 56,697
44,593 - 4,514 55,160 - - 51,220 155,487
- - - - - 15,786 85,138 100,924
- - 314,924 - - - - 314,924
44,593 § 27,890 $ 326,276 $ 57,160 $ -3 15,786 § 156,327 $ 628,032
- $ - 3 - 3 - $ - 3 48,740 § 344516 $ 393,256
- % - 3 - $ - 3 - % 48,740 $ 344,516 $ 393,256
44,593 $ 27,890 $ 326276 $ 57,160 $ -3 64,526 $ 500,843 $ 1,021,288
387,684 $ -3 930,583 $ 106,271 $ - 3 976,937 $ 236312 § 2,637,787
387,684 $ -3 930,583 $ 106271 $ - 3 976,937 $ 236,312 $ 2,637,787
- $ 1,860,776 $ 1,999,566 $ 423,006 $ 3258224 § -3 5,684,066 $ 13,225,638
1,332,689 - - - - (64,525) (467,515) 800,649
1,332,689 $ 1,860,776 $ 1,999,566 $ 423,006 $ 3,258,224 § (64,525) $ 5,216,551 $ 14,026,287
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City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014

Total fund balances - governmental funds $ 14,026,287

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 55,437,021

Property taxes receivable will be collected this year, but are not available soon
enough to pay for the current period's expenditures, and therefore are deferred in the

funds. 2,637,787

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are
not reported as liabilities in the funds. (14,606,766)

Total net position - governmental activities $ 57,494,329

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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REVENUES
Taxes and assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous
Investment earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public safety
Public works
Social and economic services
Culture and recreation
Housing and community development
Debt service - principal
Debt service - interest
Miscellaneous
Amortization of bond premium
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds of general long term debt
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund balances - beginning
Restatements

Fund balances - beginning, restated

Fund balance - ending

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Tax Increment Other Total
Tax Fire and Revenue Bond SID 166 Governmental Governmental
General Resort Tax Increment Ambulance Debt Bond Debt Funds Funds
1,859,906 $§ 2087995 $§ 4301945 § 508,047 $ -5 100,547 $ 1,286,059 $ 10,144,499
62,134 - - 108,442 - - 830,431 1,001,007
1,114,559 - 240,365 410,748 - - 250,559 2,016,231
281,942 - - 1,266,043 - - 1,027,654 2,575,639
216,265 - - - - - 6,560 222,825
91,334 - 1,826 59,632 - - 161,980 314,772
21,663 7,474 - - 10,407 99 21,093 60,736
3,647,803 $ 2095469 $§ 4,544,136 $ 2,352,912 § 10,407 § 100,646 $ 3,584,336 $ 16,335,709
677,647 $ -3 - 3 -8 -5 -8 6,560 $ 684,207
2,498,724 - - 3,078,296 - - 304,481 5,881,501
23,744 48 - - - - 1,222,931 1,246,723
1,500 - - - - - - 1,500
21,475 730 - - - - 1,522,261 1,544,466
10,902 - 1,806,355 - - - 1,700 1,818,957
3,623 - - - 1,305,000 70,000 22,335 1,400,958
- - - - 479,124 39,898 998 520,020
6,579 - - - - - 28,938 35,517
- - - - 22,524 - - 22,524
107,211 1,662,806 535,473 372,453 - - 743,715 3,421,658
3351405 $§ 1663584 $ 2341828 § 3,450,749 $ 1,806,648 $ 109,898 $ 3,853,919 $ 16,578,031
296,398 $ 431885 $ 2,202,308 $ (1,097,837) $ (1,796,241) $ (9,252) $ (269,583) $ (242,322)
16,399 3 -8 - 3 356,233 §$ -3 -3 70212 $ 442,844
2,679,436 - - 575,000 1,805,556 - 953,247 6,013,239
(3,057,371) (713,332) (2,061,496) (44,554) - - (89,474) (5,966,227)
(361,536) $ (713,332) $  (2,061,496) $ 886,679 $ 1,805,556 $ -5 933985 $ 489,856
(65,138) $ (281,447) $ 140,812 § (211,158) $ 9315 $ (9,252) $ 664,402 $ 247,534
1,397,827 $§ 2,142223 $ 1858754 § 634,164 $ 3248909 $ (55,273) $ 4,469,589 $ 13,696,193
- - - - - - 82,560 82,560
1,397,827 $§ 2142223 § 1,858,754 §$ 634,164 $ 3,248,909 $ (55,273) $ 4,552,149 § 13,778,753
13326890 $ 1,860,776 $§ 1,999,566 $ 423,006 $ 3,258,224 $ (64,525) $ 5216551 $ 14,026,287
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City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures.
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities
report depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets:

- Capital assets purchased

- Depreciation expense

- Deletions
Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds:

- Long-term receivables (deferred revenue)

The change in compensated absences is shown as an expense in the
Statement of Activities

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditures in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term debt in the Statement of Net Position:
- Long-term debt principal payments

Long term debt proceeds provide current financial resources to the governmental funds,
but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position:

- Proceeds from the sale of long-term debt

Termination benefits are shown as an expense in the Statement of Activities and not
reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance:

- Post-employment benefits other than retirement liability

Change in net position - Statement of Activities

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

-16-
City Council Packet May 4, 2015 page 63 of 692

$

$

247,534

3,421,658
(2,413,320)
(16,213)

172,378

(47,011)

1,400,958

(442,844)

(321,915)

2,001,225



City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2014

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Non-major
Water Wastewater Enterprise Totals
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investments 1,595,318 863,843 110,521 $ 2,569,682
Special assessments receivable 249 335 - 584
Accounts receivable - net 248,209 188,850 66,307 503,366
Total current assets 1,843,776 1,053,028 176,828 $ 3,073,632
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and investments 1,619,654 806,953 -8 2,426,607
Special Assessment receivable deferred 8,745 11,784 - 20,529
Capital assets - land 335,283 267,500 - 602,783
Capital assets - construction in progress 1,208,687 1,075,753 - 2,284,440
Capital assets - depreciable, net 9,159,467 11,811,723 - 20,971,190
Total noncurrent assets 12,331,836 13,973,713 - $ 26,305,549
Total assets 14,175,612 15,026,741 176,828 $ 29,379,181
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accrued payables 19,591 18,864 1,495 §$ 39,950
Current portion of long-term capital liabilities 242,000 80,000 - 322,000
Current portion of compensated absences payable 91,493 89,591 8,937 190,021
Total current liabilities 353,084 188,455 10,432 § 551,971
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deposits payable 211,023 163 (163) 211,023
Noncurrent portion of OPEB 250,250 272,257 13,150 535,657
Noncurrent portion of long-term capital liabilities 3,030,000 2,558,765 - 5,588,765
Noncurrent portion of compensated absences 59,771 49,621 6,524 115,916
Total noncurrent liabilities 3,551,044 2,880,806 19,715 $ 6,451,565
Totatl liabilities 3,904,128 3,069,261 30,147 $ 7,003,536
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources 286,484 6,017 -3 292,501
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 7,431,437 10,516,211 -3 17,947,648
Restricted for debt service 845,573 647,792 - 1,493,365
Unrestricted 1,707,990 787,460 146,681 2,642,131
Total net position 9,985,000 11,951,463 146,681 $ 22,083,144
Total liabilities and net position 13,889,128 15,020,724 176,828 $ 29,086,680
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Special assessments

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personal services

Supplies

Purchased services

Fixed charges

Depreciation

Other

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Intergovernmental revenue

Interest revenue

Debt service interest expense

Grants and donations to other institutions

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Income (loss) before contributions and transfers

Change in net position

Net Position - Beginning of the year
Restatements

Net Position - Beginning of the year - Restated

Net Position - End of the year

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

o

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
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Non-major
Water Wastewater Enterprise Totals
3,120,717 § 2,432,021 $ 775,222 $ 6,327,960
1,507 10 - 1,517
3,122,224 $ 2,432,031 $ 775,222 $ 6,329,477
852,114 § 860,590 $ 65910 $ 1,778,614
206,528 262,782 2,739 472,049
231,976 197,476 665,338 1,094,790
180,661 144,653 1,516 326,830
388,233 665,427 - 1,053,660
23,489 21,681 1,842 47,012
1,883,001 § 2,152,609 $ 737,345 $ 4,772,955
1,239,223 § 279422 § 37877 $ 1,556,522
100,000 $ -3 -5 100,000
8,663 5,212 359 14,234
(74,411) (59,910) - (134,321)
(6,666) (6,667) - (13,333)
27,586 $ (61,365) $ 359§ (33,420)
1,266,809 $ 218,057 $ 38236 $ 1,523,102
1,243,320 $ 196,376 § 36,394 $ 1,476,090
8,741,680 § 11,731,484 § 110,287 § 20,583,451
- 23,603 - 23,603
8,741,680 $ 11,755,087 $ 110,287 § _ 20,607,054
9,985,000 $ 11,951,463 § 146,681 § 22,083,144
-18-



City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana

Combined Statement of Cash Flows

All Proprietary Fund Types
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from providing services
Cash received from miscellaneous sources
Cash payments to suppliers
Cash payments for professional services
Cash payments to employees
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on debt
Interest paid on debt
Proceeds from bonds, loans and advances
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Intergovernmental Revenue
Grants and donations to other institutions
Net cash provided (used) from non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
Cash and cash equivalents at end

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Other post-employment benefits
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Change in accounts receivable
Change in deferred inflows of resources
Change in deposit payables
Change in compensated absences
Change in accrued payables
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

Business - Type Activities

Water Wastewater Solid Waste Totals
$ 3,064,878 $ 2,418208 $ 772,552 § 6,255,638
1,507 10 - 1,517
(387,189) (407,435) (4,255) (798.,879)
(231,976) (197,476) (665,338) (1,094,790)
(841,915) (848,027) (68,063) (1,758,005)
$ 1,605305 $ 965,280 $ 34,896 $ 2,605,481
$ (385,485) $ (812,029) $ - $  (1,197,514)
(469,000) (146,300) - (615,300)
(74,411) (59,910) - (134,321)
- 452300 - 452,300
$ (928,896) $ (565,939) $ - $  (1,494,835)
$ 100,000 $ - $ -8 100,000
(6,666) (6,667) - (13,333)
$ 93,334 $ (6,667) $ - $ 86,667
$ 8,663 $ 5212 $ 359 § 14,234
$ 778,406 $ 397,886 $ 35255 $ 1,211,547
2,436,567 1,272,910 75,266 3,784,743
$ 3214973 § 1,670,796 $ 110,521 § 4,996,290
$ 1,215,734 § 257,742 §$ 36,035 $ 1,509,511
388,233 665,426 - 1,053,659
45,988 50,169 - 96,157
(17,619) (19,920) (2,683) (40,222)
(60,693) 6,017 13 (54,663)
22,473 89 - 22,562
11,040 6,905 1,639 19,584
149 (1,148) (108) (1,107)
$ 1605305 $ 965,280 $ 34896 §$ 2,605,481
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City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana
Statement of Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30,2014
Pension Agency
Trust Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and short-term investments $ 26,562 % 816,943
Taxes receivable 17,526 -
Total assets $ 44,088 $ 816,943
LIABILITIES
Warrants payable $ - 3 809,843
Due to others 43,599 7,100
Total liabilities $ 43,599 $ 816,943
NET POSITION
Assets held in trust $ 489

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana
Statement of Changes in Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Pension Trust Private Purpose
Funds Trust Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Tax $ 85,025 $ -
Contributions 89,616 -
Total contributions $ 174,641 $ -
Investment earnings: $ 112§ -
Total additions $ 174,753  § -
DEDUCTIONS
Distributions from investment trust fund $ 174,264 $ z
Total deductions $ 174,264 § -
Change in net position $ 489 $ -
Net Position - Beginning of the year $ 26,073 $ 82,560
Restatements (26,073) (82,560)
Net Position - Beginning of the year - Restated $ - $ -
Net Position - End of the year $ 489 $ -

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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CITY OF WHITEFISH
FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City complies with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). GAAP
includes all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements.

GASBS No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of
resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as
assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources,
certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. This standard is
effective for fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

Financial Reporting Entity

In determining the financial reporting entity, the City complies with the provisions of
GASB statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB
statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, and includes all component
units of which the City appointed a voting majority of the component units’ board; the
City is either able to impose its’ will on the unit or a financial benefit or burden
relationship exists. In addition, the City complies with GASB statement No. 39
Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units which relates to
organizations that raise and hold economic resources for the direct benefit of the City.

Primary Government

The City is a political subdivision of the State of Montana governed by an elected Mayor
and Council duly elected by the registered voters of the City. The City utilizes the
manager form of government. The City is considered a primary government because it is
a general purpose local government. Further, it meets the following criteria: (a) It has a
separately elected governing body (b) It is legally separate and (c) It is fiscally
independent from the State and other local governments.

Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting.
Government-wide Financial Statements:

Basis of Presentation

The Government-wide Financial Statements (the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities) display information about the reporting government as a whole
and its component units. They include all funds of the reporting entity except fiduciary
funds. The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services. Eliminations
have been made in the consolidation of business-type activities.
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CITY OF WHITEFISH
FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each function of the City’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are
those that are specifically associated with a program or function. The City charges
indirect expenses to programs or functions. The types of transactions reported as
program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
activity and 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all property taxes, are
presented as general revenues.

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB 34 in regards to inter-fund
activities, payables and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of Net
Position have been eliminated except those representing balances between the
governmental activities and the business-type activities, which are presented as internal
balances and eliminated in the total primary government column. In the Statement of
Activities, internal service fund transactions have been eliminated; however, those
transactions between governmental and business-type activities have not been eliminated.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Government-Wide Financial Statements

On the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, both
governmental and business-type activities are presented using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the
liability is incurred regardless of the timing of the cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items
are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met. The City generally applies restricted resources to expenses incurred
before using unrestricted resources when both restricted and unrestricted net assets are
available.

Fund Financial Statements:

Basis of Presentation

Fund financial statements of the reporting City are organized into funds, each of which is
considered to be separate accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by providing a
separate set of self-balancing accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to
their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with
finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds is
maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements. Funds are organized into
three categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on
major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. Each major fund is
displayed in a separate column in the governmental funds statements. All of the
remaining funds are aggregated and reported in a single column as non-major funds. A
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CITY OF WHITEFISH
FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the
following criteria:

a. Total assets combined with deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
combined with deferred inflows of resources, revenues, or
expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are
at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or
type; and

b. Total assets combined with deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
combined with deferred inflows of resources, revenues, or
expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise funds are
at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and
enterprise funds combined.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Governmental Funds

Modified Accrual

All governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible
to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction can be determined. “Available” means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.

The City defined the length of time used for “available” for purposes of revenue
recognition in the governmental fund financial statements to be upon receipt.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences and claims and judgments which are recognized when the
obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds and
proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as
other financing sources.

Property taxes, franchise fees, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable
due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue
of the current period. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the
qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been
met. Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the
susceptible to accrual criteria are met. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.
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CITY OF WHITEFISH
FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Major Funds:
The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — This is the City’s primary operating fund and it accounts for all
financial resources of the City except those required to be accounted for in other
funds.

Resort Tax Fund — A special revenue fund established in 1995 to provide budget
authority to implement City Ordinance 95-15, the Resort Tax Ordinance. The
ordinance imposes a 2% resort tax on a range of goods and services sold by
establishments within the City. The Ordinance specifies that property tax relief
should be provided to Whitefish taxpayers in an amount equal to 25% of resort
tax revenues derived during the preceding fiscal year. An amount equal to 65%
of these revenues shall be used for repair and improvement of existing
infrastructure. An amount equal to 5% of the revenues shall be used for bicycle
paths and other park improvements. Finally each collecting merchant is entitled
to withhold 5% to defray costs of collecting the tax.

Tax Increment Fund — A special revenue fund that was established in 1987 is used
to account for urban renewal activities within the boundaries of the Whitefish Tax
Increment District. In accordance to Montana Code Annotated (MCA) 7-15-
4292, tax increment districts must be terminated 15 years after their creation or at
a later date necessary to pay all bond obligations, termination of the district is
projected to be July 15, 2020.

Fire and Ambulance Fund — A special revenue fund established to account for the
activities of the City’s fire and ambulance services.

Tax Increment Revenue Bond Debt Fund — A debt service fund that was
established to account for the payment of interest and principal on long-term debt.

Special Improvement District 166 — A debt service fund created to service special
assessment bonds for the JP Road Project.

Proprietary Funds:

All proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. These funds
account for operations that are primarily financed by user charges. The economic
resource focus concerns determining costs as a means of maintaining the capital
investment and management control. Revenues are recognized when earned and
expenses are recognized when incurred. Allocations of costs, such as depreciation, are
recorded in proprietary funds.
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CITY OF WHITEFISH
FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connections with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues for enterprise funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the
cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for
use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as
they are needed.

Major Funds:
The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water Fund — An enterprise fund that accounts for the activities of the City’s
water distribution operations.

Wastewater Fund — An enterprise fund that accounts for the activities of the
City’s sewer collection and treatment operations and includes the storm sewer
system.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting (except for the recognition of certain liabilities of defined
benefit pension plans and certain postemployment healthcare plans). The required
financial statements are a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes
in fiduciary net assets. The fiduciary funds are:

Pension (and other employee benefit) Trust Funds — To report resources that are
required to be held in trust for the members and beneficiaries of defined benefit
pension plans, defined contribution plans, other postemployment benefit plans, or
other employee benefit plans.

Agency Funds — To report resources held by the reporting government in a purely
custodial capacity (assets equal liabilities). This fund primarily consist of assets
held by the City as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other local
governmental entities and the City’s claims and payroll clearing funds
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CITY OF WHITEFISH
FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Cost Allocation Plan
The City allocates administrative service costs to each of the funds based on a percentage
of the budgeted salary. Administrative cost allocation percentages are listed below:

General Fund 8.33%
Street and Alley 9.36%
Parks and Recreation 6.29%
Library 1.94%
Law Enforcement 19.91%
Tax Increment 2.98%
Fire and Ambulance 22.69%
Building Codes 3.98%
Light #1 0.29%
Light #4 0.29%
Water Fund 11.96%
Wastewater Fund 11.04%
Solid Waste Fund 0.94%
Total 100%

NOTE 2. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

Cash Composition
Composition of cash, deposits and investments at fair value on June 30, 2014, are as

follows:
Primary
Government
Cash on hand and deposits:
Petty Cash $ 1,225
Cash in banks:
Demand deposits 17,506,072
Savings deposits 385,010
Time deposits 2,153,797
Investments:
State Short-Term Investment Pool (STIP) 27,334
Total $ 20,073,438
Credit Risk

Section 7-6-202, MCA, limits investments of public money of a local government in the
following eligible securities:

(a) United States government treasury bills, notes and bonds and in the United
States treasury obligations, such as state and local government series (SLGLS), separate
‘trading of registered interest and principal of securities (STRIPS), or similar United
States treasury obligations;

27-
City Council Packet May 4, 2015 page 74 of 692



CITY OF WHITEFISH
FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

(b) United States treasury receipts in a form evidencing the holder’s ownership of
future interest or principal payments on specific United States treasury obligations that, in
the absence of payment default by the United States, are held in a special custody account
by an independent trust company in a certificate or book entry form with the federal
reserve bank of New York; or

(c) Obligations of the following agencies of the United States, subject to the
limitations in subsection 2 (not included):

(1) federal home loan bank;

(i)  federal national mortgage association;
(iii)  federal home mortgage corporation; and
(iv)  federal farm credit bank.

With the exception of the assets of a local government group self-insurance program,
investments may not have a maturity date exceeding 5 years except when the investment
is used in an escrow account to refund an outstanding bond issue in advance.

Section 7-6-205 and Section 7-6-206, MCA, state that demand deposits may be placed
only in banks and Public money not necessary for immediate use by a county, city, or
town that is not invested as authorize in Section 7-6-202 may be placed in time or savings
deposits with a bank, savings and loan association, or credit union in the state or place in
repurchase agreements as authorized in Section 7-6-213.

Section 7-6-202, MCA, as amended, now limits authorized investments in certain
securities that previously were permissible investments. The amendment does not apply
to and does not require the sale of securities that were legal investments before the
effective date of this act. However, the investments reported as collateralized mortgage
obligations above are not authorized investments at the current time.

The government has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices.

The government has no investments that require credit risk disclosure.
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CITY OF WHITEFISH
FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Short Term Investment Pool (STIP) Credit Quality ratings by the S&P’s rating services
as of June 30, 2013:

Credit Weighted

Security Investment Type Amortized Cost Quality  Average

Rating  Maturity
Asset Backed Commercial Paper $ 907,892,295 Al 44
Corporate Commercial Paper 150,768,775 Al 105
Corporate Variable-Rate 663,143,336 A3 41
Certificates of Deposit Fixed Rate 50,000,000 Al 222
Certificates of Deposit Variable-Rate 435,974,196 A2 35
Other Asset Backed 17,987,295 BBB- NA
U.S. Government Agency Fixed 25,000,000 Al 3
U.S. Government Agency Variable -Rate 182,700,345 Al 17
Money Market Funds (Unrated) 168,232,935 NR 1
Money Market Funds (Rated) 15,000,000 Al+ 1
Structured Investment Vehicles (SIV) 29,561,449 NR 4
Total Investments $ 2,646,260,626 43
Securities Lending Collateral Investment ~ $ 7,182,928 NR *
Pool

“*As of June 30, 2013, the Securities Lending Quality Trust liquidity pool had an average
duration of 48 days and an average weighted final maturity of 99 days for U.S. dollar
collateral. The duration pool had an average duration of 36 days and an average
weighted final maturity of 679 days for U.S. dollar collateral.”

Audited financial statements for the State of Montana’s Board of Investments are
available at 555 Fuller Avenue in Helena, Montana.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the government’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The government does not have a deposit policy for
custodial credit risk. All deposits are carried at cost plus accrued interest. As of June 30,
2014 $19,957,487 of the government’s bank balance of $20,046,104 was exposed to
custodial credit risk as follows:
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CITY OF WHITEFISH
FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014
June 30, 2014
Balance

Depository Account
Insured $ 750,000
- Collateral held by the pledging bank's trust 11,018,016

department but not in the City's name.

- Uninsured and undercollateralized 8,188,246
Total deposits and investments $ 19,956,262

Deposit Security
Section 7-6-207, MCA, states (1) The local governing body may require security only for
that portion of the deposits which is not guaranteed or insured according to law and, as to
such unguaranteed or uninsured portion, to the extent of:

(a) 50% of such deposits if the institution in which the deposit is made has a net
worth of total assets ratio of 6% or more; or

(b) 100% if the institution in which the deposit is made has a net worth of total
assets ratio of less than 6%.

The amount of collateral held for City deposits at June 30, 2014, equaled or exceeded the
amount required by State statutes.

Cash equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, and enterprise funds consider all funds
(including restricted assets) held in the City’s cash management pool to be cash
equivalents.

NOTE 3. RESTRICTED CASH/INVESTMENTS

The following restricted cash/investments were held by the City as of June 30, 2014.
These amounts are reported within the cash/investment account on the Statement of Net

Assets.

Description Tax Increment Debt Water Wastewater

Debt Service $ 3,147,855 $ 545443 $ 230,986

Construction - 969,833 473,940

Replacement & Depreciation - 104,378 102,027
Total $ 3,147,855 $.1,619.564 $__ 806,953

NOTE 4. RECEIVABLES

An allowance for uncollectible accounts was not maintained for real and personal
property taxes receivable. The direct write-off method is used for these accounts.
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CITY OF WHITEFISH
FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Property tax levies are set in August, after the County Assessor delivers the taxable
valuation information to the County, in connection with the budget process and are based
on taxable values listed as of January 1 for all property located in the Entity. Taxable
values are established by the Montana Department of Revenue, and a revaluation of all
property is required to be completed on a periodic basis. Taxable value is defined by
Montana statute as a fixed percentage of market value.

Real property (and certain attached personal property) taxes are billed within ten days
after the third Monday in October and are due in equal installments on November 30 and
the following May 31. After those dates, they become delinquent (and a lien upon the
property). After three years, the County may exercise the lien and take title to the
property. Special assessments are either billed in one installment due November 30 or
two equal installments due November 30 and the following May 31. Personal property
taxes (other than those billed with real estate) are generally billed no later than the second
Monday in July (normally in May or June), based on the prior November’s levies.
Personal property taxes, other than mobile homes, are due thirty days after billing.
Mobile home taxes are billed in two halves, the first due thirty days after billing; the
second due September 30. The tax billings are considered past due after the respective
due dates and are subject to penalty and interest charges.

Taxes that become delinquent are charged interest at the rate of 5/6 of 1% a month plus a
penalty of 2%. Real property on which taxes remain delinquent and unpaid may be sold
at tax sales. In the case of personal property, the property is to be seized and sold after
the taxes become delinquent.

NOTE 5. INVENTORIES
The cost of inventories are recorded as an expenditure when purchased.
NOTE 6. CAPITAL ASSETS

The City’s assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated historical cost. City policy
has set the capitalization threshold as noted below. Gifts or contributions of capital assets
are recorded at fair market value when received. The costs of normal maintenance and
repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Improvements are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related fixed assets, as applicable.
Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets as

follows:
Capitalization
Useful Life Threshold
Buildings 10—40 years $ 25,000
Improvements 5-20years $ 25,000
Equipment 3-40years $ 5,000
Infrastructure 10-40 years $ 75,000
31-
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CITY OF WHITEFISH
FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement
No. 34 which requires the inclusion of infrastructure capital assets in local governments’
basic financial statements. In accordance with Statement No. 34, the City has included
the value of all infrastructure into the 2014 Basic Financial Statements. The government

has elected not to retroactively report general infrastructure assets.
A summary of changes in governmental capital assets was as follows:

Governmental activities:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2013 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2014
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 8,353,129 $ 56,500 $ -$ -3 8,409,629
Construction in progress 19,022,250 1,421,216 - (18,613,982) 1,829,484
Total capital assets not being depreciated $ 27,375,379 $§ 1,477,716 $ - $  (18,613,982) § 10,239,113
Other capital assets:
Buildings $ 13,802,774 § 74,564 $ $ 7,650,709 $ 21,528,047
Improvements other than buildings 1,847,881 190,299 76,611 2,114,791
Machinery and equipment 5,362,738 620,055 (327,734) 830,085 6,485,144
Infrastructure 22,460,087 1,059,024 10,056,577 33,575,688
Total other capital assets at historical cost $§ 43,473,480 § 1,943942 § (327,734 § 18,613,982 § 63,703,670
Less: accumulated depreciation $ (16,403,963) $ (2,413,320) $ 311,521 $ - $  (18,505,762)
Total $ 54444896 $ 1,008338 §$§ (16213)$ - $ 55,437,021

Governmental activities depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government § 36,731
Public safety 442,394
Public works 1,343,783
Culture and recreation 590412
Total $2,413.320
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A summary of changes in business-type capital assets was as follows:

Business-type activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated $

Other capital assets:
Buildings
Machine & Equipment
Pumping plant
Treatment Plant
Transmission and distribution
General plant

Total other capital assets at historical cost §

Less: accumulated depreciation
Total

NOTE 7.

Balance Adjustments Balance
July 1, 2013 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30,2014
$ 602,783 § - 3 -$ -3 602,783
2,385,661 946,538 - (1,047,759) 2,284,440
2,988,444 § 946,538 $ -3 (1,047,759) $ 2,887,223
$ 170,980 $ - 3 - $ 621,307 § 792,287
134 134
2,880,335 - - 271,524 3,151,859
16,439,569 35,374 - 6,915 16,481,858
14,734,650 51,865 - 148,013 14,934,528
1,426,036 163,739 (93,986) 23,601 1,519,390
35,651,704 § 250,978 §  (93,986) $ 1,071,360 $ 36,880,056
$ (14,949,193) $ (1,053,659) $ 93,986 - $  (15,908,866)
$ 23,690,955 $ 143,857 $ -3 23,601 $ 23,858,413

LONG TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS

In the governmental-wide and proprietary financial statements, outstanding debt is
reported as liabilities. Bond issuance costs, bond discounts or premiums, are amortized
over the life of the bond.

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and
premiums as other financing sources of the current period. Issuance costs are reported as

expenditures.

Changes in Long-Term Debt Liabilities - During the year ended June 30, 2014, the
following changes occurred in liabilities reported in long-term debt:

Governmental Activities:

TIF Revenue Bonds

Special assessment bond

Intercap loans

Capital leases

Other post-employment

benfits*

Compensated absences
Total

*See Note 8

$

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1,2013 Additions Deletions June 30, 2014 One Year
12,020,000 $ - $ (1,305,000) $ 10,715,000 $ 1,350,000
865,000 - (70,000) 795,000 70,000
62,698 442,843 (22,335) 483,206 76,930
7,357 - (3,623) 3,734 3,734
1,304,250 321,915 - 1,626,165 -
936,650 47,011 983,661 768,567
14,259,305 $ 811,769 §$ (1,400,958) $ 14,606,766 § 2,269,231
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In prior years the general fund was used to liquidate compensated absences and claims

and judgments.

Business-type Activities:

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2013 Additions Deletions June 30,2014 One Year
Revenue bonds $ 6,073,764 $ 452301 $ (615,300) $ 5,910,765 $ 322,000
Other post-employment 439,500 96,157 - 535,657 -
benfits*
Compensated absences 286,353 19,584 305,937 190,021
Total $ 6,799,617 $§ 568,042 § (615,300) $ 6,752,359 § 512,021
*See Note 8
Revenue Bonds - The City issues Revenue bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities. Revenue bonds are direct obligations and pledge
the full faith and credit of the City. Revenue bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2014 were
as follows:
Origination Interest Maturity Principal Annual Balance
Purpose Date Rate Term Date Amount Payment June 30,2014
2009 Tax Increment  7/14/09 3-4.625% 11yrs 7/15/20 $_15,695,000 Varies $__10,715,000
Urban Renewal
Revenue Bonds
Reported in the governmental activities.
Annual requirement to amortize debt:
For Fiscal
Year Ended Principal Interest
2015 $ 1,350,000 $ 428,986
2016 1,405,000 373,886
2017 1,460,000 316,586
2018 1,525,000 255,933
2019 1,590,000 189,898
2020 1,655,000 117,665
2021 1,730,000 40,006
Total $ 10,715,000 $ 1,722,960
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Special Assessment Debt - Special assessment bonds are payable from the collection of
special assessments levied against benefited property owners within defined special
improvement districts. The bonds are issued with specific maturity dates, but must be
called and repaid earlier, at par plus accrued interest, if the related special assessments are
collected. Rural special improvement districts bonds were issued with revolving fund
backing. The City is not obligated to levy and collect a general property tax on all
taxable property in the Entity to provide additional funding for the debt service payments.
The cash balance in the Revolving Fund must equal at least 5% of the principal amount
of bonds outstanding. Special assessment bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2014 were as
follows:

Origination Interest Bond  Maturity Bonds Annual Balance
Purpose Date Rate Term Date Amount Payment June 30,2014
SID #166 — JP 7/6/06 3.65-4.80% 20yrs  7/1/26 $_1360,000 Varies § 795,000
Road Project

Annual requirement to amortize debt:

For Fiscal
Year Ended Principal Interest
2015 $ 70,000 $ 36,622
2016 70,000 33,577
2017 70,000 30,498
2018 70,000 27,382
2019 65,000 24,232
2020 65,000 21,274
2021 65,000 18,286
2022 65,000 15,263
2023 65,000 12,208
2024 65,000 9,120
2025 65,000 6,000
2026 60,000 2,880
Total $ 795,000 $ 237,342

Revenue Bonds - The City also issues bonds where the City pledges income derived from
the acquired or constructed assets to pay debt service. Revenue bonds outstanding at
year-end were as follows:

-35-
City Council Packet May 4, 2015 page 82 of 692



CITY OF WHITEFISH
FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014
Origination Interest Bond Maturity Bonds Annual Balance
Purpose Date Rate Term Date Amount Payment June 30,2014

DNRC — Water ~ 7/6/98 2.00% 20yrs  7/1/18 § 400,000 Varies §$ 106,000
1998

DNRC — Water  6/21/99 2.00% 20yrs  7/1/19 5,839,000  Varies 1,880,000

1999

Water DWSRF  6/15/06 2.25% 20yrs  7/1/26 248,699  Varies 588,000

#06098-2007

Water SRF 9/6/07 2.25% 20yrs  7/1/27 900,000 Varies 608,000

#08110-2006

Water SRF 10/21/09 0.75% 20yrs  7/1/29 120,100  Varies 90,000

(2009B)

Sewer SRF 7/1/02 2.00%  20yrs 7/1/22 200,000 Varies 87,000

2002 Series

Sewer DNRC 12/11/08 2.25% 20yrs  7/1/28 500,000  Varies 328,000

(2008A)

Sewer DNRC 1/16/09 2.25% 20yrs  1/1/29 1,711,000  Varies 1,112,000

(2008B)

Sewer DNRC 2/4/10 0.75% 20yrs  1/1/30 48,211  Varies 40,000

(2010B)

Sewer 2011B 8/1/11 3.00% 20yrs  7/1/31 340,000  Varies 301,000

Sewer 2011C 8/1/11 3.00% 20yrs  7/1/31 350,000 Varies 326,764

Sewer 2014 3/6/14 3.00% 20yrs  1/1/34 452,300 Varies 444.000
$.11,109310 $_ 5910764

Reported in Business-Type Activities

Revenue bond resolutions include various restrictive covenants. The more significant
covenants 1) require that cash be restricted and reserved for operations, construction, debt
service, and replacement and depreciation; 2) specify minimum required operating
revenue; and 3) specific and timely reporting of financial information to bond holders and
the registrar. The City was in compliance with applicable covenants as of June 30, 2014.
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Annual requirement to amortize debt:

For Fiscal
Year Ended Principal Interest

2015 $ 322,000 $ 66,807
2016 644,000 123,553
2017 657,000 109,729
2018 670,000 95,664
2019 672,000 81,274
2020 478,000 66,963
2021 284,000 58,436
2022 290,000 51,757
2023 295,000 44,924
2024 294,000 38,036
2025 298,000 31,094
2026 309,000 24,011
2027 291,000 16,713
2028 77,000 11,265
2029 80,000 9,222
2030 74,000 7,099
2031 68,764 4,920
2032 50,000 2,700
2033 28,000 1,500
2034 29,000 660

Total $ 5,910,764 $ 846,327

Intercap Loans

Intercap loans have variable interest rates. Interest rates are subject to change annually.
Interest rates to the borrower are adjusted on February 16™ of each year and are based on
a spread over the interest paid on one-year term, tax-exempt bonds which are sold to fund
the loans.

Intercap loans outstanding as of June 30, 2014 were as follows:

Origination Interest Maturity  Principal Balance

Purpose Date Rate Term Date Amount  June 30, 2014
Ice Rink 10/1/12 1.00% 5yrs  8/15/17 $ 140,00 § 110,574
Police Dept 3/14/14 1.00% 3yrs  2/15117 16,399 16,399
Admin Vehicle
Emergency 3/14/14 1.00% S5yrs  2/15/19 155,597 153,780
Vehicle
Fire Pumper 6/20/14 1.00% 10yrs 8/15/24 485,112 202,453

Total $.797,108 $__ 483,206

Reported in the governmental activities.
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Annual requirement to amortize debt:

For Fiscal
Year Ended Principal Interest
2015 $ 76,930 $ 4,831
2016 86,906 4,202
2017 87,797 3,308
2018 66,795 2,422
2019 51,292 1,599
2020 20,241 1,092
2021 20,444 889
2022 20,648 689
2023 20,856 490
2024 21,064 294
2025 10,233 100
Total $ 483206 $ 19,916

Capital Leases

The City has entered into a lease which meets the criteria of a capital lease as defined by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, "Accounting for Leases," which
defines a capital lease generally as one which transfers benefits and risks of ownership to
the lessee when all terms of the lease agreements are met. Capital lease obligations
outstanding as of June 30, 2014 were as follows:

Origination Interest Bond Maturity  Bonds Annual Balance
Purpose Date Rate Term Date Amount Payment June 30,2014
Sharp MX5111 4/4/12 16.07% 3 yrs 4/1/15 $_10981 $_4248 $ 3,734

Reported in the governmental activities.

Annual requirement to amortize debt:

For Fiscal
Year Ended Principal Interest
2015 $ 3,734 § 280
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Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid for time off earned
for time during employment, such as earned vacation and sick leave. It is the City’s
policy and state law to permit employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned but
unused vacation benefits, which will be paid to employees upon separation from City
service. Employees are allowed to accumulate and carry over a maximum of two times
their annual accumulation of vacation, but no more than 90 days into the new calendar
year. There is no restriction on the amount of sick leave that may be accumulated. Upon
separation, employees are paid 100 percent of accumulated vacation and 25 percent of
accumulated sick leave. The liability associated with governmental fund-type employees
is reported in the governmental activities, while the liability associated with proprietary
fund-type employees is recorded in the business-type activities/respective proprietary
fund.

NOTE 8. POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN

Plan Description. The healthcare plan provides for, and Montana State Law (2-18-704)
requires local governments to allow employees with at least 5 years of service and who
are at least age 50 along with surviving spouses and dependents to stay on the
government's health care plan as long as they pay the same premium. Since retirees are
usually older than the average age of the plan participants they receive a benefit of lower
insurance rates. This benefit is reported as the Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)
liability. The government has less than 100 plan members and thus qualifies to use the
"Alternative Measurement Method” for calculating the liability. The above described
OPEB plan does not provide a stand-alone financial report.

Funding Policy. The government pays OPEB liability costs on a pay-as-you-go basis.
A trust fund for future liabilities has not been established.

Funding Status and funding Progress. The funded status of the plan as of June 30,
2013, was as follows:

Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $ 2,917,871

Actuarial value of plan assets $ -

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) $ 2,917,871

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0%

Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 4,966,132

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 58.76%
-39-

City Council Packet May 4, 2015 page 86 of 692



CITY OF WHITEFISH
FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The government's annual other post
employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required
contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount determined in accordance with the
parameter of GASB statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid
on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty (30)
years. The following table shows the components of the government's annual OPEB
cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the

government's net OPEB obligation.

Annual Required Contribution (ARC)
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to ARC

418,072

Annual OPEB cost (expense)
Contributions made

418,072

Increase in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year

418,072
1,743,750

Net OPEB obligation - end of year

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

2,161,822

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. The following actuarial methods and assumptions

were used:

Actuarial cost method
Average age of retirement (based on historical
data)

Discount rate (average anticipated rate)
Average salary increase (Consumer Price Index)
Health care cost rate trend (Federal Office of the Actuary)

Year
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019 and after
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Method

62
2.00%
2.8%

% Increase

3.90%
5.20%
5.50%
6.10%
6.60%
6.70%
7.00%
6.80%
6.80%
6.60%
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June 30, 2014

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2014, was as follows:

Purpose
Deficit Cash

Balance
Deficit Cash
Balance
Deficit Cash
Balance

Purpose
Half of annual

assessment of SID
Cover Negative
Cash

Cover Negative
Cash

Due to/from other funds:
Receivable Fund

General — Major
Governmental

General — Major
Governmental

SID Revolving — Nonmajor
Governmental

Advances to/from other funds:
Receivable Fund

SID 166 — Major
Governmental

Building Codes —
Nonmajor Governmental
Drug Forfeiture —
Nonmajor Governmental

Interfund Transfers

Payable Fund Amount
Park, Rec, and Community $ 55,919
— Nonmajor Governmental

WF Trail Construction — 29,220

Nonmajor Governmental
SID 166 — Major

15,785

Governmental
$ 100,924
Payable Fund Amount

SID Revolving — Nonmajor $ 48,741
Governmental
General — Major 171,699
Governmental
General — Major 172.817
Governmental

$___393.257

The following is an analysis of operating transfers in and out during fiscal year 2014:

Purpose
Tax Relief FY14

Excess cash from
SID 154
Operating/Budgeted
Operating/Budgeted

Operating/Budgeted

Operating/Budgeted

Debt Payments

Capital Projects

Receivable Fund

General — Major
Governmental

Street & Ally — Nonmajor
Governmental

Park, Recreating, and
Community Service —
Nonmajor Governmental
Library — Nonmajor
Governmental

Fire & Ambulance — Major
Governmental

Park Land Acquisition &
Development — Nonmajor
Governmental

Tax Increment Bond Debt —
Major Governmental

City Hall Project —
Nonmajor Governmental

-41-

Payable Fund Amount
Resort Tax — Major $ 693,432
Governmental

SID 154 Bond Debt — 2,398
Nonmajor Governmental

General — Major 603,000
Governmental

General — Major 34,371
Governmental

General — Major 575,000
Governmental

Resort Tax — Major 19,900
Governmental

Tax Increment — Major 1,805,556
Governmental

Tax Increment — Major 250,000
Governmental

City Council Packet May 4, 2015 page 88 of 692



ESC Construction

Indirect Cost
Allocation
Indirect Cost
Allocation

Indirect Cost
Allocation
Indirect Cost
Allocation
Indirect Cost
Allocation
Indirect Cost
Allocation
Indirect Cost
Allocation
Indirect Cost
Allocation
Indirect Cost
Allocation

Indirect Cost
Allocation
Indirect Cost
Allocation
Indirect Cost
Allocation
Indirect Cost
Allocation

NOTE 10.

CITY OF WHITEFISH
FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Emergency Service Center
Construction —

Nonmajor Governmental
General -

Major Governmental
General —

Major Governmental

General —
Major Governmental
General —
Major Governmental
General —
Major Governmental
General —
Major Governmental
General —
Major Governmental
General -
Major Governmental
General —
Major Governmental

General —

Major Governmental
General -

Major Governmental
General —

Major Governmental
Public Safety —
Nonmajor Governmental

Impact Fee —
Nonmajor Governmental

Street & Alley —
Nonmajor Governmental
Park, Rec & Community
Service —

Nonmajor Governmental
Library —

Nonmajor Governmental
Public Safety —

Nonmajor Governmental
Tax Increment —

Major Governmental

Fire & Ambulance —
Major Governmental
Building Code Enforcement
— Nonmajor Governmental
Light District #1 —
Nonmajor Governmental
Light District #2 —
Nonmajor Governmental

Water —

Major Proprietary
Wastewater —

Major Proprietary

Solid Waste —
Nonmajor Governmental
General —

Major Governmental

STATE-WIDE RETIREMENT PLANS

43,578

18,372

12,355

3,818
39,088
5,940
44,554
7,817
568

568

23,489
21,681
1,842
1.845.000

$_6,013.239

All full-time City employees are covered under one of the following retirement plans:
Montana Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), Municipal Police Officers
Retirement System (MPORS), Firefighters’ Unified Retirement System (FURS). The
plans are established by State law and administered by the State of Montana. The plans
are cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plans that provide retirement,
disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries, with amounts determined
However, PERS members may have chosen the defined contribution
retirement plan. Under this plan it puts the employee in control of investments options
and their retirement is based upon the cash in their investment account.

by the State.
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Contribution rates are required and determined by State law. The contribution rates,
expressed as a percentage of covered payroll for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 for
the defined benefit plans, were:

PERS** MPORS FURS
Employer 8.07% 14.41% 14.36%
Employee 7.90%* If first employed: 9.5% w/o GABA
on or before 6/30/75- 5.8% after 10.7% w/GABA

6/30/75 - 7% after 6/30/79 - 8.5% Also — 1% withheld & paid to
on & after 7/1/97 - 9% w/ GABA - Montana State Firemen’s

9% Association
State 0.10% 29.37% 32.61%
*  For PERS members hired before 7/1/2011 that rate is 6.9%
** For the defined contribution plan all rates are the same except only 4.19% of the employer
amount is added to the individuals account.

The State contribution qualifies as an on-behalf payment. The State contribution for
PERS has not been recorded in the City’s financial statements and was considered
immaterial.

Publicly available financial reports that include financial statements and required
supplementary information may be obtained for the plans by writing or calling
Montana Public Employee Retirement Administration, P.O. Box 200131, Helena,
Montana 59620-0131 Phone: 1-406-444-3154.

The City's contributions for the years ended June 30, 2012, 2013, and 2014, as listed
below, were equal to the required contributions for each year.

PERS MPORS FURS
2012 $ 218,100 § 108,124 §$ 138,988
2013 $ 217,963 $ 113,228 $ 136,154
2014 $ 259,311 § 116,475 § 155,261

NOTE 11. LOCAL RETIREMENT PLANS

Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan available to all Entity employees permits
them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Participation in the plan is
optional. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.
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Fire Department Relief Association Disability and Pension Fund

City volunteer firefighters are covered by the Fire Department Relief Association
Disability and Pension Fund, which is established by State Law. The Association is
managed by a Board of Trustees made up of members of the fire department, and is
accounted for as an agency fund of the town.

A member of a volunteer fire department who has served 20 years or more is entitled to
benefits regardless of age. Volunteer serving less than 20 years but more than 10 years
may receive reduced benefits. The amount of the pension benefits are set by the
Association’s Board of Trustees.

FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATION POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The government considers restricted amounts to have been spent first when an
expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance is available.

The government considers that committed amounts would be reduced first, followed by
assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for
purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications
could be used.

Restricted Fund Balance

Major Fund Amount Purpose of Restriction
Resort Tax $ 1,860,776 Street improvements, parks
improvements, tax relief
Tax Increment 1,999,566 Housing and community development
Fire and Ambulance 423,006 Public Safety
Tax Increment Revenue Bond Debt 3,258,224 Debt Service
Aggregate remaining funds: 2,252,701 General Government Capital Projects
3,061,552 Public Works
49 Public Safety
178,666 Culture & Recreation
4,818 Housing and community development

186,280

$_ 13,225,638

44-
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NOTE 13. DEFICIT FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION

Fund Name Amount Reason for Deficit How Deficit will be
Eliminated
Parks, Recreation and Prior year revenues exceeded
Community Service $ 88,846 revenues Future revenues
Past expenditures exceeded revenues  Future charges for services
Drug Forfeiture $ 172,817 creating a deficit fund balance for drug forfeitures
Building Code Past expenditures exceeded revenues
Enforcement $ 176,632 creating a deficit fund balance Future permit fees
Assessments did not meet debt
SID 166 Bond Debt $ 64,525 payments Future assessments

WF Trail Construction $ 29,220

Expenditures exceeded their revenues Future revenues

NOTE 14. RESTATEMENTS

During the current fiscal year, the following adjustments relating to prior years'
transactions were made to fund balance and net assets.

Fund Amount Reason for Adjustment

WEF Trail Closed out Trail Improvements Agency Fund to WF
Construction $ 82,560 Trail Construction fund 7/1/13

Wastewater Depreciation Restatement due to formula error in

23.603 FY13 schedule

$_106,163

NOTE 15. JOINT VENTURES

Joint ventures are independently constituted entities generally created by two or more
governments for a specific purpose which are subject to joint control, in which the
participating governments retain 1) an ongoing financial interest or 2) an ongoing

financial responsibility.
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Flathead County 911 Emergency Coordination Center

Flathead County along with the City of Kalispell, the City of Columbia Falls, and the
City of Whitefish, participate in a County-wide enhanced 911 public safety answering
point called Flathead County 911 Emergency Coordination Center (ECC) that was
established by an interlocal agreement in February, 1999. The ECC was formed for the
purpose of providing for police/law enforcement public safety dispatch point (PSDP)
districts, fire service areas, and licensed emergency services for all fire departments, fire
local and county-wide multi-agency and/or multi-jurisdictional emergencies and disaster
response. The Board consists of five members; the Flathead County Sheriff, one member
of the Flathead County Board of Commissioners, and one member from each of the
City’s operations for the ECC are accounted for in the 911 Fund and are reported in the
general purpose financial states of Flathead County within the Special Revenue Fund.
The salaries for the dispatch services are reported under the participating entities sheriff
and police departments.

Big Mountain County Sewer District

The City permits the District to connect with the City’s sanitary sewage collection
system. The usage rate charged by the City to the District is $40.00 for each customer
classified as SC2/Outside.

NOTE 16. SERVICES PROVIDED TO OTHER GOVERNMENTS

County Provided Services

The City is provided various financial services by Flathead County. The County also
serves as cashier and treasurer for the City for tax and assessment collections and other
revenues received by the County which are subject to distribution to the various taxing
jurisdictions located in the County. The collections made by the County on behalf of the
City are accounted for in an agency fund in the City’s name and are periodically remitted
to the City by the County Treasurer. No service charges have been recorded by the City
or the County.

NOTE 17. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City faces considerable number of risks of loss, including (a) damage to and loss of
property and contents, (b) employee torts, (c) professional liability, i.e., errors and
omissions, (d) environmental damage, (e) workers' compensation, i.e., employee injuries,
and (f) medical insurance costs of employees. Settled claims resulting from these risks
have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Insurance Polices:

Commercial policies transferring all risks of loss, except for relatively small deductible
amounts are purchased for property and content damage, employees torts, and
professional liabilities. Employee medical insurance is provided for by a commercial
carrier. And, given the lack of coverage available, the City has no coverage for potential
losses from environmental damages.

-46-
City Council Packet May 4, 2015 page 93 of 692



CITY OF WHITEFISH
FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

Insurance Pools:

In 1986, the City joined together with other Montana cities to form the Montana
Municipal Insurance Authority which established a workers’ compensation plan and a
tort liability plan. Both public entity risk pools currently operate as common risk
management and insurance programs for the member governments. The liability limits
for damages in tort action are $750,000 per claim and $1.5 million per occurrence with a
$3.750 deductible per occurrence. State tort law limits the City’s liability to $1.5 million.
The City pays an annual premium for its employee injury insurance coverage, which is
allocated to the employer funds based on total salaries and wages. The agreements for
formation of the pools provide that they will be self-sustaining through member
premiums.

Separate audited financial statements are available from the Montana Municipal
Insurance Authority.

NOTE 19. RESORT TAX

In 1995, the citizens of the City of Whitefish approved a 2% resort tax. City Ordinance 95-
15 restricted the tax proceeds as follows:

Administration fee to the business owners 5%
Parks Improvements 5%
Street Improvements 65%
Tax Relief 25%

On June 30, 2014 the Resort Tax Fund has a cash balance of $1,888,666. This balance was
restricted as follows:

Parks Improvements $ 467,764
Street Improvements 755,605
Tax Relief 664,297

$_1.888.666

NOTE 20. WHITEFISH LAKE GOLF COURSE LEASE

In January 2011, the City leased the Whitefish Lake Golf Course to the Whitefish Lake
Golf Club, Inc. The term of the lease is for 30 years beginning January 1, 2011 and ending
December 21, 2040. The annual rental payments due to the City are $22,375 per year and
shall increase by the December to December change in the Consumer Price Index every
five years beginning with the payment due in June 2016. In addition, the City will receive
a net profits payment beginning February 2012 of 3% of the prior year’s net profit for the
Whitefish Lake Golf Club, Inc.
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NOTE 21.

NOTE 22.

The Drug Forfeiture and Building Code funds currently owe $172,817 and $171,699
respectively to the General fund which is to be paid back fiscal year 2015. The Drug
Forfeiture fund is currently operating at a deficit and had net income of only $18,345
during the year ending June 30, 2014. As such, this fund will have significant difficulty
repaying the interfund loan in the time frame allotted. The Building Code fund is also
operating at a deficit but had net income of $224,278 during the fiscal year ending June 30,
2014 reducing the deficit from 401,847 in fiscal year 2013 to $171,699 in fiscal year 2014.

The following is a list of litigation pending against the City and the amount of damages
claimed by the Plaintiff. The City Attorney has made no evaluation as to the outcome of
each case. The City has liability insurance which may cover all or part of the damages

requested.

Case

T. Warren Schweitzer and Ingela Schnittger v. City of

Whitefish

CITY OF WHITEFISH

FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014

EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

PENDING LITIGATION

City of Whitefish and Flathead County v. Linda
Babiak and Tim Babiak

Ella Marzean Quay v. LHC, Inc., Town of Whitefish,

et al

Jeffrey R. Folsom v. City of Whitefish Police
Department and Montana Public Employees’
Association, Inc.

Scott Wurster v. Whitefish City Council, Dave Taylor

and Virgil Bench

48-
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City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

General
ACTUAL
AMOUNTS VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS (BUDGETARY WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL BASIS) See Note A BUDGET
RESOURCES (INFLOWS):
Taxes and assessments $ 1,928,548 $ 1,928,548 § 1,859,906 $ (68,642)
Licenses and permits 60,300 60,300 62,134 1,834
Intergovernmental 775,300 775,300 777,218 1,918
Charges for services 207,550 207,550 281,942 74,392
Fines and forfeitures 256,250 256,250 216,265 (39,985)
Miscellaneous 40,375 40,375 78,082 37,707
Investment earnings 20,000 20,000 21,663 1,663
Amounts available for appropriation $ 3,288,323 § 3,288,323 $ 3,297,210 § 8,887
CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS):
General government $ 515,527 §$ 515,528 §$ 677,647 $ (162,119)
Public safety 349,046 349,046 283,298 65,748
Public works 14,102 14,102 23,744 (9,642)
Social and economic services 1,500 1,500 1,500 -
Culture and recreation 28,500 26,100 21,475 4,625
Housing and community development - - 10,902 (10,902)
Debt service - principal - - 3,623 (3,623)
Debt service - interest - - - -
Miscellaneous 10,000 10,000 6,579 3,421
Amortization of bond premium - - - -
Capital Outlay 53,000 53,000 60,531 (7,531)
Total charges to appropriations $ 971,675 $ 969,276 $ 1,089,299 §$ (120,023)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds of general long term debt $ - $ - $ - $ -
Transfers in 693,432 693,432 834,436 141,004
Transfers out (3,057,371) (3,057,371) (3,057,371) -
Total other financing sources (uses) $ (2,363,939) $§ (2,363,939) $ (2,222,935) $ 141,004
Net change in fund balance $ (15,024)
Fund balance - beginning of the year $ 1,330,315
Fund balance - end of the year $ 1,315,291
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RESOURCES (INFLOWS):
Taxes and assessments
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous
Investment earnings
Amounts available for appropriation

City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS):

General government

Public safety

Public works

Social and economic services
Cuiture and recreation
Housing and community development
Debt service - principal

Debt service - interest
Miscellaneous

Amortization of bond premium
Capital Outlay

Total charges to appropriations

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds of general long term debt
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance - beginning of the year
Fund balance - end of the year

Resort Tax
ACTUAL
AMOUNTS VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS (BUDGETARY WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL BASIS) See Note A BUDGET
$ 1,930,000 § 1,930,000 § 2,087,995 § 157,995
6,000 6,000 7,474 1,474
$ 1,936,000 $§ 1,936,000 § 2,095,469 § 159,469
$ - $ = $ - $ -
- - 48 (48)
- - 730 (730)
2,305,000 2,305,000 1,662,806 642,194
$ 2305000 $ 2305000 § 1,663,584 $ 641,416
$ - $ - $ - $ -
(733,232) (733,232) (713,332) 19,900
$ (733,232) § (733,232) § (713,332) $ 19,900
$ (281,447)
$ 2,142,223
$ 1,860,776
-50-
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City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Tax Increment

ACTUAL
AMOUNTS VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS (BUDGETARY WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL BASIS) See Note A BUDGET
RESOURCES (INFLOWS):
Taxes and assessments $ 4,462,988 $ 4462988 § 4,301,945 § (161,043)
Licenses and permits - - - -
Intergovernmental 498,894 148,194 240,365 92,171
Charges for services - - - -
Fines and forfeitures - - - -
Miscellaneous - - 1,826 1,826
Investment earnings - - - -
Amounts available for appropriation $ 4,961,882 §$ 4,611,182 $ 4,544,136 $ (67,046)
CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS):
General government $ - $ - $ - $ -

Public safety - o - -
Public works - - - -
Social and economic services - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - -
Housing and community development 1,942,650 1,942,650 1,806,355 136,295
Debt service - principal - - - -
Debt service - interest - L - -

Miscellaneous 300,000 - - -
Amortization of bond premium - - - -
Capital Outlay 1,522,000 1,522,000 535,473 986,527
Total charges to appropriations $ 3,764,650 $ 3,464,650 $ 2,341,828 §$ 1,122,822

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds of general long term debt $ - $ - $ - $ -

Transfers in - - - -

Transfers out (2,046,986) (2,046,986) (2,061,496) (14,510)
Total other financing sources (uses) $  (2,046,986) $§ (2,046,986) $ (2,061,496) $ (14,510)

Net change in fund balance $ 140,812

Fund balance - beginning of the year $ 1,858,754

Fund balance - end of the year $ 1,999,566
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City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Fire and Ambulance

ACTUAL
AMOUNTS VARIANCE
BUDGETED AMOUNTS (BUDGETARY WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL BASIS) See Note A BUDGET
RESOURCES (INFLOWS);
Taxes and assessments $ 530,538 $ 530,538 508,047 $ (22,491)
Licenses and permits 60,300 60,300 108,442 48,142
Intergovernmental 413,123 413,123 410,748 (2,375)
Charges for services 1,211,000 1,211,000 1,266,043 55,043
Fines and forfeitures - - - -
Miscellaneous 2,200 2,200 59,632 57,432
Investment earnings - - - -
Amounts available for appropriation $ 2,217,161 §  2217,161 2,352912 § 135,751
CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS (OUTFLOWS):
General government $ - $ - - $ -
Public safety 2,910,963 2,910,963 3,078,296 (167,333)
Public works - - - -
Social and economic services - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - -
Housing and community development - - - -
Debt service - principal - - - -
Debt service - interest - - - -
Miscellaneous - - - -
Amortization of bond premium - - - -
Capital Outlay 995,000 995,000 372,453 622,547
Total charges to appropriations $ 3905963 $ 3,905,963 3,450,749 § 455,214
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds of general long term debt $ 875,000 $ 875,000 356,233 § (518,767)
Transfers in 575,000 575,000 575,000 -
Transfers out - - (44,554) (44,554)
Total other financing sources (uses) $ 1,450,000 $ 1,450,000 886,679 $ (563,321)
Net change in fund balance (211,158)
Fund balance - beginning of the year 634,164
Fund balance - end of the year 423,006
-52-
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City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Budget-to-GAAP Reconciliation

Note A - Explanation of differences between budgetary inflows and outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Fire and

General Resort Tax Tax Increment Ambulance
Sources/Inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "available for appropriation” from
the budgetary comparison schedule $ 3297210 $§ 2,095,469 $ 4,544,136 2,352,912
Combined funds (GASBS 54) revenues 350,593 - - -
Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances-governmental funds. $ 3,647,803 % 2,095,469 $ 4,544,136 2,352,912
Uses/Outflows of resources
Actual amounts (Budgetary basis) "total charges to appropriations”
from the budgetary comparison schedule $ 1,089,299 § 1,663,584 $ 2,341,828 3,450,749
Combined funds (GASBS 54) expenditures 2,262,106 - - -
Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds $ 3,351,405 % 1,663,584 $ 2,341,828 3,450,749
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City of Whitefish
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Schedule of Funding Progress
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Actuarial UAAL asa

Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Actuarial Value of Assets  Unit Credit Cost Method  (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Valuation Date (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/(c)
July 1, 2009 $ 2,138,344 $ 2,138,344 0% $ 5,340,571 40.0%
July 1, 2012 $ 2917871 $ 2,917,871 0% § 4,966,132 58.8%
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Denning, Downey & Associates, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1740 U.S. Hwy 93 South - Suite 101 Kalispell, MT 59901

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Mayor and City Council
City of Whitefish
Flathead County
Whitefish, Montana

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana, as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City of Whitefish’s basic financial statements and have issued our
report thereon dated May 4, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of
Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control)
to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of City of Whitefish, Flathead County, Montana’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Whitefish’s internal
control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Whitefish’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other

purpose.

M, &W}MW Cens Pe.

May 4, 2015
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Denning, Downey & Associates, P.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1740 U.S. Hwy 93 South, P.O. Box 1957, Kalispell, MT 59903-1957

REPORT ON PRIOR AUDIT REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

Mayor and City Council
City of Whitefish
Flathead County
Whitefish, Montana

The prior audit report contained no recommendations.

M, MMWW Cens Pe.

May 4, 2015
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WHITEFISH CITY COUNCIL
CLOSED EXECUTIVE SESSION
April 20, 2015
5:00 P.M. to 6:20 P.M.

Closed Session for City Attorney and City Manager annual evaluations. Present were Mayor Muhlfeld and Councilors
Barberis, Frandsen, Hildner, and Sweeney, (Councilors Anderson and Feury were absent); and City Attorney VanBuskirk
and City Manager Stearns, separately. Pursuant to 82-3-203(3) MCA, the presiding officer may close the meeting during the
time the discussion relates to a matter of individual privacy and then if and only if the presiding officer determines that the
demands of individual privacy clearly exceeds the merits of public disclosure. The right of individual privacy may be waived
by the individual about whom the discussion pertains and, in that event, the meeting must be open.

WHITEFISH CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
April 20, 2015
7:10 P.M.

1) CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Muhlfeld called the meeting to order. Councilors present were Barberis, Frandsen,
Hildner, and Sweeney. Councilors Anderson and Feury were absent. City Staff present were City
Manager Stearns, City Clerk Lorang, City Attorney VanBuskirk, Finance Director Smith, Senior Planner
Compton-Ring, Interim Public Works Director Hilding, Parks and Recreation Director Butts and Interim
Fire Chief Page. Approximately 20 people were in the audience.

2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mayor Muhlfeld asked Senator Ryan Zinke to lead the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3) PRESENTATIONS
a) Update from Mike Cronquist, City’s Owners Representative for City Hall/Parking
Structure Project (p. 29)

Mike Cronquist, reviewed his written report from the packet and added that on April 6" the team
met again to discuss mechanical and electrical systems; heating and cooling systems are still being
researched and the details of the electrical system are near completion. Budget numbers and
construction schedule are coming together; if offices are vacated by August 1%, demolition should begin
around September 1; likewise if offices are vacated until September 1%, demolition wouldn’t start until
about October 1%, Drawings should be completed in September. He was onsite with the demolition
team today and inspecting the premises. Reports on hazardous materials are being prepared for bid
documents. Councilor Hildner asked if the expanded basement space was still under consideration and
Mike said Martel is looking at that, it is still possible. Councilor Frandsen asked about a plan for
recycling during demolition and Mike said yes, disposition and auction of surplus materials has been
discussed; City Manager Stearns agreed and said they hope to be able to sell surplus materials — the
timing is being looked at. In addition, they are working on designing to LEED Standards even though
LEED Certification was dropped from the project, there is a lot left to be done in that area. The Future
City Hall Ad Hoc Steering Committee has a meeting scheduled with Mosaic Architecture on Friday,
April 24" and Mike will be attending also. Mayor Muhlfeld asked about a project schedule and Mike
said it would be summer before that is prepared.

b) Presentation on Hazardous Materials Incidents Preparedness and Procedures — Interim
Fire Chief Joe Page (CD 12:40) (This power point presentation has also been posted on the
City website on both the home page (temporarily) at http://www.cityofwhitefish.org/ and on the
Disaster Preparedness page at http://www.cityofwhitefish.org/disaster-preparedness/disaster-
preparedness.php .
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WHITEFISH CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
April 20, 2015

Interim Fire Chief Page said this is a downsized power point presentation from fire-fighter
training regarding Railway Disaster Planning in preparedness for a spill of oil from the Bakken and
other possible rail disasters. He said the oil unit trains are up to 110 cars with 30,000 gallons of oil
each. Derailments have happened close to home, most recently in Olney in March 2014; fortunately
those cars were empty. Incident Priorities are Life Safety, Incident Stabilization and Property
Conservation and Environmental Impacts, all as are current during the incident and long term. Last year
he was the Whitefish representative on the Planning Team (Team) that developed the Pre-Disaster
Mitigation Plan, adopted by the Council on October 20, 2014. In that Plan the Team listed twelve
hazards, by priorities, as they related to Flathead County. Of those twelve, Page identified four that he
felt were especially high-risk for Whitefish. From that list they are (1) Wildfire, (3) Hazardous Material
Incidents, (6) Transportation Accidents and (10) Terrorism, Violence, Civil Unrest, and he reviewed
those types of incidents and related preparedness. He explained and demonstrated that at the time of the
incident, they make life safety decisions and establish a Unified Command per NIMS, considering
evacuation versus rescue needs. Action is determined per incident based on established practices and
procedures, which grow or shrink per incident; working closely with other resources through the BNSF,
FEMA, and local public safety. The ESC is the local Incident Command Post and public information
center. Whitefish Firefighters and EMTs have co-training with BNSF and also attended training in
Pueblo, Colorado. Following his presentation there were questions from the Mayor and Council.
Interim Chief Page agreed a public information booth on these issues at the Farmer’s Market is a good
idea and one they have discussed. And, he said he doesn’t meet regularly with the North Valley
Hospital Board but had just become part of a local group (MCI) that meets regularly in Kalispell. Page
also noted that having the rail yard in the center of town does keep the trains going through at a lower
speed.

4) COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC - (This time is set aside for the public to comment on items that are either on

the agenda, but not a public hearing or on items not on the agenda. City officials do not respond during these comments, but may respond or follow-
up later on the agenda or at another time. The Mayor has the option of limiting such communications to three minutes depending on the number of
citizens who want to comment and the length of the meeting agenda)

Mayre Flowers, Citizens for a Better Flathead, 35 4™ Street West in Kalispell, displayed a flyer
for an event they are co-sponsoring; an Earth Day Celebration on April 25™ in Depot Park in Whitefish.
She said there will be 35 booths, all family oriented with hands on activities. Flowers also noted that
recycling bins in Whitefish have not yet been re-signed as agreed upon by the contractor; and she felt
that was important to do to keep consistency in valley-wide recycling.

Rhonda Fitzgerald, 412 Lupfer Avenue, commented that later in the agenda the Council would
be discussing the waterline replacement project at the south end of Central. She said the recently
adopted Downtown Master Plan Update includes a recommendation to extend the town’s streetscape in
that same area and suggested coordinating those two projects so both could be done at the same time.
Fitzgerald also commented on the need for employee parking for downtown businesses; she said 60
spaces were just lost with the beginning of the hotel construction on Block 46. She urged the City of
Whitefish to seek more parking.

5) COMMUNICATIONS FROM VOLUNTEER BOARDS (CD 48:10)

Councilor Hildner said he attended the last Park Board meeting and reported on the success of
the new pickle ball courts, there was discussion regarding the proposed re-naming of the river boat
launch to Roundhouse Landing, improvements at the ice rink are scheduled for June 14" and the 2015-

2
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WHITEFISH CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
April 20, 2015

16 ice schedule is still being worked on, the parkland dedication issue is scheduled to go in front of the
Planning Board and then will come to Council. Regarding infill and parkland dedication, he said they
will be contacting the City of Billings where three options are available, and the Park Board will look at
those options (re: Cash in Lieu).

6) CONSENT AGENDA (The consent agenda is a means of expediting routine matters that require the Council’s action. Debate does not
typically occur on consent agenda items. Any member of the Council may remove any item for debate. Such items will typically be debated and
acted upon prior to proceeding to the rest of the agenda. Ordinances require 4 votes for passage — Section 1-6-2 (E)(3) WCC)

a) Minutes from the April 6, 2015 City Council regular session (p. 32)

b) Consideration of Tax Increment Development Agreement with the Carrington Company
for the Mountain Mall urban renewal project (p. 40)

c) Report and update on six months of experience implementing the False Alarm Ordinance —
Chief Dial (p. 58)

Councilor Hildner had two corrections to the minutes; on page 37 in the packet, first paragraph,
change liable to viable, and in the next sentence add ‘ground’ between ‘high water’, so that it reads ‘high
ground water’.

Councilor Sweeney made a motion, second by Councilor Hildner, to approve the consent
agenda as amended. The motion passed unanimously.

7) PUBLIC HEARINGS (Items will be considered for action after public hearings) (Resolution No. 07-33 establishes a 30 minute time limit
for applicant’s land use presentations. Ordinances require 4 votes for passage — Section 1-6-2 (E)(3) WCC))

a) Resolution No. 15-  ; A Resolution of Intention indicating its intent to adopt the
Whitefish Highway 93 West Corridor Plan as an amendment to the 2007 Whitefish
City-County Master Plan (2007 Growth Policy) (WGPA 15-02) (p. 60) (CD 50:40)

Senior Planner Compton-Ring reported this first came to the Council as a public hearing on
February 2, 2015. Upon direction by Council it was followed by a work session held two weeks ago on
April 6™, and from that work session there are now some decision points that are cited in a memo in the
packet, and will be reviewed by the consultant, Nick Kaufman from the WGM Group.

Nick Kaufman introduced himself and Bruce Lutz from Sitescapes who also was in attendance
tonight. Mr. Kaufman reviewed the decision points as set out in his Memorandum in the packet (page
65), and pointed out additional points for discussion as requested in an email from Hunter Homes that is
in the packet on page 79. Following his presentation the Mayor and Council had some questions.
Planner Compton-Ring looked up the difference between Types | and Il, Community Residential
Facilities; Type | is for 8 or fewer, Type Il is 9 or more; and clarified typical lot coverage in current
WB-1 would be similar to the commercial development on Wisconsin Avenue just on the north side of
the viaduct, also by the intersection of Denver Street and Wisconsin Avenue and then further north at the
Alpine Village complex.

Mayor Muhlfeld opened the public hearing.

Ryan Zinke, 415 W. 2" Street, said he served on the Ad Hoc Corridor Committee (Corridor
Committee) and his property has been in his family for 80 years. He recounted that 3 years ago he
proposed a micro-brewery and a B & B for his property which was approved by the Planning Board but
he pulled the project before it came before the Council because the Council decided to do a corridor
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WHITEFISH CITY COUNCIL MINUTES
April 20, 2015

study. Since then there have been multiple meetings. At issue is the designations of Areas A and B.
The current plan has Area A south of the highway for smaller lots and more restrictive uses, and Area B
is north of the highway allowing more business uses where lots are deeper and some to the river, where
a river trail can be incorporated into the uses. He said if his development is approved he would grant a
trail easement. He said a micro-brewery license differs from a liquor license, because it limits hours of
operation and limits the servings per customer. He said the current plan as presented is a combination of
give and take reached during the multiple meetings and he supports it as presented tonight.

Jeff Raper, 719 Kalispell Avenue, serves on the Chamber of Commerce Board (Board), who had
meetings with the Corridor Committee. The Board supports the plan as presented tonight that has been
approved by the Corridor Committee, approved by the Planning Board, and recommended for approval
by City Staff. The Board feels that Whitefish needs property that is available and properly zoned for
commercial use and they support moving forward with adoption and implementation.

Anne Moran lives at 432 W. 3™ and owns 436 W. 3" and served on the Corridor Committee
representing residential property owners. She thanked the Council for this public hearing. She had
submitted a letter at the public hearing in February and resubmitted it tonight and discussed some of the
points of her letter. She said the study was initiated as a Corridor Study and grew to cover neighborhood
needs and neighborhood planning. Many members of the Corridor Committee do not live in the
neighborhood, and she questions whether residential interest received fair representation on the
Committee. She does not think the current plan represents the bulk of the neighborhoods desires and
feels the adoption of the plan will result in immediate conflicts between property owners, similar and
may be stronger than the opposition of many neighbors against the micro-brewery proposed by Ryan
Zinke 3 years ago. She and many in her neighborhood feel that the current WR-3 zoning allows enough
flexibility for many nonresidential uses historically supported by the neighbors and is a win-win for all
property owners. Most residential property owners do not support short-term rentals and are concerned
with the proposed increased lot coverage and request Council review that carefully. She agreed there
had been multiple meetings but felt the use districts now included in the plan were introduced late in the
process, have not been fully vetted, and the current and established zoning should be retained.

Susan Prilliman, 334 W. 3™ Street, said she had talked with her neighbors on both sides of the
highway and they are concerned with the transitional zoning in Area B. She said a petition was
submitted in February with 50 signatures on it, 48 specifically expressed that same concern with their
signatures and asked the Council not to adopt the transitional zoning as proposed for Area B. The
possible result for residents of that area if transitional zoning was adopted and implemented would
change reality for them, they could likely suddenly be 38’ from a micro-brewery. Negative impacts of
living next to a micro-brewery could include noise, dust, smells, deliveries, patrons and traffic and hours
of operation disrupting normal residential activities. The current zoning allows professional offices
which are not disruptive and are a better fit to neighborhood character, but does not allow manufacturing
or artisan. The proposal to increase the lot coverage is also a concern, currently WR-3 allows 40%. She
felt affordable housing would be a better fit to this corridor, something in short supply in Whitefish, a
better fit than short-term rentals, high density housing or manufacturing. There has not been a good
planning process to define neighborhood needs and she asked the Council consider the request from the
petitioners; their voice should count heavily in this decision, they are the people who live there.

Gail Linne, 106 Murray Avenue, thanked the Council for this process; and thanked the
committee, staff, public, and consultants for all their time and hard work. She reiterated what Susan had
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just said, a petition was submitted with 50 signatures requesting the City retain existing zoning districts
for this area.

Jay Wolfe, 532 W. 2" Street, said he had applied to serve on the Corridor Committee but was
not appointed to it. He spoke in support of the proposed plan and said he feels it is what Whitefish
needs for this corridor. He said, as a real estate professional, when people are looking to buy residential
property, they do not look at this corridor for residential property. He said he lived at the home on 2"
Street for four years and it is noisy, has high traffic counts, and is not conducive to family residential.
He felt this plan as proposed will allow property owners along the corridor to pursue uses other than
residential in a planned and orderly fashion. He thanked all who worked on the plan.

Hunter Homes, said he served on the Corridor Committee, he said he started serving on it
midway in the process; and he is the professional representative for the new owner of the Idaho Timber
property. The email he submitted at the request of that owner is in the packet on page 79. Items they
would like the Council to consider as permitted uses: a commercial center the size and scope of Alpine
Village Market, Assisted Living facility, and a Brewery/Distillery “school”. He said he supported the
proposed plan, agreeing that the north side of the highway is not conducive for family residential. He
said redevelopment of the Idaho Timber property will be an asset for the community economically by
providing employment and generating tax revenue.

lan Collins, 898 Blue Herron Drive, said he served on the Corridor Committee, and said he felt
there is a great potential and opportunity in the redevelopment of the Idaho Timber property. He also
felt there in great potential and opportunity for redevelopment in Area B of this plan within the confines
of the existing WR-3 zoning; he said local improvements are ongoing on several pieces of property in
that area. He serves on the Architectural Review Committee and many new and creative projects have
been proposed that comply with current zoning. He said he agreed with Anne Moran’s comments that
the new zoning districts proposed in this plan in the later part of this process have not been broadly
scrutinized; and the proposed lot coverage avails sprawl. He supports the efforts of the community to
plan for and expand retail within the downtown core. He said he recently read a national report on
successful small towns and a sample of the “money shot” was Central Avenue, Whitefish, Montana. He
does not support nightly rentals for the corridor; he said they are allowed where he owns property in the
Railway District and he feels, that over the long term, nightly rentals are corrosive to a neighborhood.
He thanked the Council for the opportunity to serve on this committee.

Mayor Mubhlfeld expressed thanks to all of those who served on the Corridor Committee.

Mayre Flowers, Citizens for a Better Flathead (CFBF), 35 4™ Street West in Kalispell, said they
attended and participated in most of the Corridor Committee’s meetings, providing active and informed
comment along the way. CFBF supports existing zoning and those public comments spoken tonight
supporting the same. CFBF does not support short term rentals for this area and do support regulations
permitting affordable housing. Flowers spoke to the process of this study, culminating in a workshop
held two weeks ago attended by the consultant with staff, committee members, public, but unfortunately
only 3 Councilors. She thought it a shortcoming that there are not minutes from the workshop; and for a
mixture of reasons felt action on the resolution of intention should be delayed. She said during the
process there was a shift in the landscape when the County took back the regulation of parts of the area;
and the City has recently adopted an update to their Downtown Master Plan and issues of
implementation of that update involves this corridor as well. CFBF disagrees that this plan can provide
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a basis for zoning and believes there is a mixing of term that are problematic; a neighborhood plan
should be implemented. The City of Whitefish has two more corridor plans on deck and CFBF does not
agree that this plan is a good enough plan to become the pilot for the next two. This plan seems to be
developer driven; instead city staff should be in control of the planning, adoption and implementation.
CFBF recommends this plan serve as a report for a new planning process for amendments to the Growth
Policy, and suggests that possibly the Idaho Timber property will needs its own separate development
plan.

Rhonda Fitzgerald, 412 Lupfer Avenue, said she looks at this plan from a downtown prospective,
honoring the character of a community and preventing commercial sprawl. She said this plan could be
the model for the next corridor plans that should serve to protect our gateways. She said people want to
do business in Whitefish and that is because of the good planning that is in place and the City is the
custodians and stewards of those policies. The Downtown Master Plan and its recent update provides
guidelines for orderly growth in the WB-3, where, she said, is the appropriate place for commercial
growth. She doesn’t think people want bars and restaurants or sandwich shops in their neighborhoods.
Jewelry stores, art galleries, bars and restaurants are uses that should be in the WB-3. WR-3 allows
professional offices that are more appropriate in residential neighborhoods and she believes these are
supported by the neighborhoods. She said properties in Area B are disparate; some are adjacent to the
river, some are adjacent to lands previously zoned industrial, but why should their location or size
determine how their land can be used? She doesn’t see that logic, or the logic that one side of the
highway should be allowed so many different uses than across the road on the other side of the highway.
She thought much of the plan was illogical and counter-productive to the Downtown Master Plan. She
noted former Planning Director Horne supported the high-density residential project on Highway 93 S
which changed former commercial zoning to residential zoning; because he said the town had a surplus
of commercially zoned properties. She said this proposed plan does just the opposite; taking residential-
zoned properties and changing them for commercial use. She supported keeping retail where retail is
zoned, she said it is better for businesses; and said that is the reason for frequent turnover of businesses
that are outside the core. She said in the long run a favor is being done for businesses to encourage them
to operate in the business core where they can benefit from that business synergy.

Chris Hyatt, 611 Somers Avenue, said he started a ski shop on Wisconsin Avenue in 1994
because it was affordable; he could not afford a downtown location at that time. Eight years later, when
he could afford it, he moved to a location on Central Avenue. He disagreed with the premise that should
not be done, because sometimes, in order to do business, you might have to start somewhere other than
downtown because it either is too expensive or the space is not available downtown.

Brian Wood, 899 Asher Avenue, directed the Council to the Mission Statement on page 3 of the
proposed plan, the 2" and 3" paragraphs which he read: “The following excerpt from the City of
Whitefish Growth Policy explains the basis for recommending corridor plans as follow-up amendments
to the original document: ‘The Land Use Element of this Growth Policy recommends that corridor plans
be formulated and adopted for four specific transportation corridors with the Whitefish area. Upon
adoption, these corridor plans will effectively amend this Growth Policy with goals, policies, and
recommended actions specific to each corridor...” ”  Mr. Wood said that is what this plan is and has
accomplished, he said every committee member has stated they have supported the process, and this
plan is what came out of that process and should be adopted tonight.
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Mayor Muhlfeld closed the public hearing and requested a recess at 9:15 p.m. The Council
reconvened at 9:29 p.m.

Mayor Muhlfeld felt the Council could continue with this process by following the decision
points as outlined in the WGM Memorandum dated April 14, 2015 and is in the packet starting on page
65 along with consideration of comments heard during the public hearing tonight. He noted these
d%cision points were questions and discussions that arose during the work session that was held on April
6.

Councilor Hildner made a motion, second by Councilor Frandsen, to remove Short Term
Rentals from Area B proposed WT-3 zoning. The motion passed unanimously.

Councilor Frandsen made a motion, second by Councilor Hildner, to remove the area
south of the highway from the Whitefish River to Good Avenue from Area B to become part of
Area A. The motion passed unanimously.

The Mayor, Council, and Staff discussed the next bullet “Coffee Shops and Sandwich Shops:
Should they be limited, should they be in WI-T and not in WT-3?” Action on this bullet was deferred at
this time; there was discussion on the creation of the two new zoning districts. It was discussed that,
even though language in the Corridor Plan addresses creation of and uses in two new zoning districts;
adoption of the Corridor Plan does not re-zone any properties. To have a property re-zoned, it would
have to go through the established zoning application and public hearing process.

Councilor Frandsen made a motion, second by Councilor Barberis, to change
Manufacturing, Artisan from a permitted use to a conditional use in the proposed WI-T District.
(Note: during the motion Councilor Frandsen referred to the chart on page 225 of the packet, Item J.
Manufacturing, Artisan, changing the “P” to “C” in the column for Proposed WI-T District). The
motion passed unanimously.

Councilor Hildner made a motion, second by Councilor Sweeney, to add Item CC to Uses
on page 225 to be “CC. Nursing and Retirement Homes as a conditional use in the WI-T District.”
The Mayor noted this item is the last bullet point on packet page 66 in the WGM Memorandum; and
then he recognized consultant Nick Kaufman who advised the Council that, in addition to Nursing and
Retirement Homes; Personal Care Facilities and Community Residential Facilities, Types | and Il as
listed in the bullet are required by State Law to be allowed in any district that allows residential.
Councilor Hildner amended his motion, Councilor Sweeney amended his second to agree, to add
Nursing and Retirement Homes, Personal Care Facilities, Community Residential Facilities,
Types | and 11 as a conditional use in the WI-T District.” The motion passed unanimously.

Councilor Hildner made a motion, second by Councilor Sweeney, to allow Coffee Shops
and Sandwich Shops in the WI-T District. Following discussion, Councilor Hildner amended the
motion to add as a conditional use, Councilor Sweeney who had the second on the original motion
agreed to the amendment. The motion passed with 3 aye votes and 1 no vote, Councilor Frandsen
voted no. (City Manager Stearns later asked for clarification if the intent of this motion was to allow
this use in the WI-T only and as a conditional use; and the use is not to be allowed in the WT-3, which
Mayor Muhlfeld said was correct).
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Councilor Barberis made a motion, second by Councilor Sweeney, for Artisan
Manufacturing be a conditional use in WT-3. The motion passed with 3 aye votes and 1 no vote,
Councilor Frandsen voted no.

Councilor Hildner made a motion to deny alcohol production in the WI-T and the WT-3
Districts. The motion died for a lack of a second.

Councilor Hildner recognized Nick Kaufman who advised micro-breweries are advancing in
today’s commerce and becoming a big demand for land use; if the City does not allow it within their
lands, those companies will find adjacent non-city lands to start their businesses on. Council discussion
followed.

Councilor Frandsen made a motion to define and allow alcohol production as a conditional
use as part of the Artisan Manufacturing in the WI-T District only. Clarification was made that the
definition already exists in both the WI-T and WT-3 Districts. Councilor Frandsen changed her
motion, second by Councilor Hildner, to remove the definition of alcohol production in Artisan
Manufacturing from the WT-3 District; making it neither a permitted or conditionally permitted
use in the WT-3 District. The vote on the motion was a tie vote with Councilors Frandsen and
Hildner voting in favor and Councilor Barberis and Sweeney voting in opposition. Mayor
Muhlfeld voted in favor; removing alcohol production from the WT-3 District.

There was some discussion among the Councilors and the Mayor regarding this last decision and
whether or not to bring it back for reconsideration, but no action at this time. Mayor Muhlfeld
recognized Nick Kaufman who reminded the Council of discussions at the work session about possible
sub districts for some properties, more discussion but no further action on it at this time.

Councilor Sweeney made a motion, second by Councilor Barberis, to retain Sample Zoning
Districts in the appendix of the document and that the Sample Zoning District be specific to Area
B and to the recommended portion of the Idaho Timber site, with a preface stating that they are
samples only and not considered to be in place without going through the established zoning
process. The motion passed unanimously.

Councilor Hildner made a motion, second by Councilor Sweeney, to add new language to
the WT-3 District at the end of the sentence “.....areas which are transitioning from their tradition
uses, add “and lots primarily border either the Whitefish River or industrial zoned property. The
boundary of this district is along the north side of Highway 93 from both side of north Karrow
Avenue to the Veteran’s Bridge. This zoning classification is not intended for general application
throughout the Whitefish area.” The motion passed unanimously.

Councilor Sweeney made a motion, second by Councilor Barberis, to have set clear
boundaries for Area A and Area B. The motion passed unanimously.

Councilor Barberis made a motion, second by Councilor Frandsen, regarding short term
occupation of the rail spurs for passenger cars to add the language: “private railway cars with
living _accommodations are allowed to park on_rail lines.” Councilor Hildner made an
amendment, second by Councilor Sweeney, to add “not to exceed 30 days.” Councilor Frandsen
made a second amendment, second by Councilor Sweeney, to add “no short term rentals are
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allowed on railcars.” The second amendment made by Councilor Frandsen regarding not short
term rentals was approved unanimously. The first amendment made by Councilor Hildner
regarding not to exceed 30 days was approved unanimously. The original motion regarding
private railway cars, as amended, passed unanimously.

Councilor Barberis made a motion, second by Councilor Sweeney, to add “Professional
Avrtist Studio and Gallery” to WT-3 as a conditional use. The motion passed unanimously.

Councilor Hildner made a motion, second by Councilor Barberis to change item C in
Artisan Special Provisions to read: “C. Shipping and receiving shall be limited to 7am to 7pm
except for_rail-related shipments.” Following discussion among Council, the motion passed
unanimously.

Councilor Barberis made a motion, second by Councilor Sweeney, to add language to the
proposed WT-3 under Property Development Standards: “Bulk and scale: All new structures with
a building footprint 7,500 square feet or greater, existing structures where an addition causes the
total footprint to be 7,500 square feet or greater, and additions to structures where the footprint is
already 7,500 square feet or greater, are subject to a conditional use permit pursuant to section
11-7-8 of this title.” Following discussion among Council and Staff and the consultant regarding
bulk and scale of a 7,500 square foot building, this motion was withdrawn by the maker and
second of the motion, to give staff the opportunity to bring back more information and
comparisons of other buildings in this area.

Mayor Muhlfeld requested a recess at 10:44 p.m. and the Council reconvened at 10:52 p.m.

Councilor Hildner made a motion, second by Councilor Barberis, to continue the meeting
past 11:00 p.m. The motion passed unanimously.

Councilor Sweeney made a motion, second by Councilor Frandsen, to reduce the proposed
lot coverage provision in the WT-3 District to 50%. There was some discussion by the Council
followed by a vote of 3 to 1, Councilor Hildner voting in the negative. The motion passed.

Mayor Muhlfeld said that during the recess he had contacted City Attorney VanBuskirk who
advised that he could be the one to make the motion to reconsider an earlier motion that he broke the tie
on — and that was the motion regarding alcohol production in the WT-3 District. Mayor Muhlfeld
made a motion, second by Councilor Barberis, to reconsider the motion that removed the
definition of alcohol production in Artisan Manufacturing from the WT-3 District; making it
neither a permitted or conditionally permitted use in the WT-3 District. The vote on the motion
was a tie vote with Councilors Frandsen and Hildner voting in favor and Councilor Barberis and
Sweeney voting in opposition. Mayor Muhlfeld voted in favor, which brought the issue back for
reconsideration. Discussion followed and part of the Council thought it would be best to reconsider
this issue with a fuller Council.

Councilor Barberis made a motion to define and allow alcohol production in Artisan

Manufacturing in the WT-3 District as a conditional use. The motion died because of a lack of a
second.
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Mayor Muhlfeld said that completed the bullet list from the WGM Memorandum; remaining are
issues requested for consideration from Hunter Homes representing the owner of the Idaho Timber

property.

Councilor Frandsen made a motion, second by Councilor Barberis, to add Colleges,
business, and trade schools to the WI-T District as conditional uses. The motion was withdrawn
as it was noted that those uses are already included in the proposed WI-T District on the list on
packet page 225.

Councilor Barberis made a motion, second by Councilor Sweeney, to add Grocery stores,
not exceeding 4,000 square feet to be allowed as a conditional use in the WI-T District. Discussion
followed regarding bulk and scale and comparison to existing structures; i.e. Alpine Village Market and
Markus Foods, and staff said they could bring back more information. The motion failed on a 1 to 3
vote, Councilor Barberis was the single vote for the motion.

Councilor Frandsen made a motion, second by Councilor Hildner, to change the permitted
use of Bed and Breakfasts in the proposed WT-3 District to a conditional use to be similar with
other established residential zones. The motion passed unanimously.

Councilor Sweeney made a motion, second by Councilor Barberis, to approve the
Resolution of Intention indicating its intent to adopt the Whitefish Highway 93 West Corridor
Plan as an amendment to the 2007 Whitefish City-County Master Plan (2007 Growth Policy).
Discussion followed regarding the issues that are outstanding without Council action tonight because
staff is coming back with more information, and also with the hopes that a fuller Council could be in
attendance for the approval of this resolution. Councilor Sweeney withdrew his motion with
agreement from the second.

Councilor Frandsen made a motion, second by Councilor Hildner, to continue Item 7a of
tonight’s agenda to the next meeting and keep the public hearing open. The motion passed
unanimously.

8) COMMUNICATIONS FROM PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR
a) Central Avenue Water Line Replacement Project (3" Street to 6™ Street) — design
options and authorization to bid (p. 288) (CD 3:40:43)

Interim Public Works Director Hilding asked if, due to the lateness of the hour, the Council
would like to postpone this item to the next agenda which the Mayor and Council agreed to.

9) COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY MANAGER (CD 3:41:50)
a) Written report enclosed with the packet. Questions from Mayor or Council? (p. 294) —
None.
b) Other items arising between April 15" and April 20t

Manager Stearns reported he attended a WAVE Board meeting last week.

¢) Consideration of authorizing staff to proceed with sale of Tax Increment Refunding
Bonds and Tax Increment Bonds for City Hall/Parking Structure (p. 301)
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Manager Stearns said his complete report in the packet is in detail, but to quickly summarize, this
is regarding a five year bond and different than the typical 20-year bonds; and there are advantages to
working with local banks since they are cognizant of our TIF District and our plans for construction of a
new city hall with the parking structure. Two local banks, First Interstate Bank and Glacier Bank are
proposing to join together in this financing and their proposal is included in the packet. Our financial
advisor, Dave MacGillivray of Springsted, Inc. has reviewed and approves their proposal. Details will
be forthcoming to the Council in future resolutions.

Councilor Frandsen made a motion, second by Councilor Barberis, authorizing staff to
work with our financial advisor, Springsted, Inc. and Bond Counsel, Dorsey and Whitney, to
proceed with a private sale of both Tax Increment Refunding Bonds and Tax Increment Bonds
(New Money) for the City Hall/Parking Structure with First Interstate Bank and Glacier Bank as
outlined in the proposals included in tonight’s packet and as recommended by Springsted, Inc.
The motion passed unanimously.

d) Consideration of delegating authority for City Hall/Parking Structure Design
Development daily or weekly decisions to a sub-committee of the City Hall Steering
Committee (p. 313)

Manager Stearns said page 313 has a list of 7 items that are a sample of some of the decisions
coming up in the new City Hall/Parking Structure that will come up quickly from Mosaic Architecture.
To coordinate a meeting time that works for all 13 of the Future City Hall ad hoc Steering Committee
for these decisions as they come up has become difficult, and Ben, our architect from Mosaic, said at
this time in the design phase these decisions could be made by a subcommittee that could get together on
a shorter notice, maybe sometimes even by a conference call. Creating this subcommittee would not
replace the larger committee who would probably continue to meet on a monthly/bimonthly basis.
Manager Stearns had been thinking about the composition of this subcommittee and thought it could be
about 6 members; two other staff along with himself, the Mayor and one other Councilor, and one
citizen member. Manager Stearns said he thought the next decision for the Council will be approval of
the design development drawings. (Continued below)

Councilor Hildner said it was 30 seconds to 11:30 and made the motion to continue the
meeting to midnight, second by Councilor Frandsen, the motion passed unanimously.

Councilor Hildner requested a point of order at this time to recognize and acknowledge a boy
scout (Josh Harvey) who had been in attendance for the full meeting since it started at 7:10 p.m., and
was probably here to fulfill requirements towards a Merit Badge. He thanked him for coming and said
since it was past 11:30 p.m. now, he thought he could be excused from the rest of the meeting so he
could go him and get some sleep.

(Continuation from above) Manager Stearns said he thought decisions made by the
subcommittee will be reported to the Steering Committee at their regular meetings which would also be
included in reports back to the Council. The Mayor said he did not disagree with the concept and
suggested perhaps the makeup of that subcommittee could be discussed by the Committee of the whole
at their April 24" meeting; along with a discussion about how these decisions will go back to the
Committee of the whole and the Council.
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Councilor Frandsen made a motion, second by Councilor Sweeney, to delegate authority
for daily/weekly decision making on the new City Hall/Parking Structure construction project to a
subcommittee of the Future City Hall ad hoc Steering Committee as determined by the Future
City Hall ad hoc Steering Committee; and the subcommittee have goals and guidelines for their
decision making. The motion passed unanimously. Manager Stearns clarified that the ad hoc
Steering Committee is authorized to determine the makeup of the committee.

10) COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR AND CITY COUNCILORS (CD 3:55:00)

Councilor Hildner said two weeks ago Kirtiye Lohof, owner of the Whitefish Hostel at 28
Lupfer, discussed parking and snowplowing issues in front of her business and he would like to address
those at some point. Secondly, he attended today’s County Commissioners meeting where they heard a
request for a zone change for the Shaw property at Hwy 40 and Kallner Lane in Whitefish. Only two of
the three Commissioners were present; Councilor Hildner submitted verbal comments by reading the
letter submitted by Whitefish Planning and Building Director Taylor. The Commissioners tabled any
action to do further research.

Councilor Frandsen asked Park and Recreation Director Butts regarding the condition of the
Grouse Mountain soccer fields as she had heard reports of them being very hard last year. Director
Butts said that both last fall and again this spring the fields are aerated, fertilized and watered to improve
their condition. The fields got hard from the lacrosse games last year and those games are going to be
played on the Armory fields this year. Councilor Frandsen asked Interim Director Hilding if she had
any follow-up to the complaint at the last meeting regarding the traffic signal at Edgewood and
Wisconsin. Hilding said she talked to the MDT traffic engineer regarding that traffic signal; and public
works will be installing the cross walk sign again in the middle of Edgewood at Colorado and restripe
the lines. Any other signals for that crosswalk will be evaluated in the Bike Path Master Plan update
scheduled for 2016. Councilor Frandsen reiterated the comment from Rhonda Fitzgerald earlier about
downtown needing more employee parking and asked about the snow lot or other vacant lots in town
that could be used at least temporarily before the parking structure is complete. Councilor Frandsen
asked the Council to consider options that could be considered and bring their ideas back to discuss at
another meeting.

11) ADJOURNMENT (Resolution 08-10 establishes 11:00 p.m. as end of meeting unless extended to 11:30 by majority)

Mayor Muhlfeld adjourned the meeting at 11:43 p.m. (CD 4:04:12)

Mayor John M. Muhlfeld

Attest:

Necile Lorang, Whitefish City Clerk
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LACY LAKE HOLDINGS LP
WHITEFISH LAKE LAKESHORE PERMIT
STAFF REPORT #WLP-15-W10

MAY 4, 2014
Property Owner: Lacy Lake Holdings LP
c/o Gil Besing
Mailing Address: 8214 Westchester Drive
Dallas, TX 75225
Applicant/Contractor: Patti Beck
Mailing Address: 1060 Cameron Lane
Whitefish, MT 59937
Telephone Number: 406.270.4041
Property Legal Description: Tract 6AB in Section 24, Township 31 North, Range 22
West
Property Address: 1840 Lacy Lane
Lake: Whitefish Lake
Lake Frontage: 99.7” per COS #19585
Project Description: Install a shore station with no canopy.

Proposal: The original application submitted was to install a shore station with a canopy within
the Lake and Lakeshore Protection Zone (LPZ). The proposed shore station would be 10 feet wide
by 24 feet long. It will be located on the outside of the existing dock, and will be setback from the
side property line. The shore station and canopy would equal 240 square feet of constructed area.

However, due to the amount of existing constructed area already permitted within the Lake and
Lakeshore Protection Zone, the applicant is not permitted to install a canopy over the proposed
shore station. The existing dock was approved for 566.5 square feet per permit WLP-05-WO05.
The approved permit indicated there was existing constructed areas on the subject property totaling
225 square feet. The total amount of constructed area for the entire property is currently 791.5
square feet. Based on the allowed constructed area and the existing constructed area, the property
only has 6.1 square feet available for new activities. Therefore, no canopy is permitted at this
time.

Frontage and allowable constructed area: The subject property has 99.7 feet of lakeshore frontage
per survey dated 2013, and is eligible for 797.6 square feet of constructed area.

Existing Constructed Area: There is an existing dock that was approved for 566.5 square feet per
permit WLP-05-WO05. Additional constructed area located within the Lakeshore Protection Zone
include 2 sets of stairs totaling 40 square feet, a portion of an existing boathouse at 92 square feet,
and a retaining wall at 93 square feet. The existing constructed area totals 791.5 square feet.

Conclusion: The proposed work complies with all requirements, most specifically Section 13-3-
1, General Construction Standards of the Whitefish Lake and Lakeshore Regulations.
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Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Whitefish City Council approve the requested
lakeshore construction permit subject to the following conditions:

Recommended Conditions of Approval:

1.

This permit is valid for a period of one year from the date of issuance. Upon completion of
the work, please contact the Planning Department at 406-863-2410 for final inspection.

The Lakeshore Protection Zone shall be defined as the lake, lakeshore and all land within 20
horizontal feet of the average high water line at elevation 3,000.79’.

The proposed shore station dimensions specified on the application project drawing shall not
be exceeded unless modified by the conditions of the approved permit. Changes or
modifications to increase any dimension or change configuration must be approved through
a permit amendment.

Temporary storage of vehicles, trailers, equipment, or construction materials in the lakeshore
protection zone is prohibited.

The natural protective armament of the lakeshore and lakebed must be preserved whenever
possible. Following installation, the lakeshore and lakebed shall be returned to its condition
prior to construction.

Shore Station

6.
7.

10.

The shore station shall not be located farther into the lake than the permitted dock length.

The shore station shall be located no closer than twenty-five (25) feet from the side riparian
boundary line.

The highest point of the shore station shall not exceed ten (10) feet in height above the current
water elevation of the lake.

The shore station shall be located along the outside of the dock, as depicted on the submitted
site plan.

Due to the amount of constructed area permitted for the subject property, the shore station is
not permitted to include a canopy at this time. If the property owner wished to install a
canopy in the future, an amended permit must be granted which includes the entire surface
of the canopy in the constructed area calculation.

Report by: Bailey Minnich
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Bailex Minnich

From: Patti Beck <pattibeck22@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, April 24, 2015 1:24 PM

To: Bailey Minnich

Subject: Re: Besing - Existing Constructed Area

Please process the check and application for the shore station. They want one! They may move the existing canopy over
to the shore station. Is that ok?

Thanks!

Patti

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 22, 2015, at 12:50 PM, Bailey Minnich <bminnich@cityofwhitefish.org> wrote:

Hi Patti,
So here are the site plans from the previous lakeshore permit in 2005 which documents how much
existing constructed area is located on the subject property. Based on these numbers, the owner
wouldn’t be able to have a canopy over the proposed shore station. Here is the breakdown of the
calculations:
e Per 2013 survey, property has 99.7 feet of shoreline
o Amount of permitted constructed area (ratio 8 sq. ft.: 1 ft. shoreline) = 797.6 sq. ft.
e Per 2005 permit, existing constructed area = 791.5 sq. ft.
o Includes: Dock @ 566.5 sq. ft.
o 2 sets of stairs @ 40 sq. ft.
o Portion of boat house @ 92 sq. ft.
o Retaining wall @ 93 sq. ft.

Therefore, based on the amount of existing constructed area, there is only 6.1 sq. ft. left available for a

new canopy. As | mentioned on the phone this morning, the owner could still have a permit for a 2™

shore station, but it would be conditioned that they cannot have a canopy over it. Let me know what

the owner decides to do. | would need to know for sure by the morning of April 28" in order to make
the May 4™ Council meeting.

Bailey

Bmteg Minnich, AICP, CFM
Planner Il

City of Whitefish

510 Railway Street

P.O. Box 158

Whitefish, MT 59937

(406) 863-2410

<Previous Site Plans.pdf>
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File #: W\j at lﬁ-‘ W‘D
City of Whitefish pate:__4[A]1G
Planning & Building Department intake Staf.  2M
PO Box 158
510 Railway Street SO
Whitefish, MT 59937
Phone: 406-863-2410  Fax: 406-863-2409

LAKESHORE CONSTRUCTION PERMIT APPLICATION

WHITEFISH, BLANCHARD, LOST COON LAKE
FEE ATTACHED $ 075

A permit is required for any work, construction, demolition, dock/shorestation/buoy installation, and
landscaping or shoreline modification in the lake and lakeshore protection zone — an area extending 20
horizontal fee landward from mean high water of:

e 3,000.79' msl (NAVD 1988) for Whitefish Lake

e 3,144.80' msl (NAVD 1988) for Blanchard Lake

e 3,104 msl (NAVD 1988) for Lost Coon Lake

5’00

INSTRUCTIONS:

O Submit the application fee, completed application and appropriate attachments to the Whitefish Planning &
Building Department a minimum of three (3) weeks prior to the Lakeshore Protection Committee meeting
at which this application will be heard.

O The regularly scheduled meeting of the Lakeshore Protection Committee is the second Wednesday of each
month at 6:00PM in the Planning & Building Department Meeting Room.

00 After the Lakeshore Protection Committee meeting, the application is forwarded with the Committee’s
recommendation to the next available City Council meeting for final action, unless it is a committee
approved permit.

01 All work will be inspected for conformity with permit. Permits are valid for one year from date of approval
and can be renewed by the governing body upon request.

A. LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY:
Street Address !8# O LG{C"\-" /_ a\le
How many feet of the lake frontage do you own? 77» —+

Assessor’s Tract No.(s) Lot No(s)
Block # Subdivision Name
1/4 Sec Section Township Range

| hereby certify that the information contained or accompanied in this application is true and correct to the best of my
knowledge. The signing of this application signifies approval for the Whitefish Staff to be present on the property for
routine monitoring and inspection during the approval and development process.

N rel 4.9.-)5

Owner's Sigpature’ Date

a4 Beck

Print Name

L May be signed by the applicant or representative, authorization letter from owner must be attached. If there are multiple owners, a letter authorizing
one owner to be the authorized representative for all must be included
1
Revised 12-31-13
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Vi Pepit 4.9 -5

Applicant’s Signature Date
Po iy PBeck
Print Name
Representative’s Signature Date
Print Name

APPLICATION CONTENTS:
Attached ALLITEMS MUST BE INCLUDED - INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED

Lakeshore Construction Permit Application

Written description how the project meets the criteria in Sections C-F

Site Plan drawn to scale

Project Drawing that is drawn to scale

Vicinity Map

Minimum of three (3) photos: 1 photo of property from lake; 2 photos showing lakeshore
protection zoning from property boundary toward the other property boundary (e.g., from the

north property line across property to the south) and photos of each existing structure or
constructed area within the lakeshore protection zone (dock, boathouse, stairs, etc.)

B. OWNER(S)OF R CORD
Name: G | < { /\6’\ Phone:

Mailing Address: Z,D) /// 'I,Aulgo-F-f Westr D
Ciy, State, zip: Do bV oy =4 RS :ZQ'QQY

Email:
APPLICANT (if different than above):
Name: P(J'H’\ B ek Phone: 240 —404 ([

Mailing Address: __ [Di(>  Cawmcy o Lawve.
City, State, Zip: ___ W& (WT 99257

Email: () H—) bec K A @‘Qma// Cornm
CONTRACTOR: ‘
Name: /\/!A— Phone:

Mailing Address:
City, State, Zip:

Email:

2
<

Revised 12-31-13 )
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C. NATURE OF THE PROPOSED WORK: (describe what you propose to build, demolish or install. Give
dimensions, material and list heavy equipment, if any to be used.)

Shere  Seore with Canepy)
—progosed |0 x ' = 240l

D. Describe any Environmental Impacts (e.g. impacts on water quality or fish and wildlife habitat, increased
sedimentation, etc.). Explain what measures will be taken to alleviate these impacts.

N A

E. Describe existing improvements on the property within the lakeshore protection zone along with the square
footage of each such as an existing dock, stairs, deck or patio and when they were constructed, if known,
or the permit number.

N A

F. If a variance is requested in addition to this permit, specify the reasons or conditions which require or
warrant the variance on a separate variance form. An additional fee is required for a variance request.
What is the variance proposal?

N A

3
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GIL J. BESING
8214 WESTCHESTER DRIVE
91H FLOOR
DaLLAS, TEXAS 75225
214-696-3600

April 6, 2015

RE: 1840 Lacy Lane — Proposed Dock Extension

To Whom It May Concern:

Please let this letter serve as confirmation that Patti Beck with Grizzly Property Services, LLC is hereby
authorized to pursue and apply for an application with the Whitefish Planning Department for a dock
extension for the property located at 1840 Lacy Lane, Whitefish, MT owned by Lacy Lake Holdings, L.P.

Sincerely,

By:

Gil Besing, as Manager
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(2 (oA - 0RRESSO OL ES2hislis
By: SANDS SURVEYING, Inc. %
2 Vilage Loop CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY Y
Kalispell, MT 59901
(406) 7556481 ; ’ v |
in GOVT LOT 2 SEC. 24, T.31IN., R.22W., P.M..M., FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA [
JOB NO: 405401 SCALE : 1" = 20'
DRAWING DATE: AUGUST 30, 2013 20" 10° 0 20’ 40’
;ggPLE‘TED DATE: = 511\/ " PURPOSE: RETRACEMENT
OWNER: THE JOHN R. KAHLE AND HELEN P. KAHLE TRUST
POB ®
North Corner of — 7
Tract 6AB COS 6236 DESCRIPTION:
A TRACT OF LAND, SITUATED, LYING AND BEING IN GOVERNMENT LOT
2 OF SECTION 24, TOWNSHIP 31 NORTH, RANGE 22 WEST, P.M.M.,
FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA, AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS TO WIT:
BEGINNING at the north corner of Tract 6AB of Certificate of
Ub\_’ Survey No. 6236 (records of Flathead County, Montana), which is a
X found pipe on the southerly R/W of Lacy Lane; Thence along said
(.(!_\a R/W S20°53'34"E 111.63 feet to a found iron pin; Thence leaving
o5 S said R/W S41°34'52"W 218.36 feet, more or less, to the low water
> 94 mark of Whitefish Lake; Thence along said low water mark the
=) following two (2) courses: N50°01'03"W 70.59 feet; N49°25'40"W 28.70
E\ feet; Thence leaving said low water mark N41°38'15"E 272.42 feet
= to the point of beginning and containing 0.559 ACRES, more or
. -\ less; Subject Lo and together with a 12 foot right of way
b:l; =\a easement as shown hereon; Subject to and together with all
aﬂi' H\o appurtenant easements of record.
N <\,
!35%&9 %
q:b@\ o 9‘\6
9'5 o LEGEND:
\CIQ €Q Section corner (as noted)
(I) 1/4 Corner (as noted)
@ Center section (as noted)
TRACT 6AB & 1/16 Corner (as noted)
6‘@ 0.559 AC.+ O Set 1/2°x24" Rebar & Cap (7975S)
;56\ ’ ® Found 1/2" Fipe
DS ® Found 5/8" Rebar & Cap (2516S)
w @ Found 2" Pipe
(Rl) Record Information Per C.0.S. 6236
(R2) Record ba!armati;-:ﬂ‘ Pér c.o.
o Approximate location of the
centerline of a 12 foot right
/ of way easment described in
Book 206, Page 550 and ro) CERTIFICATE OF
Bool 209, Page 143. Actual \\)» M .
location unknown due to no & () v
\ evidence of existing road. QQ 6 %‘_5
% .@‘5 A THOMAS E. SANDS 7975S
o7 G
cPe APPROVED: ___9[20 2012 .
Ne— .
s & o COS# 19585 DX
2, &é( .‘&? ,\6 66\ §01300024734 Fees: $25.50 by: TM EJQ(MTNHVG LAND SURVEYOR
\ RN e é\ 05 %’b DY SANDS SURV REG. No. 54288
/ & % d & \(‘ 0":: ate 9/25/2013 Time 11:02 AM
SN \ ©L % . ‘J‘b & \(} Péula Robinson, Flathead County Montana STATE OF MONTANA )
NS EN Gaao’me o i COUNTY OF FLATHEAD') S5
O o
20 i S, N e FILED N THEAS™ Day orbgfede 2013
BN %a\"-’v,f & 1.5 NOTE: AT _lo2AM Palp FEE 35
N 00 —Ownership extends to low water per 70-16-201 £ Q 'R Q
€ % & L and 70-20-201(5), Montana Code Annotated.
% NN ¢ Lean—to Shed —See Supreme Court of Montana, Stidman v. Cily of Whitefish, 748 CLERK & RECORDER
% N // 1.2 P2d 691 Case No. 87-14, and Fourth Judicial Distriet Court for /7\ o
<5, 46\0\ \ WV - Lake County, case No. 8,327, as filed in microfile 250554, records BY va-
ke t2) / of Lake County, Montana, and Sections 8-132 to 8-157 Manual of DEPUTY
<z Instructions for the Survey of the Public Lands of the United
‘5’; States 2009, the land between the high and low water marks is INSTRUMENT REC. Na_&l.%womhaf
determined basically at right angles to the shore line, or in a
A 3 cove or rounded section of a lake the lines should be extended
3 0,0‘ @ out to the center point of the cove. 3
AppEokmats o) . SHEET 1 OF 1 SHEETS

City Council Packet May 4, 2015 page 126 of 692

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY No._13586




By: SANDS SURVEYING, Inc. Topography of:

Kallspet MT 5901 TRACT 6-AB C.O.S. 6236

(406) 755-6481 IN SEC.24, T.31N., R.22W., P.M.,M., FLATHEAD COUNTY
JOB NO: 405401 SCALE: 1"= 10°
DATE: AUGUST 26, 2013 w5 0 1w 20
REVISED: SEPTEMBER 27, 2013
FOR: GIL BESING
OWNER: JOHN R & HELEN P KAHLE TRUST
Notes:
Yertical Datum: NAYD 88 based on
Whitefish City Beach Benchmark

Basls of Bearings per COS 6236

‘Yard Setbacks shown are per the
‘Whitefish WLR Zone:

Front: 25'

Side: 15

Rear: 30' from Zoning High Water Mark

LEGEND:

@ Found 112" Pipe

©  Yound §/8" Rebar & Cap (26165)

@ Found 2" Pipe
‘Boundary

SHEET 1 OF 1 SHEETS
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E Z Dock Drawing For :
Kahle
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SITE PLAN FOP :
KAHLE

HOUSE

Boat House

Stairs i

N

= 16 Sq.Ft. in ZONE 24 Sq L. 1B ZONE
92 Sq.Ft. in ZONE

A
823 Sq. Ft. allowed in zone
132 Sq. Ft. existing in zone
566 Sq. Ft. for dock complex
698 Sq. Ft. total in zone

60 ft.

«—— 30ft. _—>|
i B P, e le——  42Ft ——»
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WALECKA 1992 LIVING TRUST
WHITEFISH LAKE LAKESHORE PERMIT
STAFF REPORT #WLP-15-W11

MAY 4, 2014
Owner: Walecka 1992 Living Trust
Mailing Address: 74 Alejandra Avenue
Atherton, CA 94027-4107
Applicant: White Cloud Design
Mailing Address: 150 Railway Street
Whitefish, MT 59937
Telephone Number: 406.863.2828
Contractor: Valley Earthscapes
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 4447
Whitefish, MT 59937
Telephone Number: 406.261.2564
Property Legal Description: Lot 5 of WFSH Lake Summer Homes in Section 14,
Township 31N, Range 22W
Property Address: 2432 Carver Bay Road
Lake: Whitefish Lake
Lake Frontage: 75’ per plat
Project Description: Placement of 9.38 cubic yards of beach gravel.

Proposal: The applicant is proposing the addition of 9.38 cubic yards of gravel to the existing gravel
beach. The gravel material will be a minimum % inch and a maximum 1 'z inch diameter, and will be
washed free from fines. The lakeshore regulations state that the application of gravel shall be permitted
one time only to supplement a stable gravel beach.

Frontage and allowable volume: The lakeshore regulations specify the volume of fill shall not exceed
one cubic yard per 8 linear feet of lakeshore frontage. The property has 75 feet of lake frontage and is
eligible for 9.375 cubic yards of gravel.

Previous Lakeshore Permits: Staff located multiple lakeshore permits for the subject property back to
2000. None of the previously issued permits included the application of beach gravel. The approved
permits include the dock, shore station, buoy and waterline.

Conclusion: The proposed work complies with Section 13-3-1 General Construction Standards of the
Whitefish Lake and Lakeshore Protection Regulations.

Recommendation: The Whitefish Planning Department staff recommends the Whitefish City Council
approve the requested lakeshore construction permit subject to the following conditions:

WLP-15-W11 Walecka Beach Gravel
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Recommended Conditions of Approval:

L

This permit is valid for a period of one year from the date of issuance. Upon completion of the
work, please contact the Planning Department at 406-863-2410 for final inspection.

The Lakeshore Protection Zone shall be defined as the lake, lake bed, and all land within 20
horizontal feet of the average high water line at 3,000.79".

The proposed project dimensions specified on the application project drawing shall not be exceeded
unless modified by the conditions of the approved permit. Changes or modifications to increase
any dimension or change configuration must be approved through a permit amendment.

Temporary storage of vehicles, trailers, equipment, or construction materials in the lakeshore
protection zone is prohibited.

The natural protective armament of the lakeshore and lakebed must be preserved whenever
possible. Following installation, the lakeshore and lakebed shall be returned to its condition prior
to construction.

All work shall be done when the lake is at low pool and the construction site is dry.

Any existing or disturbed areas inside the lakeshore zone may be revegetated. New plants shall be
native to the Flathead Valley or cultivars whose form, color, texture, and character approximates
that of natives. A resource file on native plants is available at the City of Whitefish Planning
Department. Application of fertilizer is permitted only in minimal amounts to establish new
plantings.

Beach Gravel Application

8.

10.

11.
12,
13.
14.

Application of gravel shall be permitted one time only to supplement a stable gravel beach.
Reapplication of gravel where it washed away, silted in or re-vegetated over time is prohibited.

Application of gravel is allowed only where the predominant existing surface is gravel.

All fill shall be clean, washed gravel of three-fourths inch (3%”) to one and one-half (1 '2”*) diameter,
free of silts, sands and fine materials. Gravel type and color shall approximate that existing on the
adjacent lakeshore.

Maximum fill depth is four inches (4”) to six inches (6”).
The volume of fill shall not exceed one (1) cubic yard per eight (8) linear feet of lake frontage.
Placement of gravel directly into the lake is prohibited.

Any fill/gravel material over the approved amount shall be completely removed from the lakeshore
protection zone.

Report by: Bailey Minnich
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City of Whitefish Fie #:_\WNLP-19-WI|

Planning & Building Department pate:__H|10]16”
PO Box 158 ' m
510 Railway Street intake Staf

Whitefish, MT 59937 Date Complate:
Phone: 406-863-2410  Fax: 406-863-2409

LAKESHORE CONSTRUCTION PERMIT APPLICATION

WHITEFISH, BLANCHARD, LOST COON LAKE
FEE ATTACHED $

A permit is required for any work, construction, demolition, dock/shorestation/buoy installation, and landscaping
or shoreline modification in the lake and lakeshore protection zone — an area extending 20 horizontal fee
landward from mean high water of:

¢ 3,000.79' msl (NAVD 1988) for Whitefish Lake

* 3,104’ msl (NAVD 1988) for Lost Coon Lake

INSTRUCTIONS:

O Submit the application fee, completed application and appropriate attachments to the Whitefish Planning &
Building Department a minimum of three (3) weeks prior to the City Council meeting at which this application
will be heard.

O The application will be forwarded along with Staff's recommendation to the next available City Council
meeting for final action.

0O All work will be inspected for conformity with permit. Permits are valid for one year from date of approval
and can be renewed by the governing body upon request.

A. LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY:
Street Address 2432 Carver Bay Rd., Whitefish, MT 59937

How many feet of the lake frontage do you own? 75 ft.

Assessor's Tract No.(s)__0000502070 Lot No(s)__5
Block # Subdivision Name Whitefish Lake Summer Homes
1/4 Sec Section __14 Township _31 Range_22

l heyeb rtify that the information contained or accompanied in this application is true and correct to the best of my
hpopid

&l The signing of this application signifies approval for the Whitefish Staff to be present on the property for routine
Bl inspection during the approval and development process.

OwneRrg Si natm('/ Daﬂ:yl@]l'ols
ﬁ\:ﬁ:i\v\ i\}@(l,cééo,v
I y.4.19

Applicaqt’¥ Signature Daté’
Johnny McDonald, White Cloud Design, Inc.

" Bl Mbarp

! May be signed blr the applicant or representative, authorization letter from owner must be attached. If there are multiple owners, a letter authorizing
one owner to be the authorized representative for all must be included

1
Revised 1-7-15

}
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Representative’s Signature Date

Print Name

APPLICATION CONTENTS:
Attached ALL ITEMS MUST BE INCLUDED - INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED

Lakeshore Construction Permit Application

Written description how the project meets the criteria in Sections C-F

Site Plan drawn to scale

Project Drawing that is drawn to scale

Vicinity Map

Minimum of three (3) photos: 1 photo of property from lake; 2 photos showing lakeshore protection
zoning from property boundary toward the other property boundary (e.g., from the north property

line across property to the south) and photos of each existing structure or constructed area within
the lakeshore protection zone (dock, boathouse, stairs, etc.)

0 0O0OO

B.  OWNER(S) OF RECORD:
Name: Walecka 1992 Living Trust Phone:

Mailing Address: 74 Alejandra Ave
City, State, Zip: _Atherton. CA 94027-4107

Email:

APPLICANT (if different than above):

Name: White Cloud Design Phone: 406-863-2828
Mailing Address: 150 Railway Street

City, State, Zip: Whitefish, MT, 59937

Email: johnny@whiteclouddesign.com

CONTRACTOR:

Name: Valley Earthscapes Phone: 406-261-2564
Mailing Address: PO Box 4447

City, State, Zip: Whitefish, MT, 59937

Email: valleyearth@montanasky.us

2
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C. NATURE OF THE PROPOSED WORK: (describe what you propose to build, demolish or install. Give
- dimensions, material and list heavy equipment, if any to be used.)

This application intends to seek approval for a 9.38 cubic yard proposed
gravel beach of a 6 inch depth composed of .75-1.5 inch drain rock.

D. Describe any Environmental Impacts (e.g. impacts on water quality or fish and wildlife habitat, increased
sedimentation, etc.). Explain what measures will be taken to alleviate these impacts.

None

E. Describe existing improvements on the property within the lakeshore protection zone along with the square
footage of each such as an existing dock, stairs, deck or patio and when they were constructed, if known, or
the permit number.

Existin<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>